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Meeting of the Governing Body 

 
To be held on Tuesday 23 May 2017 1.15-3.45pm in Bede Tower, Burdon Road, 

Sunderland, SR2 7EA. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. Welcome and Introduction   

Dr I Pattison, chair 
  

    
2. Apologies for Absence   
    
3. Declarations of Interest   
    
4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 

March 2017 
 Enclosure 

    
5. Matters arising from the minutes and action log  Enclosure 
    
6. Notification of Items of Any other business   
    
7. 
 
 
 
 

Question Time 
Members of the public may raise issues of general 
interest that relate to items on the agenda. The 
chair’s discretion is final on the matters discussed 
and timescale. 

  

    
8. 
 

Items of Quality and Safety 
 

  
 

8.1 
 
 
 
 

Report from the Quality, Safety and Risk 
Committee Minutes from 14 March 2017 and 11 
April 2017  
A Sullivan 
 

 Enclosures 
 
 
 
 

9 
 
9.1 
 
 
9.2 
 
 
9.3 
 

Items of Governance and Assurance 
 
Financial Report  - Year ending 2016/17 
D Chandler 
 
Assurance Report 
S Watson 
 
2016/17 Annual Accounts 
D Chandler 

  
 

Enclosure 
 
 

Enclosure 
 

 
Enclosure 
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9.4 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
9.6 
 
 
9.7 
 
 
9.8 
 
 
9.9 
 
 
 
 
9.10 
 
 
 
9.11 
 
 
 
 
9.12 

Annual report including Annual Governance 
Statement 
D Gallagher 
 
Management letter of representation 
D Gallagher 
 
Annual Internal audit report 2016/17 
A Williams 
 
Audit Completion Report 
C Waddell 
 
Approval of annual accounts and annual report 
I Pattison 
 
Governing Body assurance framework 

 End of year position 

 New framework 
D Cornell 
 
Sub-committee end of year reviews and updated 
terms of reference 
D Cornell 
 
Minutes of the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee meeting held on 31 January 2017 and 
28 March 2017 
C Macklin 
 
BCF Budget  
I Holliday  

Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
Verbal 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
Enclosure 
 
 

10 Items for Information Only 
 

  

10.1 
 

Chief Officer’s Report 
D Gallagher 

 Enclosure 

    
10.2 Minutes of the Executive Committee meetings 

held on 7 March 2017 and 4 April 2017 
 Enclosures 

    
10.3 Minutes of the Audit Committee meeting  held on 

31 January 2017  
 Enclosure 

 
    
10.4 Minutes from the Health and Wellbeing Board 

meeting held on 20 January 2017 
 Enclosure 

    
11 Any other business   
    
12 Date of next meeting   
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 Tuesday 25 July 2017, 1.15-3.45pm. Bede Tower, 
Burdon Road, Sunderland SR2 7EA. 
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GOVERNING BODY 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 28 March 2017, 1.30-3.30pm in Bede 

Tower, Burdon Road, Sunderland, SR2 7EA. 

Minutes 

Present: Dr Ian Pattison, Clinical Chair 

 Dr Raj Bethapudi, Elected GP Member 

 Prof Mike Bramble, Secondary Care Clinician 

 Mrs Debbie Burnicle, Deputy Chief Officer 

 Mr David Chandler, Chief Finance Officer 

                                    Ms Deanna Lagun, Acting Head of Quality and Safeguarding 

 (on behalf of Mrs Ann Fox) 

Mr David Gallagher, Chief Officer 

Dr Karthik Gellia, Elected GP Member 

Dr Fadi Khalil, Elected GP Member   

 Mrs Aileen Sullivan, Lay Member, Patient and Public 

Involvement 

 Mrs Pat Taylor, Lay Member Vice Chair and Lay Member 

Audit 

     

In Attendance: Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director 

 Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs 

 Mrs Gillian Gibson, Director of Public Health, Sunderland City 

Council  

 Mr Eric Harrison, Lead Practice Manager 

 Mr Chris Macklin, Lay Member Primary Care Commissioning 

Committee 

 Mrs Jan Thwaites, minutes 

 Mr Scott Watson, Director of Contracting and Informatics 
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2017/162   Welcome and Introductions 

 Dr Pattison welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

2017/163         Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Ann Fox, Director of 
Nursing, Quality and Safety, Jackie Gillespie, Elected GP Member, 
Tracey Lucas, Elected GP Member and Fiona Brown, Director of 
Peoples Services, Sunderland City Council. 
 

 The Chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate. 

2017/164 Declaration of Interest 

 Mrs Taylor declared that she would be employed as a non-executive 
director at City Hospitals Sunderland from 1 April 2017 and confirmed 
that there was nothing on the agenda that would conflict her position. 
Dr Pattison determined that there was no material interest and 
therefore there was no need for Mrs Taylor to be excluded from the 
meeting. 

 

2017/165 Minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2016 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2017 were 

APPROVED as an accurate record. 

 

2017/166 Matters arising from the minutes and action log 

                    Mrs Taylor asked for clarification on the safeguarding interim chair 
post, it was confirmed this was for the children’s board: the post had 
been filled and once HR processes had been completed the name of 
the candidate would be circulated.      

 Action: Mr Gallagher to circulate the name of the successful 
candidate for the chair of the children’s safeguarding board once HR 
processes had been completed. 

2017/167       Action Log  

2017/14 this item was complete and would be removed from the   

action log 

 2017/20 Chief Officer Report – the local digital roadmap had been 

published on the web site. This item was complete and would be 

removed from the action log. 
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2017/168 Notification of items of any other business 

 There was no other business. 

2017/169 Question Time 

 A member of the public asked who made the decision to merge the 

Encompass practices where 4 surgeries came under one contract and 

highlighted his concerns that he could not get an appointment at his 

local surgery for over 1 week and was reduced to attending 

Washington urgent care centre from where he was advised to attend 

the ED department at his local hospital. He also added that patients 

would be forced to travel to the Pennywell site to see a GP and that 

there was only one telephone number for patients to use. 

 In response Mrs Burnicle explained that the primary care 

commissioning committee reviewed the services as the contracts 

were coming to an end and options on the longer term had to be put 

in place. Mrs Burnicle explained that all patients would be given the 

choice as to where they attended for their appointments and 

appointments had to be available at each of the sites. The CCG were 

monitoring the contract as they were aware of some issues and had 

received some concerns in regard to the service as well as some 

compliments. The contractor was working with the patient participation 

group (PPG) and the CCG was aware of staffing issues in the 

recruitment of GPs, issues most practices were facing. Mrs Burnicle 

also added that the issues were due to be discussed as part of a 

process report at the April 2017 Sunderland City Council overarching 

scrutiny committee. The provider had only held the contract from 

October 2016 and was working hard to address the issues that they 

face including the issue of GPs not being attracted to the service due 

to the system the previous contract holder had in place for triaging 

patients.  

 The Chair noted the shortage of GPs and the ways of working in 

regard to triaging of calls and highlighted the national issue of GP 

recruitment. Dr Pattison also explained that once the contract for 

Encompass was coming to an end Dr Liston was asked if he would 

bid for the contract but he chose not to work with the successful 

provider. 

 Mr Gallagher asked if the member of the public from the Washington 

area could leave his contact details and he would investigate the 

issues he had raised and contact him to respond to them.  
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 Another member of the public highlighted concerns over the recent 

press release in regard to 2 surgeries in Silksworth that were to 

merge, she asked that patients should have a say in what happens to 

their surgeries as these particular services covered over 11,000 

patients. 

 The Chair explained that these were single handed practices who 

were finding it difficult to recruit GPs and that the GPs currently in the 

practices did not wish to give up the contract but felt they had no 

further choice as they could not guarantee appointments. It was City 

Hospitals Sunderland that was handing back the contract for the 

Church View practice. It was incredibly difficult to attract young GPs to 

Sunderland as on occasion as is the case with single handed 

practices they could be left to manage the surgery on their own. This 

is the reason the contracts were merging to make them more 

attractive a proposition and without these changes there would be no 

practice to manage.  

 Dr Khalil also confirmed that the surgeries had handed back their 

contracts and without the CCG’s intervention there would effectively 

be no GP surgeries in Silksworth. It was confirmed that the 

government had promised to train more GPs and had increased the 

number of medical places, and the CCG were working with the local 

University to promote a medical school in Sunderland.  

 The Chair explained that the CCG had tried to attract more GPs into 

the area and had initiated a career start scheme where we have 

attracted 16 young GPs to work in the city; the issue for the CCG 

would be to try to retain them going forward.  

 It was asked whether the merged service would have 5 GPs, this 

could not be confirmed. In general there were recommendations to 

the number of GPs compared to the number of patients. 

 Dr Gellia noted that the CCG had to ensure a service was sustainable 

and safe. The contract in Silksworth had ended and the CCG were 

looking for providers to provide this going forward. To highlight the 

reality of the issue he explained that his practice had at short notice 

taken on another practices 2,000 patients and the issues that had 

presented.  

 Mr Gallagher thanked the members of the public for raising some 

good points and assured them that the issue was being picked up 

nationally but the CCG were trying to rescue the local situation until 

more GPs can be appointed. It was mentioned that the patients in 

Silksworth should not face any disruption and that Dr Hussain was 
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keen to stay at the practice and the CCG were trying their best to 

achieve this.  

 It was confirmed that open consultation meetings would be arranged 

for the CCG to talk to the patients and for the patients to make clear 

what was important to them. Times and venues both during the day 

and evening sessions would be communicated shortly.  

A point was raised from the patient from the Washington area where 

he disclosed that he did not receive communication in regard to the 

changes in his practice. Mrs Burnicle explained that the practice 

information was sent out from a mailing company to all patients on the 

patient list given by the practice to the company.  The CCG were not 

allowed to handle patient information. She noted that the gentleman’s 
lack of correspondence, which he identified via a phone call to Mrs 

Burnicle, had been reviewed and his details had not been supplied by 

the practice to the mailing company. 

It was confirmed that all but 4 practices in Sunderland were now part 

of the Sunderland GP Alliance which was now providing bringing 

services together collectively for the Sunderland population. 

Another patient explained that she had seen the news item and was 

not aware of the proposed merger of her practice and took this issue 

very personally. She asked if the doctors and nurses in her practice 

would be there in the future. Dr Pattison confirmed he visited the 

practice a few days previously and spoke to the staff personally to 

reassure them. 

   The Chair explained the background to the leaked press release and 

noted that this was not the way the CCG wished the public to be 

informed. He had asked the Look North reporter to retract the item but 

this request was refused although she had changed the item following 

a discussion on the reality of the situation. Dr Pattison apologised for 

the way the patients had found out about the surgeries but this was 

out with the CCGs control. 

   Mrs Burnicle responded that the delay in informing patients of the 

proposed changes was twofold: to ensure the premises were fit for the 

two practices to merge and also the notice period that the provider 

was obliged to give to the CCG was only 6 months which is not long 

enough to get the changes in place. An emergency contract was 

agreed for 3 more months and following this agreement the CCG 

would have informed the patients but that had been taken out of their 

hands with the interest from the press who would not delay the news 

item until patients had been informed by the CCG. 
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   At this point Ms Latta, the senior communications and engagement 

locality manager for the North East Commissioning Support (NECS) 

confirmed that the CCG as commissioners were looking at a planned 

communication and engagement with the patients, sending out letters 

to explain the changes and organised events where questions and 

answers would be welcomed. 

   Dr Pattison drew the question time session to a close and confirmed 

that the CCG would be in contact with the patients and practices and 

would pass on the concerns to the practices involved. 

   Another patient came forward to raise her concerns and asked that 

the CCG looked after the patients in the surgeries and thanked the 

members for their time today. A suggestion was made to employ a 

hearing loop for future meetings; this would be put in place. 

   Action: A hearing loop to be employed at each meeting. 

   Mrs Burnicle and Drs Khalil and Gellia left the meeting temporarily to 

have further discussion with the patients outside of the meeting. 

   Mrs Taylor asked if the CCG were aware of and assured over the 

patients quality and access issues. Mr Gallagher noted the CCG were 

aware of a number of issues with that contract and this had also been 

picked up by NHS England. 

 

2017/170 Report from the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee meeting held 

on 17 January 2017 

 Mrs Sullivan drew attention to key points and risks as detailed in the 

summary report which included the following: 

 A review by Ofsted had been carried out in November 2016 of 
Sunderland Children’s Services in regard to looked after children.  

 The vacancy for the named GP had been filled. 
 The safeguarding team had developed an MCA options appraisal 

paper and a new approach for working with the local authority. 
 No changes were made to the risk register in January 2017 
 The pressure ulcer improvement plan was in place and was being 

monitored by the quality review group (QRG). 
 The quality overview report related the emergency care 

performance against target for the North East Ambulance Service 
(NEAS) and the 14 Sunderland practices inspected by CQC in 
2016/17. 

 The national direction for the CQUIN scheme for 2017/18 and 
2018/19 and the indicators for Northumberland. 
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 Continuing care packages had issues in relation to restitution in 
that there was a delay in reviews. 

 In relation to the transforming care report a lot of work had been 
carried out around individual packages of care. 

 

 The governing body RECEIVED the report for assurance. 

 

2017/171 Report from the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee meeting held 

on 14 February 2017 

 Mrs Sullivan drew attention to key points and risks as detailed in the 

summary report which included the following: 

 In regard to the PPI highlight report and transforming participation 

action plan it was noted that risks were highlighted regarding the 

Sunderland Health Forum not being effective and the CCG not 

meeting its statutory duties in relation to undertaking formal 

consultations as part of the commissioning function. Work was 

continuing on the annual cycle of business. 

 The path to excellence and online engagement work was ongoing. 

 In terms of governance the improvement and assessment framework 

detailed the under-performing areas for the IAF which had replaced 

the CCG assurance framework and performance dashboard. 

 In regard to quality there had been a report from the quality action 

plan. 

 Concerns were raised at the Quality Safety and Risk Committee 

(QSRC) in regard to the mental health commissioned services report 

and the safety thermometer, information was not being received, this 

issue had been resolved. 

 The quality in care homes report highlighted strategy meetings were 

in place between the local authority and the CQC along with shared 

meetings with the CCG. 

 Mrs Taylor questioned the first item on the report that stated the CCG 

were not meeting its statutory duties in relation to undertaking formal 

consultations as part of the commissioning function. Mrs Sullivan 

explained that this was a potential risk and the way this was 

presented on the report should be changed.  
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 Mrs Taylor also asked in regard to the care home visits if the CCG 

were informed of the outcome, it was confirmed that a formal 

investigation was ongoing. 

The governing body RECEIVED the report for assurance.  

2017/172 Patient Insight  

 The purpose of the report was to provide the governing body with the 

patient experience report gained by the South Tyneside and 

Sunderland NHS Partnership to support the path to excellence 

programme which is the name given to the programme of acute 

hospital care reform across both areas. 

 

 There had been a lot of work carried out gathering patient insight as 

part of the path to excellence programme. The purpose of the report 

was to take on board patient experience and the impact of any 

changes made. The report had been taken to the clinical service 

review group (CSRG) and also to the QSRC.  

  Ms Latta presented the report highlighting the CCGs legal duties to 

engage and consult and noting the report covered insight around 

stroke, paediatrics, gynaecology and maternity services in South 

Tyneside and Sunderland. As part of the engagement over 320 had 

been engaged, this had been based on national benchmarked 

surveys. 

Dr Bradford commented on the low patient numbers in regard to 

paediatrics in relation to the other services and had concerns over the 

responses and would like to receive assurance that work would be 

done to increase the numbers. In response it was explained that this 

issue was purely down to timescales to do the work and this issue had 

also been raised at the communications and engagement task and 

finish group. 

It was noted that there was a need to add conclusions to the report to 

enable the summary to be drawn together with learning and key 

messages. Mrs Sullivan agreed that pulling out key items would be 

informative. 

 The governing body NOTED the report for assurance. 

      

2017/173 Financial Report Month 10 
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 The purpose of the report was to present the governing body with a 

summary of the financial position of the CCG as at month 11 for the 

period ending 28 February 2017. 

 Mr Chandler drew attention to key points and risks as detailed in the 

summary report which included the following:  

 The CCG were on track to achieve its final targets for the year, 

negotiations with NHS England (NHSE) in relation to the CCGs 

financial plans for the next two years and the additional drawdown 

funding for 2017/18 and 2018/19 had been successfully concluded. 

NHSE had provided the CCG with a written guarantee of an additional 

£4m of drawdown over the next two years which equated to an extra 

£2m per annum. The additional drawdown funding would assist the 

CCG in managing financial risk over the next two years resulting from 

very limited additional recurrent funding growth. 

 Following a review of the forecasts, reserves and risks the CCG had 

agreed with NHSE to increase its surplus this year by £2m, this had 

been made possible following some windfall savings and risks not 

materialising in year. 

 All CCGs had been informed that they must increase their cumulative 

surplus in respect of the 1% of funding that was held back to manage 

NHS system risk. This would add an additional £4.87m to the reported 

surplus. 

 In regard to the acute commissioning forecast the over spend had 

increased by £316k resulting from over performance in County 

Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust (CDDFT) for breast 

services. This was covered off by an under spend on reserves, 

additional activity at South Tyneside Foundation Trust (STFT) and 

agreeing a year end deal with Newcastle Hospitals.  

 In terms of prescribing an adverse movement of £110k had been 

recorded however, it continues to record the largest underspend of 

approximately £2m. When compared with other CCGs across the 

North East and Cumbria the prescribing cost growth is second lowest 

across the area.  

 Delegated GP budgets were forecasting an under spend of £216k at 

year end in line with recent projections. The budget still contained 

£99k of unreleased contingency funding. 

 An over spend of circa £4m was forecast for the better care fund 

(BCF). The CCG were in discussion with the local authority to close 

down the financial forecasts for the BCF. 
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 QIPP plans remained on target but there was a risk that some 

schemes would not deliver recurred savings as planned in 2017/18. 

These were mainly non-elective savings such as community 

integrated teams, recovery at home and RAID. Conversations were 

being held with the main acute providers on how to be more efficient 

and implement opportunities such as those highlighted in STP 

planning. 

 Financial risks to the CCG were continuing to reduce; the net risk to 

the CCG had been calculated at £1.1m. Areas such as prescribing 

and packages of care continue to reduce and were being managed 

appropriately. 

 In regard to the CHC update Mr Chandler confirmed that all claims 

had been assessed with just 19 to be processed for payment. 

 Mrs Taylor enquired in regard to the 1% whether the assumption was 

that this would not be spent and the surplus would shift from £18.6m 

to around £23m. Mr Chandler agreed this was correct. 

 Concerns were raised as to the £23m underspend into accounts and 

the message this portrays to the public.  Mr Chandler agreed the 

make-up of this long term cumulative (and not in-year) surplus would 

need to be clearly explained in the accounts, the annual report and at 

the AGM of the CCG. 

 A question was raised as to the 121 CHC cases and if they had a right 

to appeal, it was confirmed that they have this right up to 6 months 

following the decision. The financial implications of these appeals 

would be picked up by NHSE. 

 Mr Chandler confirmed that the CCG were agreeing a year end 

position with NHSPS although there were still issues in regard to the 

recent market rent changes. 

 The governing body NOTED the financial position of the CCG as at 28 

February 2017, NOTED the update provided on CHC restitution and 

NOTED the financial plan update  

2017/174 Assurance Report 

 The purpose of the report was to provide the governing body with the 

current position against the CCG improvement and assessment 

framework requirements and delivery against the CCG operational 

plan for 2016/17. 
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 Mrs Burnicle drew attention to key points and risks as detailed in the 

summary report which included the following: 

 Anti-microbial resistance and antibiotic reduction will be part of 
the KPI element of the general practice quality premium for 
2017/18. 

 Learning disabilities general practice quality premium for 
2017/18 should prompt some of the work around clinical areas 
with an element around the health checks and validating the 
learning disability register. 

 Encourage practices to use the 2 week pathway via map of 
medicine 

 A falls co-ordinator had been appointed, they would review the 
current services for falls and the baseline and work with other 
partners to look at a strategy and sense check everything that 
can be done is being taken forward. 

 

Mrs Taylor asked in regard to the non-attainment of the quality 

premium what could be done better. Mrs Burnicle explained that there 

were changes every year which had led to more national and less 

local indicators; the next quality premium would be for 2 years.  In the 

first year of the premium, the CCG had at least 3 local indictors which 

had influenced their success.  The benefit of the following QP was 

that at least there was a 2 year period that may enable more 

progress.  It was noted that the data for 2016/17 premium was still 

largely proxy data but the actions needed to improve performance 

would not be able to be realised in time to make a difference before 

the indicators change again.  An example was given about the 

smoking cessation performance – the target had been set locally but 

the impact of the rising use of e cigarettes had not been known at the 

time, and their use cannot be counted in the data for the smoking 

cessation service. 

 In relation to the operational plan integrated self-care and 

rehabilitation project there had been some staff sickness but the CCG 

had enlisted some specialist support from NECS. 

 In relation to urgent care strategy there was a need to engage with 

practices before the CCG goes out to public consultation. 

 In regard to MSK the CCG had attended a NHS right care event 

where this had led to some intelligence about the impact of specialist 

commissioning, further work was ongoing. 

 The governing body NOTED the position and progress against each 

indicator in the 2016/17 improvement and assessment framework 
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including mitigating actions to improve performance. NOTED the 

baseline position for each of the six clinical priority areas and NOTED 

the predicted CCG quality premium payment relating to 2016/17 and 

NOTED the progress on delivery of the 2016/17 plan on a page. 

2017/175 Vanguard value funding 2017/18 

The purpose of the report was to seek approval from the governing 

body to enable the CCG as the accountable body for the vanguard 

programme to commit the national non-recurring monies in line with 

the local plan for the year 2017/18. 

Mrs Burnicle drew attention to key points and risks as detailed in the 

summary report which included the following: 

The proposition for funding for the final year of transformation monies 

had successfully been submitted in December 2016. The CCG had 

received the highest allocation for the second year in succession of 

£4.8m; this was received with certain conditions attached.  

Mrs Burnicle clarified the issue of the potential for 10% of the funding 

to be transferred to STPs. The 10% would be used to support the 

spread of the new care models across an STP area via specific 

actions e.g. time from a programme manager, rather than actual top 

slicing of Sunderland funding for the STP. 

A task and finish group signed off any plans recognising that a 

number of the plans were a continuation of work already agreed. In 

regard to care packages £1m would support pressures and would 

bring in additional resources to help speed up the planned work. 

The governing body NOTED the 2017/18 financial template, NOTED 

the revised high level delivery (milestone) plan based on £5m 

allocation, NOTED the offer letter and conditions associated with 

funding. The governing body APPROVED the commitment of the 

£4.8m to the identified areas in the attached high level delivery plan 

and APPROVED the continued role of the CCG task and finish group. 

2017/176 Primary Care Commissioning Committee 

The purpose of the report was to propose to the governing body a 

delegated limit for the primary care commissioning committee (PCCC) 

as part of the CCGs scheme of reservation and delegation and to 

provide the governing body with updated terms of reference for the 

committee for approval. 

 Delegated limits 
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The PCCC held a development session in November 2016 where it 

considered the requirement of a delegated limit due to the key 

challenges in making financial decisions. The audit committee had 

reviewed and recommended the increase for approval from the 

governing body. 

Mrs Taylor confirmed that the audit committee’s discussion was 
robust and that they were not initially convinced that this committee 

required a budget as the terms of reference had not changed in terms 

of where the overall budget management responsibilities lie. Because 

of this the audit committee specifically required that a review of the 

committee was held in 12 months’ time to see exactly how many 
financial decisions had been made utilising this delegated limit and 

the limit reduced if it was not being used. 

Ms Cornell noted that the review would be picked up as part of the 

annual committee review. 

 Terms of Reference 

The membership of the committee had been strengthened by the 

addition of the director of nursing, quality and safety. 

The frequency of the meetings was discussed and it was confirmed 

that no less than 6 meetings should be held in public with an 

additional 2 development sessions. 

Action: to change the requirement to no less than 6 meetings to be 

held in public.  

 The governing body APPROVED the delegated limit of £500k for the 

primary care commissioning committee, AGREED for the CCGs 

scheme of reservation and delegation to be updated to reflect this 

change and formally RATIFIED the amended terms of reference for 

the primary care commissioning committee. 

2017/177 Minutes of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee meeting 

held on 29 November 2016 

 A question was raised as to the closing of practice lists, it was 

confirmed that there was a process in place to be completed. The 

practice’s original request to close their patient’s lists had been 
rejected with valid reason; a counter proposal had been given with a 

positive outcome. It was confirmed that practices made their own 

boundary decisions but this had to be approved by NHSE.  

    The governing body RECEIVED the report for assurance. 



NHS Official                                                        Item: 4 

Page 14 of 14 

 

2017/178 Chief Officer’s Report 

 The Chief Officer’s report was RECEIVED for information. 

2017/179 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 10 January 

2017 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2017 were 

RECEIVED for information. 

2017/180 Minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on 7 February 

2017 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016 were 

RECEIVED for information. 

2016/181 Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 25 

November 2016 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 25  November were RECEIVED 

for information. 

2016/182 Any other business 

   There being no other business the meeting closed at 3.35pm. 

2016/183 Date of next meeting 

 Tuesday 22 May 2017, 1.15-3.45pm. Bede Tower, Burdon Road, 

Sunderland SR2 7EA. 
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1 

NHS SCCG Governing Body Action Log      

 NHS Sunderland CCG Governing Body Action Log 28 March 2017  
 

 

Minute Reference Action Point Lead Timescale 

2017/66 Matter arising from the 

minutes and action log 

Circulate the name of the successful candidate for 

the chair of the children’s services board once HR 
processes are complete 

D Gallagher Once HR processed have 
been completed 

2017/169 Question Time A hearing loop to be employed in future meetings D Cornell Completed 

2017/176 Primary Care Commissioning 

Committee 

To change the meeting requirement in the terms of 

reference to state the committee should meet no 

less than 6 times a year in public. 

D Cornell Following the meeting 
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

 

23 MAY 2017 

Report Title: 
Minutes of the Quality, Safety and Risk 
Committee held on 14 March 2017.   

Purpose of report 

The purpose of this report is to highlight the key points, risks and assurances from the minutes of 
the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee (QSRC) held on 14 March 2017.   

Key points, risks and assurances 

GOVERNANCE 
 
CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework Exception Report  
Key points 
Due to the availability of data for the new indicators and baseline positions, a significant proportion 
of the dashboard has not been populated and the BI team are in the process of establishing data 
flows from national and local data to serve as a proxy (where available). Reporting has commenced 
on the quality premium for 2016/17.  This will not be fully populated until baseline positions have 
been published and data is flowing nationally. 
Risk 

 Referral to treatment (RTT) performance for the CCG remains above the national standard, 
with pressures in respiratory medicine, ENT and orthopaedics as well as emerging pressures in 
dermatology due to workforce constraints and sustainability of the service in Sunderland.  

 A&E four hour wait performance remains under the 95% standard with deterioration in 
performance in quarters 3 and 4. 

 Cancer 62 day target remains a risk due to pressures in lung and urology.  Performance for the 
year to date shows the CCG above the standard at quarter 3 but issues remain with longer 
waits and higher volumes. 

 Ambulance response times continue to be a significant pressure in 2016/17 with performance 
for 2016/17 below the standard for red 1 and red 2 calls.  

 Non-elective activity is a significant pressure with increased admissions, particularly short stay 
despite significant investment in out of hospital care and a focus on reducing admissions. 

 6 week diagnostics is a new pressure for quarter 4 2016/17 due to increased waits in 
echocardiography. It was noted that there is a national shortage of echo cardiologists.   

Mitigating actions 

 A&E 4 hour waits:  The surge group continues to meet, CHSFT are implementing the action 
plan, the A&E delivery board is in place and is reviewing progress against the A&E delivery 
plan.  GP led urgent care centre performance is above the 95% standard; therefore overall 
Sunderland performance is above standard.  Discussions are on-going around further 
development of an A&E delivery board (nationally mandated).  Discussions are taking place in 
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the A&E Delivery Board around actions to improve handover performance. 

 RTT:  The community MSK service is reducing demand in secondary care and the CCG is 
working with the provider and primary care to ensure patients are seen in the most appropriate 
setting.   The CCG has met with the respiratory clinical team at CHSFT and agreed a number of 
actions to ensure timely discharge.  CHSFT has recruited two consultants, one a locum to 
increase capacity short term and a permanent consultant who will start early in 2017/18.  The 
CCG are working with providers to understand the actions that could be taken to address 
increased demand in dermatology to ensure service sustainability. 

 Cancer 62 day waits:  CHSFT are focusing on reducing the number of long waits in urology 

and are working on a business case to increase capacity on-site. Work is on-going in the 
cancer task and finish group to implement the cancer plan. 

 Ambulance response times:  Regional escalation of NEAS response times and implementation 
of a recovery plan continue.  The CCG, NEAS and CHSFT have met to discuss actions around 
handover delays. It was felt that completion of the A&E new build would alleviate pressures. 
The paramedic pathfinder pilot has stepped down 88% of calls to alternative providers.  

 Elective and non-elective activity:  Detailed and enhanced reporting of non-elective inpatients is 
in place as part of the CCG out of hospital transformation programme including community 
integrated teams, recovery at home and ambulatory care.  Each programme is being evaluated 
and impact on patients’ tracked. 

Assurances 

 Monthly performance meetings in place with providers as formal sub-groups of contract review 
groups.  The CCG is in the process of agreeing an audit for emergency admissions with 
CHSFT to ensure patients are being treated in the most appropriate setting. 

 Monthly reports submitted to executive committee and bi-monthly reports to governing body. 

 Monthly provider management meeting to escalate performance risks and issues with providers 

 Robust governance arrangements in place for the out of hospital work and dedicated 
programme management office (PMO) supporting the vanguard.  

 
CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS 
 
Medicines Optimisation Quarterly Report 
Key points 
The report provided the committee with an update and assurance on quality and risk associated 
with medicines optimisation in the CCG. 
Risk 

 Prescribing of a number of controlled drugs (CD) is elevated in Sunderland. 

 The CCG may not meet the quality premium target for broad spectrum antibiotic prescribing at 
end of year 

 Out of date urgent care provider patient group directions (PGDs). 
 
Mitigating actions 

 CD prescribing is being audited by practice support teams and primary care pain management 
guidelines are being developed.  

 Monthly practice-level antibiotic prescribing benchmark reporting continues. The pilot of point of 
care C-reactive protein (CRP) testing in general practice for lower respiratory tract infections is 
on-going to assess whether it could reduce antibiotic prescribing. The MO team is developing a 
strategy to support practices to meet antimicrobial prescribing targets for 2017-19. 

 System is now in place to authorise PGDs, issue to be included on the CCG risk register. 
 
Risk Register 
Key points 
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The report provided the committee with the latest update of the CCG’s risk register and associated 
reports. 
Assurances 

 The risk register is reviewed on a regular basis by the risk leads and risk management group.  
The committee receives the confirmed minutes from the risk management group as a separate 
item on the agenda. Data quality issues and overdue reviews continued to be highlighted to the 
relevant risk leads on a regular basis.   

 
PATIENT SAFETY 
 
Safeguarding Highlight Report   
Key points 
The report advised the committee of key safeguarding activity, associated risks and mitigating 
actions. 
Risk 

 The continued vacancy for named GP Safeguarding Adults risk level has been downgraded on 
the risk register and will be removed when the new named GP is in post. 

 The CCG may not be fully compliant in relation to commissioning arrangements for MCA/DoLS. 
This is recorded on the CCG risk register. 

Assurances 

 Ongoing monitoring and governance via the CCG designated and named safeguarding 
assurance group and all statutory partnerships. 

 The CCG safeguarding team has developed an MCA options appraisal paper setting out a 
potential approach working with the local authority (LA) for the management of MCA/DoLs on 
behalf of the CCG 

 Subject to satisfactory references, the safeguarding team has appointed to the named GP for 
safeguarding adults post, and it is anticipated this will commence on 1.4.17. 

 
Transformation of the Statutory Multi-Agency Safeguarding Governance and Accountability 
Board Arrangements 
Key points 
The report and presentation updated the committee on the key changes to the Sunderland 
safeguarding children and adults boards’ governance and accountability arrangements from 
January 2017. 
Assurances 

 The CCG designated professionals will continue to provide an advisory role to the chief 
officer/deputy at boards and provide leadership and support to the programme boards/sub 
groups.  The Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety will chair a programme board of the SSCB. 

 
Safeguard Incident & Risk Management System (SIRMS) Quarter 3 2016/17 
Key Points 
The report which was produced for GP practices and formed the basis for the TITO presentation 
was shared with the committee, to highlight incident themes, key learning and provider responses 
to Q2 incidents. 
 
QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES 
 
Quality Overview Report 
Key points 
The report provided the committee with an overview of quality risks associated with the CCGs 
commissioned services, detailing hot spots and areas of good practice that had arisen and 
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provided assurances of the actions being taken to reduce the risks and maintain patient safety. 
Risk 

 Three new risks for CHSFT have been added to the February 2017 data release of the NHS 
England Safety Thermometer for cancer 62 day waits, diagnostics and weekend hospital 
standardised mortality ratio (HSMR) – non elective. The report also highlights existing risks 
previously notified. 

 CHSFT has reported 5 validated cases of methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA), 
year to date (Apr – Dec 2016). 

 CHSFT has reported one Never Event in February and two in March and STFT has reported 
one never event in February relating to a Sunderland CCG patient. 

Assurances 

 Performance impacts on quality are routinely discussed at the Quality Review Group (QRG). 

 The Trust and CCG are members of the HCAI Improvement Group. 

 Serious incident performance and never events are discussed at the Serious Incident Panel 
and the QRG. 

 
Learning Disabilities and Mortality Review (LeDer Programme) Report  
Key points 
The report advised the committee on the national LeDeR programme and how it interfaced with 
other statutory review processes and proposed a model for local implementation of the LeDeR 
programme in Sunderland. 
Risk 

 The process could prove to be labour intensive and was being discussed with the LD network 
and NHS England. No additional resource had been identified for the review programme within 
provider services or CCGs. 

Assurances 

 The local arrangements are working in practice with recent cases reviewed by an initial review, 
a multi-agency review in collaboration with the Sunderland safeguarding adult board and a child 
death review due to be reported to the child death overview panel in March 2017. 

 
Quarterly Quality Update - North East Ambulance Service Foundation Trust 
Key points 
The report provided the committee with an ambulance service clinical quality quarterly update 
report, headlining the key issues and providing assurance that actions were being undertaken 
where appropriate.   
Key risks 

 Ambulance handover delays. 

 Trust sickness absence has increased to 7.47%. 

 December 2016 saw a decrease in overall trust wide emergency care performance.  Overall red 
performance, including Red 19 for Sunderland CCG in December 2016 below target. In addition 
to emergency care performance, increased winter demand throughout the region put pressure 
on services. 

 
Assurances 

 Work is undergoing to tackle handover delays (noted in the CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework Exception Report). 

 A number of activities were underway to recruit paramedics and the Trust has received several 
expressions of interest from GPs wishing to work sessions in the clinical hub which are being 
progressed. 

 Performance impacts on quality are routinely discussed at the QRG. 
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Clinical Quality Assurance Visit Report   
Key points 
The report detailed positive visits carried out by SCCG at the Mitford Unit, and by STCCG at Rose 
Lodge. The Committee requested that a letter be drafted and sent to the Trust congratulating staff. 
 
Items for information  

 Northumberland Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust Quality Review Group   minutes, 24 
November 2016 

 Northern Doctors Urgent Care Quality Review Group minutes, 14 December 2016 

 South Tyneside Foundation Trust Quality Review Group minutes, 14 December 2016 

 Designated and Named Safeguarding Assurance Group minutes, 20 January 2017 

 Communications and Engagement Steering group minutes, 2 December 2016 

 Seeing is Believing - Unique Court Observer Scheme 

 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to receive the report for assurance. 

Sponsor/approving director   Ann Fox, Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety 

Report author Michelle Grant, Clinical Quality Manager 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming 
services  

 

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Any relevant legal/statutory issues 

N/A 

Are the identified risks on the risk register?  

Yes 

If issue/report has been previously reviewed please specify meeting and date 

N/A 
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Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Clinicians at QRG and QSRC meetings 

Any current or expected impact 
on patient outcomes/experience? 

Yes 

Has there been member practice 
and/or other stakeholder 
engagement if needed?   

Engagement with provider organisations, Sunderland City 
Council and NHS England.  



 NHS Official Item: 8.1  
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Quality Safety and Risk Committee  
Minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2017  

Joseph Swan Suite, Pemberton House  
 

Present:  
 Mrs Aileen Sullivan Lay Member for Patient Public Involvement (chair) 
 Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  
 Mr David Gallagher, Chief Officer  
 Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP  

Mrs Gillian Gibson, Director of Public Health  
Dr Jackie Gillespie, Medicines Optimisation Elected GP  
Mrs Michelle Grant, NECS, Clinical Quality Manager 

 Ms Deanna Lagun, Head of Safeguarding  
 Miss Elizabeth Mallett, Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist (left at 2:45) 
 Dr Ian Pattison, CCG Chair  
 Mr Matthew Thubron, Head of Contracting and Performance (left at 2:45) 
 
In Attendance: 
 
  Mrs Eleanor Hardy, PA (minutes) 
 
2017/50 Welcome and Introductions 
 
 Mrs Sullivan welcomed everyone present to the meeting and reminded 

members of the purpose of the committee.  Those present were advised that 
for accuracy of the minutes the meeting would be recorded.  The recording 
would only be retained until the minutes were written and confirmed then 
would be destroyed. Mrs Sullivan questioned whether there were any 
objections to the meeting being recorded. All present confirmed there were no 
objections.  

 
2017/51 Apologies for Absence 
 
 Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director  
 Professor Mike Bramble, Secondary Care Clinician, Governing Body Member  
 Mrs Ann Fox, Director of Nursing Quality and Safety  
  
2017/52 Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. Mrs Sullivan reminded all present that if 

any declarations became apparent during the meeting these should be 
declared at the time of the relevant agenda item 
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2017/53 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 February2017  
 
 Following one amendment on page 14 of the minutes “multi-skeletal, to be 

changed to “musculoskeletal”  the minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 
2017 were agreed as a true and accurate record of the meeting. 

 
2017/54 Matters arising 
 

Mrs Gibson referred to page 9 of the minutes and noted that smoking in 
pregnancy was a joint responsibility of the local authority and the CCG.  With 
regards to City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (CHSFT) having a 
stop smoking clinic, Mrs Gibson noted that the minutes should say that health 
care assistants were commissioned by public health to offer smoking 
cessation advice to pregnant women. 
 
The quality safety and risk committee AGREED that this would be added as 
an addendum to the minutes of the meeting held on 14 February 2017.  

 
2017/55 Action Log   
  Actions 1, 6, 7, 8, 16, 17, 18, 19, and 23 were closed and would be removed 

from the action log.  
 
2017/56 Summary sheet   
         
 Mrs Sullivan presented the summary sheet to the committee. The purpose of 

the summary sheet was to confirm the minutes from the quality, safety and risk 
committee held on 14 February 2017 and approval of the cover sheet prior to 
their submission to the governing body meeting on 28 March 2017.  

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the summary sheet and 

minutes and APPROVED both for submission to the governing body meeting 
on 28 March 2017 

 
 GOVERNANCE  
 
2017/57 Improvement and Assessment Framework Bi-Annual Exception Report   
 
 Mr Thubron presented the improvement and assessment framework 

exception. The purpose of the report was to provide details of the current 
under-performing measures which were part of the CCG improvement and 
assessment framework (IAF) and assurance that actions were being taken 
where necessary.  Mr Thubron highlighted key points, risks and assurances to 
the committee.  

 
 Key Points:  
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 For 2016/17, a new CCG IAF had been introduced to replace the existing 
framework and performance dashboard (delivery dashboard).  Due to the 
availability of data for the new indicators and baseline positions, a significant 
proportion of the dashboard was not yet populated.  The business intelligence 
team was in the process of establishing data flows from national data and local 
data to serve as a proxy (where available). 

 
 Reporting had also commenced on the quality premium for 2016/17.  Again, 

this would not be fully populated until baseline positions had been published 
and data was available nationally.  Baseline positions for each of the new 
indicators for the whole framework including the quality premium were 
expected to be published incrementally throughout the year.  Baseline 
positions for a number of indicators were published in July and these could be 
found in the appendices of the report. 

 
 Referral to treatment (RTT) performance remained above the national 

standard.  Individual specialty pressures remained with respiratory medicine, 
ear, nose and throat and orthopaedics, the latter due to sustainability now that 
the CCG was delivering RTT.  Pressures were now beginning to emerge in 
dermatology due to workforce constraints and sustainability of the service in 
Sunderland.     

 
 Accident and emergency 4 hour wait performance at CHS NHSFT remained 

under the 95% standard with deterioration in performance in quarters 3 and 4. 
Further pressures also remained in relation to delivery of the city wide 
performance due to the pressures at CHS NHSFT.  Mr Thubron advised that 
since the report had been produced, CHS NHSFT performance was starting to 
improve although there were still some areas of pressure. A&E and providers 
were focusing on achieving the 95% target for March 2017.  

 
 Cancer 62 days remained a risk relating to the cancer targets due to pressures 

in lung and urology.  Performance for the year to date showed the CCG was 
still above the standard as at quarter three but issues still remained with longer 
waits and volumes at CHS NHSFT in urology. 

 
 Ambulance response times continued to be a significant pressure in 2016/17 

with performance for 2016/17 still below the standard for red 1 and red 2 calls.  
 
 Non-elective activity was also a significant issue for the CCG with increased 

admissions, particularly short stay admissions despite significant investment in 
out of hospital care and a focus on reducing admissions. 

 
 Diagnostics carried out within 6 weeks was an emerging issue for quarter 4  

due to increased waits in echocardiography at CHS NHSFT.  Mr Thubron 
advised there was a shortage of physiologists nationally.  This was part of the 
path to excellence work and should be on track by June 2017. 

 
 Risk:  Accident and emergency 4 hour waits at CHS NHSFT for 2016/17. 
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 Mitigating Actions: Year to date performance was below the 95% standard with 

performance at 94.35% as at November 2016.   The surge group continued to 
meet and CHS NHSFT continued to implement the action plan. The A&E 
delivery board was now in place and reviewing progress against the A&E 
delivery plan.  GP led urgent care centre performance remained above the 
95% standard.    Discussions were also on-going around the further 
development of an A&E delivery board which had been mandated nationally.  
Handover delays remained a significant pressure and discussions were taking 
place in the urgent care board around actions being taken to improve 
performance. 

 
 Risk: Referral to treatment at CHS NHSFT, particularly orthopaedics, 

respiratory medicine and emerging risks for dermatology at County Durham 
and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (CDDFT) and South Tyneside NHS 
Foundation Trust (STFT). 

 
 Mitigating Actions: Despite being above trajectory in April 2016, orthopaedics 

performance had deteriorated in June 2016 due to increased trauma and 
pressures remained into quarter 3.  The continued work of the community 
musculoskeletal service was reducing demand in secondary care and the 
CCG continued to work with the provider and primary care to ensure patients 
were seen in the most appropriate setting.   Regarding respiratory medicine, 
pressures continued with demand levels exceeding capacity.  The CCG had 
met with the clinical team at CHS NHSFT and agreed a number of actions, 
such as development of pathways in map of medicine as well as a review of 
patients on the follow up backlog to ensure patients were discharged who did 
not need to be seen by a consultant.  CHS NHSFT had also confirmed that 
they had recruited 2 consultants, a locum to increase capacity short term and 
a permanent consultant who will start early in 2017/18.  Dermatology was a 
new issue which had emerged due to capacity and workforce constraints at 
CDDFT and STFT.  The CCG was currently working with providers to 
understand what actions could be taken to address increased demand into 
secondary care and ensure service sustainability going forward. 

 
 Risk: Cancer 62 days, particularly urology and lung 
 
 Mitigating Actions: The CCG continued to deliver the cancer constitutional 

standards for 2016/17 on a year to date basis despite pressures at CHS 
NHSFT in urology. CHS NHSFT continued to focus on reducing the number of 
long waits in urology and the number continued to decrease which was 
encouraging.  CHS NHSFT was also working on a business case to increase 
capacity on-site which should improve performance further.  Work was also 
ongoing in the cancer task and finish group to implement the cancer plan. 

 
 Risk: Ambulance response calls, particularly red 1 and red 2   
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 Mitigating Actions: Regional escalation of North East Ambulance Service NHS 
Foundation Trust (NEASFT) response times and implementation of a recovery 
plan to improve these continued. NEAS continued to focus on recruitment due 
to workforce pressures, increased demand and lost time due to handover 
delays.  The CCG was to meet CHS NHSFT and NEASFT in the coming 
weeks to understand what actions needed to be taken to reduce handover 
delays and develop initiatives to reduce help demand into CHS NHSFT.  The 
Sunderland paramedic pathfinder project was introduced in May 16 to run for 
one year and so far this had showed a reduction in ambulances into secondary 
care, utilising alternative dispositions such as urgent care centres and 
recovery at home. 

 
 Mr Thubron advised the committee that since the report had been produced, a 

meeting had taken place with the CCG, NEASFT and CHS NHSFT to discuss 
the significant increase in ambulance handover delays and to look at what 
actions could be put in place to turn this around.  The paramedic pathfinder 
pilot that was in place had stepped down 88% of calls to alternative providers. 
Mr Thubron advised that it needed to be seen if NEAS would build the 
paramedic pathfinder into its strategy.  

 
Dr Gellia asked what the main reasons were for ambulance handover delays 
at CHS NHSFT.  Mr Thubron advised it was because of the new build.  Prior to 
this commencing, there had not been a significant number of ambulance 
handover delays but the numbers had now increased to an unacceptable level. 
Another reason was also the physical capacity and batching of ambulances to 
CHS NHSFT.  When the new build was completed this should help alleviate 
these pressures. 
 
Mr Gallagher noted that the meeting with the CCG, NEAS and CHS NHSFT 
had been positive and focused on ensuring that resources were in the right 
place to deal with this pressure. Dr Gellia noted that a significant number of 
ambulances going to CHS NHSFT came through NHS 111 and this needed to 
be sorted before the clinical service reviews were completed.  
 
Mrs Sullivan referred to the paramedic pathfinder training and asked whether 
this was regional.  Mr Thubron advised it was local and being led by Mike 
Simpson and Jeannie Henderson.  

 
 Risk: Activity trajectories – elective and non-elective 
 
 Mitigating Actions: Detailed and enhanced reporting of non-elective inpatients 

was in place to understand the levels of non-elective admissions going through 
the system.  This was part of the CCG out of hospital transformation 
programme and included community integrated teams, recovery at home and 
ambulatory care.  Each programme was being evaluated to understand the 
impact of the service on patients and also to identify any lessons learnt or 
mitigating actions needed to address activity over performance. 
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 Assurances: Monthly performance meetings were in place with providers to 
review provider performance and actions needed to mitigate performance risk.  
The CCG was also in the process of agreeing an audit into emergency 
admissions with CHS NHSFT to ensure patients were being treated in the 
most appropriate setting. 

 
 Monthly reports were submitted to executive committee and bi-monthly reports 

to governing body 
 

With regards to gastroenterology, Dr Pattison questioned whether CHS 
NHSFT was now taking routine referrals.  Mr Thubron advised this would be 
discussed at the next performance group meeting and would be picked up 
when the path to excellence clinical services review was concluded.  Dr 
Pattison asked if it would be possible for more clinics to be put on in 
Sunderland to reduce the travel time to South Tyneside for Sunderland 
patients.  Mr Thubron advised that this is what would be discussed at the 
performance meeting and he would feedback any patient concerns to the 
committee.  
 
Action: Mr Thubron 
 
Mrs Sullivan asked if there were still nurse led clinics and this was an issue.  
Mr Thubron advised the Sunderland GP Alliance was looking at a pilot that 
would take some of these patients from acute nurse led clinics to GP led 
clinics. Also CHS NHSFT was being challenged on whether these patients 
needed to be seen at a clinic and to identify how many patients there were 
now compared to previously. Mr. Thubron advised he would pick this up at the 
next performance group meeting.  
 
Action: Mr.  Thubron 

 
Mrs Gibson referred to non-elective activity and queried when out of hospital 
care was put in place, would the numbers be what was expected given the 
older population etc. Mr Thubron advised this was part of the planning and the 
numbers were evidence based.  Sunderland had access to 2 tools/models and 
the health and social care aspect had been tailored for Sunderland.  These 2 
tools/models had showed that non-elective care admissions could be reduced 
by 15 – 25% from a starting point.  Mr Thurbron advised that the profile was to 
stop the growth but the growth was now higher than expected and higher than 
what was happening nationally.  

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the 

current position for each under-performing indicator in the CCG assurance 
framework and NOTED the actions being taken to address the performance 
issues 

 
At this point in the meeting there was a change to the order of the agenda and 
the medicines optimisation report was discussed next.  
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  CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS 

 
2017/58   Medicines Optimisation Quarterly Report  

 
  Miss Mallett presented the medicines optimisation report. The purpose of the 

report was to provide the committee with an update and assurance on quality 
and risk associated with medicines optimisation in the CCG.  Miss Mallett 
highlighted the key points, risks and assurances to the committee.  

 
  Risks and Updates  

  Risk 1386 - Lack of engagement of CHS NHSFT with joint formulary 
development.  There had been no change since last update. Engagement had 
continued and work had progressed on 3 new chapters.  

 
  Risk 1333 - Potential overspend on prescribing budget. The financial position 

had again improved since the last report. 
 

 Risk 1509 - Lack of approved shared care guidelines.  Prostate cancer 
treatment shared care documents had been launched and were being 
implemented in the majority of Sunderland practices.  Working with South 
Tyneside CCG, the initial versions of shared care agreements for azathioprine, 
methotrexate and leflunomide had been drafted. The joint formulary chairman 
had agreed that these could be shared for further development with CHS 
NHSFT rheumatologists and several other guidelines had also been approved. 

 
  Patient safety  
  Medicines incidents reported by general practices on SIRMS  
  43 incidents were reported during quarter three 2016-17.  
  Two were assessed as having caused “moderate harm” and 9 “minor harm.” 

 The main theme continued to be inappropriate supply of repeat medicines due 
to community pharmacy managed repeat schemes. These had been 
discussed with the local pharmaceutical committee. 

 
  Mitigating actions: Themes and serious incidents continued to be highlighted 

to practices in the “learning from reporting” newsletter. 
 
Controlled drugs prescribing: The quarter 2 2016-17 regional controlled drugs 
prescribing report highlighted the following: Levels of oxycodone, tapentadol 
and tramadol prescribing remained high in Sunderland and prescribing of 
dipipanone highlighted in a previous report had stopped.  These areas were 
being audited by the practice support teams. Primary care pain treatment 
guidelines were being developed to support appropriate prescribing however, 
as the treatment of pain was complex, it would take time for prescribing to 
reduce. A response had been provided to the controlled drugs accountable 
officer for the Cumbria and North East area team.  

 
 Quality  
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 A summary report from the medicines optimisation and guidelines group 
(MOGG) held in December 2016 was included in appendix 3 of the report for 
information and assurance. 

 
Antimicrobial prescribing 
Work continued towards reducing inappropriate prescribing of all antibiotics 
and of broad spectrum antibiotics, cephalosporins, co-amoxiclav and 
quinolones. 
For the year to date, the volume of all antibiotics prescribed was below target 
(target being achieved). The prescribing of broad spectrum antibiotics was 
above target (target not being achieved). 
 
There was a risk that the CCG would not meet the quality premium target for 
broad spectrum antibiotic prescribing at the end of the year. 
 
Mitigating actions: Monthly practice-level benchmark reporting continued. The 
pilot of point of care C-reactive protein (CRP) testing in general practice for 
lower respiratory tract infections was on-going to assess whether it could 
reduce antibiotic prescribing. 
 
Information on the antimicrobial prescribing targets for 2017-19 was now 
available. The targets would be difficult to achieve and the medicines 
optimisation team was developing a strategy to support practices to meet the 
targets. 
 
Medicines optimisation QIPP initiatives 
Three regional proposals would be discussed at the March executive 
committee: 
 

1. Introducing limits on prescribing of some medicines that could be 
purchased and ensuring travel medicines were not provided at NHS 
expense. 

2. Reducing the amount of gluten free foods that were provided on 
prescription. 

3. Requiring community pharmacies to complete a memorandum of 
understanding to reduce medicines waste when providing managed 
repeat services. 

 
In addition it was proposed that the CCG had an approved ‘grey list’ of 
medicines that defined medicines which should not usually be prescribed as 
they represented poor value for money for the NHS. This would bring the CCG 
in line with other CCGs in the region that had an established ‘grey list’. 
 
Miss Mallet updated the committee that with regards to the community 
managed pharmacy repeat service.  This was being reviewed and other 
options to support patients were being explored.  
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With regards to controlled drugs, Dr Gellia asked if there had been any 
questions and answers from the pain clinic as to why they were prescribing 
tepentadol.  Miss Mallett advised she would follow this up. Dr Pattison noted 
that management of pain was increasingly going down a clinical route rather 
than a psychological route.  Mr Thubron advised that the contracting team was 
aware of this. 
 
Action: Miss Mallett  
 
A discussion took place around how prescribing of controlled drugs in general 
practice and in particular long term prescribing of these drugs could be 
monitored.  Dr Gellia was concerned that controlled drugs were prescribed for 
so long without being flagged up by community pharmacists.  In terms of 
monitoring this, Miss Mallett advised that the measurement had been changed 
and that weighted prescribing in small practices may not have been 
investigated as should have been done.   
 
Mrs Sullivan asked if monitoring controlled drugs was the CCG’s responsibility. 
Dr Pattison advised it was his understanding that this responsibility stood with 
NHS England, There was various elements in relation to controlled drugs.  
There was a dual function with regards to monitoring controlled drugs, one 
was an addiction risk to a staff member and the other was to ensure that 
patients’ needs were being dealt with effectively.   Miss Mallet explained that 
currently NHS England sent out the report which looked at overall CCG trends 
of prescribing and identified outliers.  The CCG would then investigate as 
appropriate and respond back to NHS England.  
 
Mr Gallagher asked that the issue around prescribing of controlled drugs was 
looked into to understand this further.   
 
Action: Miss Mallett to provide an update to the committee on 9 May 2017   
 
With regards to the urgent care provider not providing updated patient group 
directions (PGDs) for authorisation by the CCG, Miss Mallett reported that 
there was now a system in place.  The CCG had assurance that these were 
safe for use but should be authorised by the CCG. Mr Gallagher asked that 
this was included on the risk register.  
 
Action: Miss Mallett  
 
Miss Mallet updated the committee that CHS NHS FT rheumatologists had 
assisted with the development of the draft musculoskeletal chapter on the 
formulary which was based on the one produced by Gateshead.  Dr Pattison 
noted that Gateshead general practices had a slightly different monitoring 
process.  Miss Mallett advised that this was an initial draft and changes would 
be made where appropriate for Sunderland.  
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Dr Gillespie queried whether the PGDs for urgent care centres were the 
CCG’s and who approved them.  Miss Mallett replied they were and were 
approved through provider contracts.    

 
The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the 
progress and on-going concerns and NOTED that appropriate action was 
being taken to address on-going concerns 

   
2017/59 Risk Register Report    
 
 Ms Cornell presented the risk register report. The purpose of the report was to 

provide the committee with the latest update of the CCG’s risk register and 
associated reports.  Ms Cornell highlighted key points, risks and assurances to 
the committee.  

 
 Key assurances 
 The risk register continued to be reviewed on a regular basis by the risk leads 

and risk management group.  The committee received the confirmed minutes 
from the risk management group as a separate item on the agenda. Data 
quality issues and overdue reviews continued to be highlighted to the relevant 
risk leads on a regular basis.   

 
 The appendices attached to the report showed the CCG risk register as at 2 

March 2017.  The appendices were attached as follows: 
 

 Appendix 1 – summary of movement in the key corporate risks  

 Appendix 2 – the CCG’s corporate risk register  
 
 Ms Cornell asked the committee to note that no risks had been closed since 

the last updated register had been received by the committee in January 2017.   
 
 With regards to the blank columns on pages 2 and 3 of the corporate risk 

register report, Ms Cornell advised that this was not a systems issue but due 
to there being no actions identified as the controls had been assessed as 
satisfactory. However Ms Cornell would pick this up at the risk management 
group to challenge this and add notes to the register clarifying why dates and 
actions were not required.   

 
Mr Gallagher referred to the finance risk 1707 and queried that given it was 
now near the year end, whether this risk was still as high as suggested. 
 
Action Ms Cornell to pick this up with David Chandler  

 
The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 
movement in the key corporate risks  
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 PATIENT SAFETY  
 
2017/60 Safeguarding Highlight Report   
 
 Mrs Lagun presented the safeguarding highlight report.  The purpose of the 

report was to advise the committee of key safeguarding activity, associated 
risks and mitigating actions.  Mrs Sullivan noted that appendix 2 of the report 
was restricted and not to be shared outside of the committee. Mrs Lagun 
highlighted key points, risks and assurances to the committee.  

 
 Key Points 
 
 Ofsted had undertaken a further monitoring visit on 2 and 3 February 2017.  

This had focused on looked after children and care leavers services. Early 
indication was that the local authority continued to make progress from a low 
baseline position.  

 
 The Sunderland safeguarding children board (SSCB) section 11 audit had 

been completed and an action plan for the CCG had been developed. The 
CCG had been compliant and the safeguarding team would support the 
primary care action plan.  

 
 Subject to the receipt of satisfactory references the safeguarding team had 

appointed to the vacant named GP for safeguarding adults position within the 
CCG. 

 
 Following the alliance and joint management arrangements implemented by 

STFT and CHSFT, it had been agreed that future designated and named 
safeguarding dashboard reporting meetings would be held jointly between 
Sunderland CCG and South Tyneside CCG.   

   
 Appendix 1 of the report provided an update to the committee regarding 

reviews that had been commissioned by the 3 statutory partnerships that had 
not yet been published. 

 
 The safeguarding team had contributed to the development of the safer 

Sunderland partnership (SSP) annual statutory partnership strategic 
intelligence assessment (PSIA).  A summary of this was in appendix 2 of the 
report.  

 
 Four Children’s serious case reviews (SCRs) were in progress.  These were in 

relation to neglect/personal neglect and partner agencies not being aware of 
the situations.  

 
 On Monday 13th February 2017 Sunderland safeguarding adults board 

published the executive summary report for the ‘Tracy’ safeguarding adult 
review (SAR).   
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 South Tyneside safeguarding adult’s board had identified a case which 
potentially met the criteria for a SAR. The CCG head of safeguarding was to 
attend an extraordinary SAR sub group meeting with South Tyneside 
safeguarding adult’s board to discuss this cross-boundary case. This case 
related to a homeless person that had previously been living in Sunderland.  
All agencies had worked will with this person and a review would be 
undertaken to influence the housing agencies.   

 
 Northumbria Police would be undergoing a full inspection on 24 March 2017 

and partner agencies may be contacted for information. 
 
 A separate report to the committee outlined the key changes to the 

governance and accountability arrangements of both statutory safeguarding 
boards.  

 
 Risks:  
 Mrs Lagun advised the committee there were no risks for decision making.   
 
 The continued vacancy (2 sessions) for named GP safeguarding adults risk 

level had been downgraded on the risk register and would be removed when 
the new named GP was in post. 

 
 There was a risk that, similarly to CCGs and local authorities nationally, the 

CCG may not be fully compliant in relation to commissioning arrangements for 
MCA/DoLS. This was recorded on the CCG risk register. 

 
 Assurances: 
 Ongoing monitoring and governance via the CCG designated and named 

safeguarding assurance group and all statutory partnerships. 
 
 The safeguarding team had developed an MCA options appraisal paper 

setting out a potential approach working with the local authority (LA) for the 
management of MCA/DoLs on behalf of the CCG 

 
 Subject to satisfactory references, the safeguarding team had appointed to the 

vacant named GP for safeguarding adults and it was anticipated that the new 
post holder would take up the position from 1 April 2017. 

 
 Mrs Sullivan thanked Mrs Lagun for the report which had provided the 

committee an overview of the safeguarding work that was being undertaking in 
Sunderland City.  

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 

assurance provided  
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2017/61 Transformation of the Statutory Multi-Agency Safeguarding Governance 
and Accountability Board Arrangements 

 
 Mrs Lagun presented the transformation of the statutory multi-agency 

safeguarding governance and accountability board arrangements report and 
delivered a presentation highlighting key points. The purpose of the report and 
presentation was to update the committee on the key changes to both the 
Sunderland safeguarding children and adult’s boards’ governance and 
accountability arrangements from January 2017.  The presentation is 
appended below:  

 

SSCB -SSAB QRSC 

presentation March 17.p
 

 
 Key Points:  
 
 In response to a range of review activity of the safeguarding systems, the 

independent chairs of both local safeguarding boards had commenced 
transformational processes to strengthen the governance and accountability 
arrangements to enable robust focus on key statutory requirements: 
 

Children: 
• To coordinate what was done by each person or body represented on the 

board for the purposes of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of 
children in the area; and  

• To ensure the effectiveness of what was done by each such person or 
body for those purposes and as a consequence to focus primarily on 
monitoring effectiveness and supporting and influencing what was done 
to safeguard  children and promote their welfare. (Section14 of the 
children act 2004). 

 
Adult: 

• Assuring itself that local safeguarding adults arrangements were in place 
as defined by the care act 2014 and statutory guidance 

• Assuring itself that safeguarding adults practice was person-centred and 
outcome-focused 

 
 The infrastructure of both boards had been reviewed and rationalised and the 

previous joint sub-committees disaggregated, i.e. both boards would now have 
key programme boards/sub-groups focussing on performance and quality 
assurance and workforce and practice development.  

 
 Mrs Lagun advised the committee there were no risks for decision making.   
 
 Assurances: 
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 The CCG designated professionals would continue to provide an advisory role 
to the chief officer/deputy at boards and provide leadership and support to the 
programme boards/sub groups.  In addition the director of nursing, quality and 
safety would chair a programme board of the SSCB. 

 
 Mrs Sullivan referred to slide 5 of the presentation and queried whether 

experts could be co-opted when required.  Mrs Lagun confirmed that they 
could.  

 
 Ms Cornell referred to the former safeguarding adults/safeguarding children 

communications and engagement sub-committee that had been stood down 
and asked where this would be picked up in the new structure.  Mrs Lagun 
advised that this would be via the two programme groups.  Ms Cornell queried 
whether there would be a communications expert on the membership of these 
two groups.  Mrs Lagun advised that both programme groups would link with 
communications. Mrs Lagun and Ms Cornell agreed to discuss this further 
outside of the meeting.  

 
Mrs Sullivan referred to the diagnostic review and whether there was anything 
specific that could be shared with the committee.   Mrs Lagun advised that the 
challenge was to move away from this being local authority led.   

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 

information provided 
 
 2017/62 Safeguard Incident Risk Management System Report Quarter 3 

2016/2017 
 
 Mrs Grant presented the safeguard incident risk management system (SIRMS) 

report.  The purpose of the report was to share the quarter 3 incident report 
that had been provided to GP practices detailing any incident themes, areas of 
learning and responses from provider organisations. Mrs Grant highlighted key 
points, risks and assurances to the committee.  

 
 180 incidents had been reported on SIRMS by member practices during 

quarter 3 which was a decrease of 39% on the previous quarter and an 
increase of 32% compared to the same period last year. 
28% of incidents reported related to CHS NHSFT which was a slight increase 
on the previous quarter. 
 
17% of incidents related to community pharmacy and these incidents were 
shared with NHS England as the commissioner.  23% of incidents reported 
related to internal practice incidents, compared to 40% in quarter 2. 
 
16 practices had not reported any incidents which was deterioration on the 
previous quarter.    
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The report had been shared with GP practices and a presentation based on 
the report delivered at the TITO on 8 March 2017. Practice managers were 
asked to provide feedback on whether the report met their needs or if any 
changes were required and how they would like to receive the report in future 
e.g. through locality commissioning managers. Mrs Grant advised that 
feedback had not yet been received from the TITO although feedback from 
general practices had been positive.  

 
Dr Pattison noted it was useful to see information for all providers and queried 
whether medication incidents were shared care drugs.  Mrs Grant replied 
these were medication incidents that had occurred in general practices, such 
as the correct prescription had not been prescribed or not prescribed at all. 
Mrs Grant added that the numbers were very small.  

 
Dr Pattison noted there were still a number of general practices not reporting 
therefore the report was not a true reflection but was reflective of pressure in 
general practices.  
 
Mrs Sullivan referred to slide 12 which covered “learning identified” and asked 
if the SIRMS newsletter was still sent out to general practices.  Mrs Grant 
confirmed that it was although there was no feedback from this.  Dr Pattison 
highlighted that there were different systems in place that practices used to 
share learning and report into SIRMS.  Mrs Sullivan asked if Mrs Grant could 
look into this.  
 
Action: Mrs Grant  
 
The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the 
contents and AGREED to receive future reports in this format 

 
 QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES  
 
2017/63 Quality Overview Report  
 
 Mrs Grant presented the monthly quality overview report. The purpose of the 

report was to provide the committee with an overview of any quality risks 
associated with the CCG’s commissioned services, detailing any hot spots and 
areas of good practice as well as provide assurances on actions being taken 
to reduce the risks and maintain patient safety.  Mrs Grant highlighted key 
points, risks and assurances to the committee.  

 
 City Hospitals Sunderland (CHS NHSFT) 

NHS England Quality Dashboard (February 2017 data release): Three new 
risks had been added to the dashboard in the recent data release with the trust 
below standard for cancer 62 day waits (urgent GP referrals) (provisional data) 
and diagnostics – over 6 week waits.  
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The trust was also shown as a negative outlier for weekend hospital 
standardised mortality ratio (HSMR) for non-elective activity. Risks already 
identified included the trust as an outlier for hospital standardised mortality 
ratio (HSMR) and methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) and 
below target for A&E 4 hour waits and cancelled operations (28 day target).  
 
Healthcare associated infection (HCAI): CHS NHSFT had reported 5 validated 
cases of MRSA, year to date (Apr – Dec 2016). The trust was on trajectory for 
the number of cases of C. difficile, year to date. The trust and CCG were 
members of the HCAI improvement group. 
 
Safety Thermometer: The trust was below the national average for the 
percentage of harm free care. This was largely being driven by the incidence 
of pressure ulcers which had increased in January 2017, compared to 
December 2016 and was above the England average. The increase in the 
percentage of falls with harm noted in the last report had decreased and was 
now below the England average. Safety thermometer continued to be 
discussed at the quality review group (QRG). 
 
Friends and Family Test: The trust had experienced a further reduction in the 
A&E response rate and the inpatients response rate and maternity question 2 
response rate remained below national average. There were no responses 
received for maternity question 4. The friends and family test was discussed at 
the QRG. 
 
Serious incident reporting: The trust was showing an improvement in the 
number of incidents reported to StEIS within 2 days of identification and in the 
number of 72 hour reports received within timescale. However, 60 day 
reporting remained a challenge for the trust, with 14 outstanding 60 day 
reports from April 2016 to date. The trust presented a proposal to the serious 
incident panel in February 2017 and a further update on progress would be 
provided to the March QRG. 
 
Never Events: There had been no never events were reported in the month of 
January 2017. One never event had been reported in the month of February 
by CHS NHSFT and involved oral oramorph liquid being administered 
intravenously. The trust had stated that no harm had been caused to the 
patient. 
 
CQUIN quarter 2016/17: Due to the cut-off dates for the submission of quarter 
3 evidence, the reconciliation meeting with the trust had not been taken place 
at the time of writing this report. 
 
North East Ambulance Service (NEAS) 
Friends and family test: Percentage recommend scores for patient transport 
services and see and treat remained above the national average.  However 
the number of responses remained low which may not give a true indicative 
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recommend score. The friends and family test continued to be discussed at 
the QRG. 
 
Serious incident reporting: Adherence to timescale remained variable month 
on month. There were currently 4 outstanding 60 day reports from April to 
date. 
 
Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust (NTWFT) 
NHS England Mental Health Quality Dashboard (February 2017 data release): 
No new risks have been added to the dashboard. Risks already identified 
include the trust as below standard for proportion of discharges from hospital 
followed up within 7 days (provisional data). 
 
Friends and Family Test: The trust remained below the national average for 
the percentage of patients who would recommend the service. The trust 
continued to use different methods to engage service users in order to gather 
patient feedback and this was discussed at the QRG. 
 
CQUIN quarter 3 2016/17:  All indicators achieved. 
 
Primary Care 
Friends and Family Test: In December 2016, responses were received from 
approximately 20 practices, although data was suppressed for 5 practices due 
to the low number of responses. The regional percentage recommended score 
was 91%, with Sunderland ranging between 74% and 100%. 10 practices 
were in the range of 90-100% of patients who would recommend the service to 
friends or family members. 
 
Mrs Sullivan queried whether there was a procedure in place to ensure that 
the CCG was notified of never events.  Mrs Grant advised that CHS NHSFT 
director of nursing usually informed the CCG director of nursing and quality 
and medical director when there had been a never event although they had 
forgotten to report one recently.   Mrs Sullivan questioned whether this process 
needed to be strengthened as the chief officer and herself as chair of QSRC 
would normally be made aware of never events.  Mrs Grant advised that never 
event notifications would be sent to the CCG soon after being reported onto 
StEIS.  Mr Gallagher and Mrs Sullivan requested that a policy and procedure 
be identified into how reporting is managed. 
 
Action: Mrs Grant to pick this up and discuss at next QRG with CHS 
NHSFT 
 
Ms Cornell queried whether the CCG still received StEIS notifications.  Mrs 
Grant confirmed that the CCG did and a separate email was also sent to the 
CCG from NECS.  
 
Mrs Sullivan referred to slide 9 “friends and family test” and noted the slide 
showed percentages and asked what the actual numbers were.  
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Action: Mrs Grant to look at the data source and identify the actual 
numbers 
 
Dr Pattison referred to slide 8 “mortality (SHMI and HSMR) and noted that the 
mortality numbers seemed to be quite high.  Mrs Grant advised that this had 
been raised with the trusts but the trusts had not received a CQC notification 
asking to investigate mortality numbers.  Mrs Grant advised that the trusts 
would be asked about the mortality numbers at the QRG meetings. Dr Pattison 
noted the primary concern was how mortality numbers were calculated.  
 
Action: Mrs Grant to pick up mortality numbers with both trusts at the 
next QRGs and provide a verbal update to the committee on 11 April 
2017 

 
The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 
content 

 
2017/65 Learning Disabilities and Mortality Review (LeDer Programme) Report  
 
 Mrs Lagun presented the learning disabilities and mortality review (LeDeR 

programme) report.  The purpose of the report was to advise the committee of 
the national LeDeR programme and how it interfaced with other statutory 
review processes and to propose a model for local implementation of the 
LeDeR programme in Sunderland.  Mrs Lagun highlighted key points, risks 
and assurances to the committee.  

 
 Key Points:  
 The LeDeR programme was commissioned by the healthcare quality 

improvement partnership (HQIP) on behalf of NHS England and delivered by 
the University of Bristol.  It was established as a result of one of the key 
recommendations of the confidential inquiry into premature deaths of people 
with learning disabilities 2013 (CIPOLD). The key aim was to support local 
areas to review the deaths of people with learning disabilities aged 4 – 74 
years, irrespective of whether the death was expected or not, the cause of 
death or the place of death. This would enable them to identify good practice 
and what had worked well and also where improvements to the provision of 
care could be made. 

  
 The LeDeR programme interfaced with investigatory processes and other 

statutory reviews/processes, for example, the child death review process and 
serious case reviews and, once finalised, the local process would be shared 
with the relevant statutory boards. 

 
 Appendix 1 of the report outlined the proposed local implementation of the 

programme.   
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 Risks for decision making: This process could prove to be labour intensive and 
this was currently being discussed with the learning disabilities network and 
NHS England. No additional resource had been identified for the review 
programme within provider services or CCGs. 

 
 Assurances:  The local arrangements were currently working in practice with 

recent cases being subject ti an initial review, a multi-agency review (in 
collaboration with the Sunderland safeguarding adult board) and a child death 
review due to be reported to the child death overview panel in March 2017. 

 
 Mrs Sullivan thanked Mrs Lagun for the very logical report and noted it was 

reassuring to see that this work was being carried out.   
 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the 

contents and APPROVED the proposed local arrangements outlined in 
appendix 1 of the report and AGREED to receive an update in September 
2017 

 
2017/64 Quarterly Quality Update - North East Ambulance Service Foundation 

Trust 
 
 Mrs Grant presented the quarterly quality update report. The purpose of the 

report was to provide the committee with an ambulance service clinical quality 
quarterly update which headlined the key issues and provided assurance that 
actions were being undertaken where appropriate.  The report was based on 
the CCG’s main provider, NEASFT.  This was a revised style of report to 
include benchmarking where possible.  Mrs Grant highlighted key points, risks 
and assurances to the committee.  

 
 Ambulance handover delays: In addition to increased demand, vehicle 

availability reduced due a sharp increase in hospital handover delays. Time 
lost to handover delays increased by 440 hours between November and 
December 2016 to reach 983 hours lost. Total handover time lost in January 
2017 was 1384 hours, 312 hours were lost at Sunderland Royal hospital, 
which accounted for 22.5% of the total time lost. 

 
 Workforce (sickness absence): NEASFT reported to the QRG on 27 January 

2017 that overall, the trust-wide absence rate had increased slightly by 0.25% 
and was now 7.47% compared with the previous month.  

 
 Workforce (recruitment): A number of activities were underway to recruit 

paramedics including, securing students about to graduate, overseas 
recruitment and a rolling advert in place. Recruitment and retention continued 
to be challenging in the emergency operations centre with the loss of ten staff 
that had left in November. Recruitment was ongoing with 27 new recruits being 
inducted in January and February 2017, and further adverts were currently 
open. NEASFT had received a number of expressions of interest from GPs 
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wishing to work sessions in the clinical hub and these were currently being 
progressed.  

 
 Care Quality Commission (CQC) report: NEASFT received a ‘good’ rating from 

the CQC following its inspection in April 2016. As a mark of appreciation, the 
board had agreed to fund an additional 7.5 hours annual leave to all staff. 

 
 Emergency Care Performance: December 2016 saw a decrease in overall 

trust wide emergency care performance.  Overall red performance for the  
CCG in December 2016 was 51.64% (75% target) and performance across all  
CCGs ranged from 41.23% to 69.04%. Red 19 performance for the CCG was 
at 85.83% (95% target) for December 2016 and performance across all CCGs 
ranged from 71.80% to 90.26%. In addition to emergency care performance, 
increased winter demand throughout the region put pressure on services. 999 
and 111 call taking service levels were not achieved in December 2016, 999 
call-taking missed the service level by 0.55% for the first time since November 
2015. Mrs Grant advised that urgent and emergency care would be covered in 
the next CHS NHSFT QRG.   

 
 Clinical Audit Dashboard: NEASFT were above the national average for 5 out 

of 8 ambulance quality indicators for the latest published data (August 2016) 
and achieved the highest performance nationally for Primary Percutaneous 
Coronary Intervention and survival to discharge utstein. 

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 

contents 
 
2017/66 Clinical Quality Assurance Visit Report   
 
 Mrs Grant presented the clinical quality assurance visit report.  The purpose of 

the report was to highlight the key findings and any recommendations made 
following the clinical quality assurance announced and unannounced visits to 
NTWFT.   Mrs Grant highlighted key points, risks and assurances to the 
committee.  

 
 The following reports were submitted to the NTWFT QRG on 23 February 

2017. The visit to Rose Lodge, carried out by South Tyneside CCG, had been 
included for information as the CCG also commissioned beds from this unit. 

 
 Rose Lodge – visit date 8 December 2016 (announced) 

Key points and assurances: 
This had been a very positive visit and the visiting team had been impressed 
with the responsiveness and passion of the staff who were clearly very proud 
of the service that they delivered. 

 
One recommendation had been made, for action by CCG representatives, 
involving the facilitation of information sharing with regards to 
safeguarding/concern notifications.  
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One concern had been raised by a member of the visiting team about the level 
of detailed information shared and this had been fed back to the trust to 
consider to ensure that the appropriate level of information was being shared 
with official visitors. 
 
The trust highlighted difficulties in accessing primary care services for the 
patients in the unit as all local GP lists were currently closed. The CCG 
confirmed that patients receiving care and treatment in Rose Lodge were 
inpatients of NTWFT and therefore the trust would be expected to meet all of 
their medical needs including out of hours oversight.  
 
Mitford Unit, Northgate Hospital, Northumberland – visit date 1919 January 
2017 
Key points and assurances 
There were no areas of improvement identified for the Mitford Unit and the 
visiting team had been impressed with the level of passion and commitment 
demonstrated by the staff during their visit. The visiting team also suggested 
that the expertise and learning developed by the unit could be extended to 
community staff to improve care for autistic patients in the CCG community as 
a preventative approach. 
 
The Unit staff requested that consideration and agreement of multi-disciplinary 
team proposed discharge packages by the CCG be carried out as quickly as 
possible to ensure a smooth transition to community services for patients. 
 
It was noted that there were currently some staff vacancies.  However the unit 
was currently under capacity and to mitigate vacancies overtime had been 
offered. To develop future resilience in staffing levels and to promote staff 
development, the unit offered opportunities for staff on neighboring units to 
work on the unit and develop new skill sets. 
 
Mr Gallagher queried how feedback from the CCG was given to organisations 
concerned as credit was due with regards to these 2 visits.  Mrs Grant advised 
that both of these visits had been discussed at CHS NHSFT and STFT QRGs 
and both trusts had been commended.   Mr Gallagher stated he would like a 
letter to be sent to John Lawler asking for the relevant staff to be 
congratulated.  
 
Action: Mrs Grant to draft a letter for Mr Gallagher 

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the 
 content 
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 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 

2017/67 Northumberland Tyne and Wear Foundation Trust Quality Review Group   
minutes, 24 November 2016 

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the minutes for information  

 
2017/68 Northern Doctors Urgent Care Quality Review Group minutes, 14 December 

2016 
 

 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 

2017/69 South Tyneside Foundation Trust Quality Review Group minutes, 14 
December 2016 

 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 

 
2017/70 Designated and Named Safeguarding Assurance Group minutes, 20 January 

2017 
 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/71 Communications and Engagement Steering group minutes, 2 December 2016 
 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/72 Cycle of Business  
 
 Mrs. Sullivan presented the committee’s cycle of business for 2016/17 and 

requested this was used to ensue reports were submitted to the committee as 
required. In-depth discussions would be added going forward. 

 
 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
2017/73 Seeing is Believing - Unique Court Observer Scheme 
 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the link for information  
 
2017/74 Mrs Sullivan advised the committee that there was a development session planned 

for the committee in October 2017 and that further information would be shared 
nearer the time.  

 
2017/75 Date and time of next meeting 
 
 Tuesday 11 April 2017, 2pm - 5pm, Joseph Swan Suite,  
 Pemberton House 
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Signed:  
 
 
 
 
Date:   11 April 2017  
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

 

23 MAY 2017 

Report Title: 
Minutes of the Quality, Safety and Risk 
Committee held on 11 April 2017.   

Purpose of report 

The purpose of this report is to highlight the key points, risks and assurances from the minutes of 
the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee (QSRC) held on 11 April 2017.   

Key points, risks and assurances 

GOVERNANCE 
 
CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework Exception Report  
Key points 
Due to the availability of data for the new indicators and baseline positions, a significant proportion 
of the dashboard has not been populated and the BI team are in the process of establishing data 
flows from national and local data to serve as a proxy (where available). Reporting has commenced 
on the quality premium for 2016/17.  This will not be fully populated until baseline positions have 
been published and data is flowing nationally. 
 
Annual Effectiveness and Terms of Reference of the Joint SCCG/STCCG HCAI Improvement 
Group   
Key points 
The annual effectiveness review and Terms of Reference for the joint HCAI Improvement Group 
was presented to the committee. It was agreed that this would be deferred to the May 2017 
meeting due to queries regarding membership of the Group. 
 
Annual Effectiveness and Terms of Reference of the Named and Designated Professionals 
Safeguarding Assurance Group 
Key points 
The annual effectiveness review and Terms of Reference for the Named and Designated 
Professionals Safeguarding Assurance Group was presented to the committee to provide 
assurance that the CCG was fulfilling its statutory responsibilities in accordance with the Children 
Act (2004) and the Care Act (2014).  The Designated and Named Professionals Safeguarding 
Assurance Group will return to a joint meeting between Sunderland CCG and South Tyneside CCG 
and the final Terms of Reference will be brought to the committee on 9 May 2017. 
Risks 

 There is a potential risk that the current governance and accountability arrangements will not 
support the emerging statutory framework for safeguarding children following the 
recommendations from the Wood Review (2016).   
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Assurances 

 The Children and Social Work Bill continues its journey through Parliament and a workshop for 
key health leads will be held in September 2016 in preparation for the new duties and 
responsibilities to ensure local arrangements meet the requirements. 

 The Named and Designated Professionals Safeguarding Assurance Group has met the 
objectives outlined in the Terms of Reference. 
 

PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
PPI Highlight Report and Transforming Participation Action Plan   
The purpose of the report was to provide the committee with an update on engagement and 
involvement activity during the period February to March 2017 and included future consultation 
activity, ensuring best practice is followed. 
 Risks 

 Sunderland health forum is not an effective vehicle for open public involvement. 

 The CCG may not be meeting its statutory duties in relation to undertaking formal consultations 
as part of the commissioning function but mitigations were being put in place to ensure best 
practice was being followed. 

Assurances 

 Work is continuing in relation to developing the annual cycle of business for the Sunderland 
Health Forums to ensure this aligned to the CCG’s 2 year operational plan. 

 Work is under way to attract new participants to the Sunderland Health Forums.   

 The managed list for Roker GP Practice has been dispersed and letters will be sent to patients 
within the next two weeks. 

 GP engagement for the ‘All Together Better’ Vanguard work ended on 9.4.17. 
 A formal consultation around urgent care will be taking place in September 2017 and all public 

feedback will be reviewed by the CCG before any decisions are made. 

 Additional resources have been appointed by NECS and the CCG to provide support. 
 
Practice Participation Group (PPG) End of Year Report 
The final report in relation to the practice participation groups (PPGs) project undertaken by the 
Pioneering Care Partnership (PCP) on behalf of the CCG during the period 1 April 2016 to 31 
March 2017 was presented to the committee. 
Key points 

 All practices are required to have a PPG as part of their contract.  The CCG had undertaken a 
benchmarking exercise in December 2015 which showed a significant variation in the number 
of PPGs that had been established and also those that were operating effectively. 

 The CCG commissioned PCP, who held the contract for Healthwatch Sunderland, to support 
the development of patient participation groups (PPGs) for a fixed period of one year 2016/17.A 
report was provided by Healthwatch Sunderland to outline their arrangements to hand work 
over and mechanisms that were in place to allow practices to continue to develop their PPGs. 

 It was noted that the project had delivered some improvements, though not as much as the 
CCG would have like. This project will be picked up by the new Communications and 
Engagement Support Officer when in post. A further update will be provided to the committee 
as part of the June 2017 PPI Highlight Report. 

 
QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES 
 
Quality Overview Report 
Key points 
The report provided the committee with an overview of quality risks associated with the CCGs 
commissioned services, detailing hot spots and areas of good practice that had arisen and 
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provided assurances of the actions being taken to reduce the risks and maintain patient safety. It 
was noted that acute and community services would not be discussed as they were covered by the 
quarterly quality report for acute and community services. 
Risk 

 One GP practice scored 57% recommended score in the Friends and Family Test (FFT). 
Assurances 

 The overall score in the 2016 NHS Staff Survey for NEASFT was above the national average 
when ranked against similar trusts. 

 FFT responses were received in respect of 19 practices for January 2017. 10 practices were in 
the range of 90-100% recommended and 7 practices in the range 70-89%. FFT responses will 
be discussed at the Local Quality Group (primary medical services). 

 
Quarterly Quality Update – Acute and Community Services 
Key points 
The report provided the committee with an acute and community services clinical quality quarterly 
update report for the CCGs main providers, headlining the key issues and providing assurance that 
actions were being undertaken where appropriate.  
Key risks 

 Never Events reported at CHSFT and STFT. 

 5 cases of methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) reported at CHSFT year to date. 

 CHSFT remains an outlier for hospital standard mortality ratio (HSMR) for the eighth month. 

 CHSFT A&E 4 hour waits. 

 There are a number of indicators in the National Diabetes Inpatient Audit (2016) where CHSFT 
is below the national average or performance has deteriorated. 

 Reduction in Friends and Family Test (FFT) response rates at CHSFT. 
 
Assurances 

 Root cause analysis investigations are under way for the reported never events and will be 
reviewed at the Serious Incident Panel. Serious Incidents are a standing agenda item at the 
QRGs. 

 CHSFT presented a mortality report at the quality review group (QRG) in March 2017 
highlighting that the Trust are low with regards to palliative care coding which may have a 
negative impact on the HSMR.  A meeting is planned with palliative care team representatives 
to review coding to address this matter. The Trust is also an outlier in mortality related to stroke 
and pneumonia and clinical teams are to attend the mortality review group to highlight changes 
in practice and discuss improvements. Performance impacts on quality are routinely discussed 
at the QRG. 

 Assurance was provided on the impact of A&E 4 hour performance on quality in CHSFT. No 
serious incidents have been reported by ED since August 2016 and the staffing rate has 
remained above the 75% standard in the latest reporting period (Nov 16). 

 The National Diabetes Inpatient Audit (2016) will be discussed at the May CHSFT QRG. 

 CHSFT are integrating FFT with other patient experience data collection to attempt to improve 
response rates. 
 

Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group Update 
A national review of Quality Surveillance Groups is under way and further updates will be provided 
to the committee when available. 
 
Quality in Care Homes Update 
Key points 
A verbal update was provided on the following areas: 
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 All homes audited from May to December 2016 have received an action plan and received a 
validation visit or self-assessment carried out by the local authority (LA). 

 1 home has received support from the LA and a further quality improvement assessment has 
been carried out in September 2016 which shows significant improvement. The CQC are due to 
carry out a re-inspection of the home as they are still rated as ‘inadequate’ in the report 
published November 2016. 

 2 homes are noted to have changed ownership, with one of the homes having a name change. 

 There is an on-going safeguarding investigation taking place in one home; however no further 
incidents have been reported to date. A further update will be provided in the next report. 
 

Serious Incidents Lessons Learned Report 
Key points 

 The report detailed the types of lessons learned documented by the CCGs main providers in 
their root cause analysis reports submitted as a result of serious incident investigations. The 
report included serious incidents that were closed during the first two quarters of 2016/17.   

 Across CHSFT and STFT overall learning in the reporting period was similar, with the key areas 
of documentation and assessments highlighted, which were also the most frequently identified 
learning areas in 2015/16. CHSFT and STFT also identified adherence to trust policies as a key 
area. 

 Across all CCG areas the most frequently reported incident type reported by NTWFT was 
‘apparent/actual/suspected self-harm incident’ which accounted for 46 serious incidents. 
Learning identified by NTWFT was very similar to that highlighted by the acute trusts, with 
documentation and assessments being the most frequently reported categories. 

 Across all CCG areas the most frequently reported incident type reported by NEASFT was 
‘treatment delay’ which accounted for 36 serious incidents. Learning identified by NEASFT 
included issues with capacity, pathways, internal communication and the requirement to 
improve joint decision making. 

 Across all trusts identified in the report, CHSFT had reported a greater proportion of lessons 
learned to incidents reported, with 2.5 lessons learned identified for every incident reported. 
NEASFT had the lowest proportion of lessons learned to incidents reported, with 1 lesson 
learned for every incident reported.  

 Similar learning relating to documentation and assessments was identified across trusts, with 
the requirement for this to be timely, accurate, concise and clear. 

 
Clinical Quality Assurance Visit Report   
Key points 
The report detailed positive visits carried out by the CCG to CHSFT to the main outpatients 
department (6.12.16) and across the stroke pathway (7.2.17).  Recommendations have been 
discussed at the CHSFT QRG and the Trust has requested that pragmatic recommendations are 
made following visits. 
 
Items for information  

 City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust Quality Risk Assurance Report. 

 Joint SCCG/STCCG HCAI Improvement Group minutes, 30 November 2016 

 Communications and Engagement Steering group minutes, 23 February 2017 

 City Hospitals Sunderland Foundation Trust Quality Review group minutes, 12 January 2017 

 North East Ambulance Service Foundation Trust Quality Review group minutes, 27 January 
2017 
Named and Designated Professionals Safeguarding Assurance Group  minutes, 20 January 
2017 
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Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to receive the report for assurance. 

Sponsor/approving director   Ann Fox, Director of Nursing, Quality and Safety 

Report author Michelle Grant, Clinical Quality Manager 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming 
services  

 

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Any relevant legal/statutory issues 

N/A 

Are the identified risks on the risk register?  

Yes 

If issue/report has been previously reviewed please specify meeting and date 

N/A 

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

No 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

Clinicians at QRG and QSRC meetings 

Any current or expected impact 
on patient outcomes/experience? 

Yes 

Has there been member practice 
and/or other stakeholder 
engagement if needed?   

Engagement with provider organisations, Sunderland City 
Council and NHS England.  



 NHS Official Item: 8.1  
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Quality Safety and Risk Committee  
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 April 2017  

Joseph Swan Suite, Pemberton House  
 

Present:  
 Mrs Aileen Sullivan Lay Member for Patient Public Involvement (chair) 
 Dr Claire Bradford, Medical Director 
 Professor Mike Bramble, Secondary Care Clinician, Governing Body Member 

Ms Deborah Cornell, Head of Corporate Affairs  
Mrs Ann Fox, Director of Nursing Quality and Safety  

 Dr Karthik Gellia, Executive GP  
Mrs Gillian Gibson, Director of Public Health  
Dr Jackie Gillespie, Medicines Optimisation Elected GP  
Mrs Michelle Grant, NECS, Clinical Quality Manager 

 Mr Matthew Thubron, Head of Contracting and Performance (left at 3pm) 
 
In Attendance: 
 
  Mrs Janet Farline, Clinical Quality Officer  
  Mrs Helen Fox, Senior Communications Manager, NECS (for item 2017/86) 
  Mrs Eleanor Hardy, PA (minutes) 
 
2017/76 Welcome and Introductions 
 
 Mrs Sullivan welcomed everyone present to the meeting and reminded 

members of the purpose of the committee.  Those present were advised that 
for accuracy of the minutes the meeting would be recorded.  The recording 
would only be retained until the minutes were written and confirmed then 
would be destroyed. Mrs Sullivan questioned whether there were any 
objections to the meeting being recorded. All present confirmed there were no 
objections.  

 
2017/77 Apologies for Absence 
 
 Mr David Gallagher, Chief Officer  

Mrs Deanna Lagun, Head of Safeguarding  
 Miss Elizabeth Mallett, Medicines Optimisation Pharmacist 
   
2017/78 Declarations of Interest 
 
 Dr Gellia declared an interest with regards to Roker medical practice.  Mrs 

Sullivan reminded all present that if any declarations became apparent during 
the meeting these should be declared at the time of the relevant agenda item 
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2017/79 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 March 2017  
 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2017 were agreed as a true and 

accurate record of the meeting. 
 
2017/80 Matters arising 
 
 Professor Bramble referred to page 8, QIPP initiatives “reducing the amount of 

gluten free foods that were provided on prescription” and noted that this had 
been superseded by NHS England’s national consultation and survey around 
stopping prescribing for gluten free food.  Dr Bradford noted that the survey 
was quite short and she would encourage people to complete it.  

 
2017/81 Action Log   
  All actions were discussed and updated. Actions 2, 4, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 17, 20, 

23, 25, 26, 29 and 30 were closed and would be removed from the action log.  
 
2017/82 Summary sheet   
         
 Mrs Grant presented the summary sheet to the committee. The purpose of the 

summary sheet was to confirm the minutes from the quality, safety and risk 
committee held on 14 March 2017 and approval of the cover sheet prior to 
their submission to the governing body meeting on 23 May 2017.  

 
 It was noted that on page 1 of the summary sheet “urgent care board” should 

read as “A&E delivery board”.  
 
 Action: Mrs Grant  
 
 The quality safety and risk committee RECEIVED the summary sheet and 

minutes and APPROVED both for submission to the governing body meeting 
on 23 May 2017 

 
 GOVERNANCE  
 
2017/83 Improvement and Assessment Framework Bi-Annual Exception Report   
 
 Mr Thubron presented the improvement and assessment framework exception 

report. The purpose of the report was to provide the committee with  details of 
the current under-performing measures which were part of the CCG 
Improvement and assessment framework (IAF) and provide assurance of the 
actions being taken where necessary.  Mr Thubron highlighted key points, 
risks and assurances.  

 
 Key Points:  
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For 2016/17, the new CCG IAF had been introduced to replace the existing 
framework and performance dashboard (delivery dashboard).  Due to the 
availability of data for the new indicators and baseline positions, a significant 
proportion of the dashboard was not yet populated.  The business intelligence 
team was in the process of establishing data flows from national data and local 
data to serve as a proxy (where available). 

 
Reporting had also commenced on the quality premium for 2016/17.  Again, 
this would not be fully populated until baseline positions had been published 
and data was flowing nationally.  Baseline positions for each of the new 
indicators for the whole framework including the quality premium were 
expected to be published incrementally throughout the year.  Baseline 
positions for a number of indicators were published in July and these could be 
found in the report appendices. 

 
Referral to treatment (RTT) performance remained above the national 
standard.  Individual specialty pressures remained within respiratory medicine, 
ENT and orthopaedics, the latter related to sustainability now that the CCG 
was delivering RTT.  Dermatology was currently delivering but pressures still 
remained around sustainability. 

 
Accident and emergency four hour wait performance at City Hospitals 
Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (CHS NHSFT) remained under the 95% 
standard with deterioration in performance in quarters three and four.  
Pressures remained to deliver the city wide performance due to the pressures 
at CHS NHSFT. 

 
Cancer 62 days remained a risk relating to the cancer targets due to pressures 
in lung and urology.  Performance for the year to date showed the CCG was 
still above the standard as at quarter three but issues still remained with longer 
waits and volumes at CHS NHSFT in urology.  Increased theatre space had 
been signed off and staff numbers had increased.  A difference should be 
seen within 3 to 5 month. Mr Thubron advised that the final figures had been 
received from CHS NHSFT and the CCG would meet its performance.  

 
Ambulance response times continued to be a significant pressure in 2016/17 
with performance for 2016/17 still below the standard for red 1 and red 2 calls.   

 
Non-elective activity was also a significant pressure for the CCG with 
increased admissions, particularly short stay admissions despite significant 
investment in out of hospital care and a focus on reducing admissions. 

 
Diagnostics carried out within six weeks was a new pressure for quarter four 
2016/17 due to increased waits in echocardiography at CHS NHSFT. 

 
Risk:  Accident and emergency four hour waits at CHS NHSFT for 2016/17. 
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Mitigating Actions: Year to date performance was below the 95% standard with 
performance at 92.94% as at 28th March 2017.   The surge group continued to 
meet and CHS NHSFT continued to implement the action plan and the A&E 
delivery board was now in place reviewing progress against the A&E delivery 
plan.  GP led urgent care centre performance remained above the 95% 
standard so performance for Sunderland overall was above the 95% standard.  
Discussions were also on-going around the further development of an A&E 
delivery board which had been mandated nationally.  Handover delays 
remained a significant pressure and discussions were taking place in the 
urgent care board around actions being taken to improve performance.  
NEASFT and CHS NHSFT were currently looking at scoping out some work to 
improve the interface between the emergency department and NEASFT to 
improve handovers.  CHS NHSFT were also due to move into the emergency 
department new build in May 2017. 

 
Risk: Referral to treatment at CHS NHSFT, particularly orthopaedics, 
respiratory medicine and emerging risks for dermatology at County Durham 
and Darlington NHS Foundation Trust (CDDFT) and South Tyneside NHS 
Foundation Trust (STFT). 
 
Mr Thubron advised with regards to respiratory medicine,  the CCG had asked 
for an updated action plan on sleep study patients. With regards to 
orthopaedics, Mr Thubron noted that this was a challenge as the demand had 
decreased but the waiting times were not reducing.  CHS NHSFT had picked 
this up and had set orthopaedics back up into performance recovery.  The 
CCG had asked CHS NHSFT for an action plan which would be included in 
the assurance report submitted to the committee on 9 May 2017. 

 
Mitigating Actions: Despite being above trajectory in April 2016, performance 
within orthopaedics had deteriorated during June 2016 and was  due to 
increased trauma.  Pressures remained into quarter three.   
 
The continued work of the community MSK service was reducing demand in 
secondary care and the CCG continued to work with the provider and primary 
care to ensure patients were being seen in the most appropriate setting.    
 
Regarding respiratory medicine, CHS NHSFT had confirmed that they had 
recruited two consultants, one a locum to increase capacity short term and 
then a permanent consultant who would start early in 2017/18.  Dermatology 
continued to deliver the standard but there were still risks around 
sustainability.  Work was on-going with STFT and the CCG about a model 
going forward.  Ear, nose and throat and rheumatology were also now 
delivering as at February 2017. 

 
Risk: Cancer 62 days, particularly urology and lung 

 
Mitigating Actions: The CCG was continuing to deliver the cancer 
constitutional standards for 2016/17 on a year to date basis.  This was despite 
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pressures in urology at CHS NHSFT which were planned at the start of the 
year.  CHS NHSFT continued to focus on reducing the number of long waits in 
urology and the number continued to decrease, which was encouraging.  CHS 
NHSFT had approved a business case to increase the capacity on-site at 
Sunderland Royal Hospital (SRH) but this would take time to implement.  Work 
was also on-going in the cancer task and finish group to implement the cancer 
plan. 

 
Risk: Ambulance response calls, particularly red 1 and red 2   

 
Mitigating Actions: Regional escalation of NEASFT response times and 
implementation of a recovery plan to improve response times at NEASFT 
remained in place.  NEASFT continued to focus on recruitment due to 
workforce pressures and increased demand and lost time due to handover 
delays.  The CCG would be meeting CHS NHSFT and NEASFT in the coming 
weeks to understand the actions that needed to be taken to reduce handover 
delays and initiatives to reduce demand into CHS NHSFT.  The Sunderland 
paramedic pathfinder project was introduced in May 2016 to run for one year 
and so far this was showing a reduction in ambulances into secondary care 
utilising alternative dispositions such as urgent care centres and recovery at 
home. 
 
Mr Thubron noted that in terms of the paramedic pathfinder pilot, it remained 
to be seen whether NEASFT would include this as part of its core offer. Mrs 
Fox noted that ambulance handover delays were much more sporadic rather 
than being a sustained issue.   
 
Mrs Fox advised that the NEASFT performance issues required a whole 
system oversight on quality and that this had been raised at the QRG and the 
Cumbrian and North East quality surveillance group (QSG).  The QSG was 
exploring how to review NEASFT performance across the whole system.  
NEASFT was looking at all SIs and when they occurred; e.g. if an SI was due 
to a vehicle delay the whole system had a part to play.  NHS England was 
linking in with NEASFT to understand what the improvement trajectory looked 
like across all indicators. This needed to then link into the urgent and 
emergency care network.   
 
Mrs Fox reported that Durham Dales, Easington and Sedgefield CCG were 
now the lead commissioner for NEASFT. Mrs Fox added that assurance from 
a quality perspective was that the chair of the NEAS QRG was the director of 
nursing quality and safety at Northumberland CCG.  A process had been put in 
place so that all CCGs could be involved in the agenda setting and in terms of 
flow of assurance there was every opportunity for CCGs to participate.  

 
Risk: Activity Trajectories – Elective and Non Elective 

 
Mitigating Actions: Detailed and enhanced reporting of non-elective inpatients 
was in place to understand the levels of non-elective admissions going through 
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the system as part of the CCG out of hospital transformation programme which 
included community Integrated teams, Recovery at home and ambulatory 
care. 
 
Each programme was being evaluated and patients’ impact tracked to 
understand the impact of the service and also identify any lessons learnt or 
mitigating actions needed to address activity over performance. Mr Thubron 
updated the committee that the audit had concluded that at least one third of 
re-admissions could have been avoided. A report and a list of 
recommendations from the audit would be produced.  

 
Assurances: Monthly performance meetings were in place with providers 
which were a formal sub-group of the contract review group which reviewed 
provider performance and actions plans put in place to mitigate performance 
risk.  The CCG was also in the process of agreeing an audit into emergency 
admissions with CHS NHSFT to ensure patients were being treated in the 
most appropriate setting. 

 
Monthly reports were going to the executive committee and bi-monthly reports 
to the governing body. 

 
Monthly provider management meeting which provided a forum to escalate 
performance risks and issues with providers 

 
Robust governance arrangements in place for the out of hospital work and 
dedicated programme management office supporting the Vanguard.  

 
 Mrs Sullivan referred to the new cohort of students at NEASFT and queried 

whether there was anything in place to retain these students once they had 
been trained or would they be able to be employed elsewhere.  Mrs Fox 
advised that NEASFT was exploring a number of HR initiatives to ensure that 
when the training had been completed, students remained with NEAS.  

              
 The committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the current position for each 

under-performing indicator in the CCG assurance framework and NOTED the 
actions being taken to address the performance issues 

 
2017/84  Annual Effectiveness and terms of Reference of the Joint SCCG/STCCG 

HCAI Improvement Group   
  

Mrs Fox presented the annual effectiveness and terms of reference of the 
Joint SCCG/STCCG HCAI Improvement group to the committee.  Mrs Fox 
advised that the purpose of the joint SCCG/STCCG HCAI improvement group 
was to provide leadership and ensure a consistent whole system approach to 
preventing and controlling HCAI, specifically, Clostridium difficile, MRSA, 
MSSA and E.coli blood stream infections.  
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In line with its terms of reference, this group reports to the committee  and also 
the STCCG quality and patient safety Committee .  The group must undertake 
an annual review of its performance and provide an account of its work.  Mrs 
Fox advised that key points were; refresh of action plan, monitoring 
implementation of agreed actions, monitoring outcome/impact and establishing 
a robust review process for peer review Clostridium difficile infection CDI to 
determine if avoidable/unavoidable.  
 
Due to further clarification being required  in relation to the membership of the 
group, the quality safety and risk committee AGREED that this report would be 
refreshed and deferred until 9 May 2017. 
 
Action: Mrs Fox  
 

2017/85 Annual Effectiveness and Terms of Reference of the Named and 
Designated Professionals Safeguarding Assurance Group  

 
 Mrs Fox presented the annual effectiveness and terms of reference of the 

named and designated professionals safeguarding assurance group.   The 
purpose of the report was to provide assurance to the committee that the CCG 
was fulfilling its statutory responsibilities in accordance with the Children Act 
(2004) and the Care Act (2014).  Mrs Fox highlighted key points, risks and 
assurances as follows:   

 

 The group had met on a 6 weekly basis and replaced the previous 
strategic safeguarding group in May 2016.   

 The safeguarding highlight reports had included specific information from 
the group as from November 2016 and the minutes  were also shared with 
the committee for assurance 

 All provider quality review groups (QRGs) now included a specific agenda 
item on safeguarding and the relevant dashboard information was shared.  

 
Assurances:  the group had met its objectives outlined in the terms of 
reference (appendix one of the report) 

 
Risks:  there was a potential future risk that the current governance and 
accountability arrangements would not support the emerging statutory 
framework for safeguarding children following the recommendations from the 
Wood review 2016.  The children and social work bill continued its journey 
through Parliament and a workshop for key health leads would be held in 
September 2017 in preparation for the new duties and responsibilities to 
ensure local arrangements meet the requirements.  
 
Mrs Fox updated the committee that the group would like to reinstate this as  
a joint meeting with South Tyneside CCG and updated  terms of reference 
would be brought back to the committee on 9 May 2017. 
 
Action: Mrs Lagun/Ms Cornell 
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As part of the annual review of the committee and its sub groups, Mrs Fox 
advised that the SI panel would be included as an appendix of the report 
being prepared by Ms Cornell and that in next year’s annual review all of the 
QRGs would also be incorporated into the main report as appendices. 

 
 The committee RECIEVED the report for information and assurance. 
 

  PATIENT EXPERIENCE  
 
2017/86 PPI Highlight Report and Transforming Participation Action Plan   
 

  Ms H Fox presented the PPI highlighted report and transforming participation 
action plan. The purpose of the report was to provide the committee with an 
update on engagement and involvement activity during the period February to 
March 2017.  Mrs H Fox highlighted key points, risks and assurances to the 
committee.  

 
 Key points 
 
 The report was divided into the following four sections: 

 Summary of the engagement work undertaken – this included path to 
excellence, all together better, GP engagement and looking after yourself 
programme 

 Key meetings – this included Sunderland health forum and equality and 
diversity group 

 Summary of work that would be undertaken from April onwards – including 
MCP, urgent care, path to excellence and speech and language 

 Regional engagement  

 Recruitment update 
 
 Risks 

Sunderland Health Forum was not an effective vehicle for open public 
involvement. This was currently being reviewed to ensure dates matched key 
activities for CCG business and ideas about how reach and participation could 
be increased. 
 
The CCG may not be meeting its statutory duties in relation to undertaking 
formal consultations as part of the commissioning function but mitigations were 
being put in place to ensure best practice was being followed.  Ms Cornell 
advised that this risk had been recommended for closure as formal training 
had now taken place with key members of staff.  This would come to the 
committee at its next meeting as part of the risk register update. 

 
 Assurances 
 Work was continuing in relation to developing the annual cycle of business for 

the Sunderland health forums to ensure this aligned to the CCG’s 2 year 
operational plan.   
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 The information provided in the report detailed the engagement and future 

consultation activity that had been carried out ensuring that best practice was 
followed at all times.  

 
 Ms H Fox updated the committee that the managed list for the Roker practice  

had been dispersed and letters would be going out to all patients within the 
next two weeks.  

 
 With regards to the ‘All Together Better’ vanguard work, GP engagement had 

finished on 9 April 2017.  Church View had organised some drop in sessions 
for patients.  

 
 The health forum dates had been planned for May, September and November 

2017 and were aligned to key business. 
 
 A formal consultation would be taking place in September 2017 around urgent 

care.   All public feedback would be reviewed by the CCG before any 
decisions were made.  

 
 Regional developments and how they could potentially impact on Sunderland 

were also included in the report.  
 
 Ms H Fox advised the committee that NECS had appointed an  engagement 

officer who would have a focus on  Sunderland.  Ms Cornell added that the 
CCG had also recruited a  engagement assistant  to support the work in-
house.  

   
 Mrs Sullivan referred to page 7 of the report “proposed that a MCP public, 

patient and carer forum should be formed and the draft paper sent for review 
to the MCP executive and senior leaders group” and queried where the draft 
paper was.  Ms Cornell advised that work had been ongoing looking to see if 
this could link in with the health forum but the monies attached to this 
development had been awarded to Age UK and it was unclear as to how this 
would now be taken forward.  Ms Cornell expressed her disappointment 
around this and this was a missed opportunity for the CCG to take a more 
innovative approach in looking to develop the forum into this role.  It was 
unclear as to where the decision was made to award the money to Age UK 
and Ms Cornell and Ms Latta were following this up. ` 

 
 Mrs Sullivan referred to page 8 of the report “speech and language services” 

and asked if this was included in the new specification.  Mrs H Fox advised 
that it was and that weekly meetings were in place with an existing user group.  

 
 Mrs Sullivan referred to the low number of people attending the health forums 

and asked what was being done to attract more people.  Ms Cornell advised 
that she and Mrs Latta were looking at this and work was underway to address 
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this.   It was acknowledged that it was difficult to attract people unless there 
was specific interest in the subject that was under discussion.  

 
 Action: Ms Latta/Ms Cornell 
 
  The committee RECEIVED the report for assurance 
 
2017/87 Practice Participation Group End of Year Report  
 
  Ms Cornell presented the practice participation group (PPG) end of year report 

to the committee.  The report outlined the progress to date in relation to the 
PPG development project undertaken by Pioneering Care Partnership (PCP) 
on behalf of the CCG. Ms Cornell highlighted key points, risks and assurances 
to the committee.  

 
  Key Points 
  The CCG had commissioned PCP, who also hold the contract for Healthwatch 

Sunderland, to support the development of PPGs for a fixed period of one year 
(1 April 2016 – 31 March 2017). 

 
  All practices were required to have a PPG as specified in their contract.  The 

CCG had undertaken a benchmarking exercise in December 2015 which 
showed a significant variation in the number of PPGs that had been 
established and also those that were operating effectively.  

 
  A competitive bid exercise was undertaken as a result and PCP had been 

appointed to support practices in developing their PPGs and this work was 
now coming to an end.  The report had been provided by Healthwatch 
Sunderland (HWS) to outline their arrangements for handing over the work 
and the mechanisms they had put in place for practices to continue developing 
their individual PPGs.    

 
  Achievements during the project timescale included: 

 the creation of new PPGs by those practices that previously did not 
have one 

 further  guidance to those PPGs already in existence through the 
provision of a best practice guide 

 commitment from the practices who had yet to hold a PPG, that they 
would continue the work started and hold a PPG in the short term.  

 one year free membership for all practices to the national association of 
patient participation (NAPP) 

 As at March 2017, all practices had confirmed that they either had 
active PPGs in place or had plans to run their first PPG shortly  

 25 practices advised they also had virtual practice groups (VPGs) which 
were being contacted regularly  

 Membership stands at 300+ PPG members and more than 1250 VPG 
members.  

 



    

Page 11 of 19 

  Recommendations from HWS 
  Public facing practice staff were not aware of the benefits of PPGs to patients 

and the practice. HWS recommended patient experience and patient 
participation was a regular topic of refresher training for practice staff and had 
a regular slot on team meetings to ensure patient feedback was taken into 
account.  

   
  There was a general lack of diversity across many PPGs. HWS recommended 

that the CCG continued to promote this to encourage further diversity. 
  HWS recommended that the CCG followed up the NAPP membership with 

practices to ensure this funding had been taken up. 
 
  As each practice had now attested to (or was shortly due to) having a PPG, as 

part of its annual declaration to NHS England, there was an opportunity for the 
CCG to utilise PPGs to invigorate the participation, engagement and 
consultation methods across all five localities for specific commissioning 
changes such as urgent care, as well as receiving ongoing feedback from 
existing media such as the health forum.  

 
  The following documents had been attached to the report for information: 

 Full report  

 PPG analysis and recommendations – appendix 1 

 Younger people’s leaflet – appendix 2 

 Best practice guide – appendix 3  
 
  Ms Cornell noted that whilst the project had delivered some improvements 

throughout the year, it had not delivered as much as was expected.    One 
issue was in relation to the development of locality patient groups which had 
not been taken forward.  This was mainly due to there not being an appetite 
from the practices themselves for this.  A further issues was noted that delivery 
of the project slowed considerably when the existing member of staff left and 
was not replaced.  Ms Cornell advised she would feed this back to HWS. 

 
  The project had now come to an end   but some of the recommendations 

would be taken forward by the new NECS engagement support officer and 
CCG engagement assistant once in post.  

 
  Mrs Fox commented that this was a position statement and the CCG needed 

to be realistic with regards to how much it could do.  Assurance needed to be 
in place therefore this should link in with the local quality group. Ms Cornell 
would look at where best to use this for the greatest impact.  

 
  Action: Ms Cornell  
 
  Mrs Sullivan noted there was insufficient detail around PPGs and the 

committee needed to see additional work on this.  Mrs Sullivan asked for an 
update on the work going forward to be submitted to the committee on 13 June 
2017 as part of the PPI highlight report.  
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  Action: Ms Cornell  
 
  Dr Gillespie referred to appendix one of the report “PPG analysis and 

recommendations” and queried how many respondents this related to. Ms 
Cornell was unsure but advised respondents were all young people.  

 
 The committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the recommendations  

 
 QUALITY IN COMMISSIONED SERVICES  
 
2017/88 Quarterly Quality Update – Acute and Community   
 
 Mrs Grant presented the report.  The purpose of the report was to provide the 

committee with an acute and community services clinical quality update report 
which headlined the key issues and provided assurance that actions were 
being undertaken where appropriate.  The report was based on the CCGs’ 
main providers, CHS NHSFT and ST NHSFT in respect to community 
services. This was a revised style of report to include benchmarking wherever 
possible.   
 
CHS NHSFT   
Serious incidents (SI): the trust had reported a never event in February 2017 
which involved the intravenous administration of liquid oral Oramorph. The 
trust reported two further never events in March 2017, one involving a retained 
swab and the second a wrong site surgery. RCA investigations were in 
progress and would be reviewed at the Serious Incident Panel. 
 
Health Care Associated Infections (HCAI): Year to date, the trust  had reported 
5 cases of methicillin-resistant staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) which had 
been validated via the post infection review  process but were under the  CDI 
trajectory of 34 cases. 
 
NHS England Quality Dashboard (February 2017 data release):  
Mortality: The data produced in February showed the trust as an outlier for 
MRSA, hospital standard mortality ratio (HSMR) and weekend HSMR non-
elective. The trust was also showing below standard for cancer 62 day wait 
(urgent GP referrals).  
 
The trust had presented a mortality report at the quality review group (QRG) in 
March 2017 which had highlighted it was low with regards to palliative care 
coding.  This may have had a negative impact on the HSMR and potentially 
contributing to why they were outliers.  A meeting was planned with palliative 
care team representatives to review this.  The trust was also an outlier in 
mortality related to stroke and pneumonia.  Clinical teams were to attend the 
mortality review group to highlight changes in practice and discuss what 
improvements could be made. 
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Mrs Fox asked the committee whether it was helpful to have the mortality 
report as an appendix to the main report.  Professor Bramble’s view was there 
was no assurance that coding was the issue.  Mrs Fox advised that there was 
a clear action plan in place around addressing coding issues.  
 
The trust was also showing below standard (1%) for diagnostics over 6 week 
waits in February. Accident & emergency 4 hour waits and cancelled 
operations were below the performance standard. The committee had 
previously received the CCG IAF exception report which highlighted risks 
within the emergency department (ED) and mitigating actions.  
 
In the financial year to date, the trust had reported 4 SIs in the ED (12% of 
total trust incidents). Two incidents occurred in quarter 1 (a treatment delay 
which had subsequently been de-logged and a fall), and 2 incidents occurred 
in quarter 2 (a treatment delay and a diagnostic incident). No further SIs had 
been logged in the ED since August 2016.   The staffing fill rate for the ED 
(registered nurses and care staff) for November 2016 remained above the 
75% standard, and 4 incidents  relating to nursing and midwifery staffing 
(below trigger number (n=2) and staffing concerns (n=2) were reported during 
this period. The trust reported there were 2 complaints relating to ED in 
November.  Once was completed within the required timeframe and 1 outwith. 
 
Ambulance Handover Delays: Ambulance handover delay calculations had 
been changed by NEAS in December 2016, resulting in a drastic reduction in 
performance. The issue was being discussed with the provider however this 
did not necessarily reflect poor performance or quality issues.   
 
CQUIN 2016/17: All applicable indicators achieved, with the exception of 
sepsis in the ED – screening (partial achievement), sepsis in ED – treatment 
(not achieved) and cirrhosis (not achieved). Targets for sepsis (inpatient) for 
quarter 4 were agreed. 
 
Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP): The latest SSNAP report 
showed that the overall clinical audit performance had improved. Discharge 
had improved significantly from D to A in this period. 
 
National Diabetes Foot Care Audit 2016: The trust scored better than the 
national average for the majority of measures. The trust was below the 
national average for the recording of 12 and 24 week outcomes. 
 
National Diabetes Inpatient Audit 2016: There were a number of areas where 
the trust was below the national average or had deteriorated since the last 
report. 
 
Professor Bramble noted that the number of diabetic in-patients had a serious 
effect of length of stay when not managed properly.  Professor Bramble asked 
for a copy of the report and action plan on how the trust proposed to manage 
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this. He also stated that he would like to see these issues referred to in the 
next report.  
 
Action: Mrs Grant to send to the action plan to Professor Bramble in May 
2017 and include in next report, 13 June 2017 
 
Mrs Fox reported that the CCG and the hospital group alliance (CHSFT and 
STFT) were working together to discuss how best to manage QRG assurance 
when patient pathways were covered by both organisations. It was likely that 
one QRG would be developed and this would include a specific section on 
community services.   
Action: Mrs Fox to provide an update at the next meeting. 

 
2016 NHS Staff Survey Results: The trust’s score of 3.81 was above (better 
than) average when compared with trusts of a similar type (3.81 for acute 
trusts). 
 
Inpatient Friends and Family Test (FFT): The response rate for the trust was 
below national average. Both sites remained low but Sunderland Eye Infirmary 
was worse than the Royal Hospital. The proportion recommending was 
unlikely to be representative of the overall patient population due to the low 
response rate but both sites were reported as above regional and national 
average.  
 
FFT A&E: The trust reported a lower than average response rate for A&E, with 
Sunderland General and walk in centres (Pallion) lowest. Sunderland Eye 
Infirmary had reported a reduction in response rate over the last 2 months and 
was now also below average. All sites reported a higher than average 
proportion of patients recommending the site/trust. However due to the low 
response rates, they were not likely to be representative of the overall patient 
population. The trust was integrating FFT with other patient experience data 
collection processes in an endeavour to improve response rates. 
 
STFT  
Serious Incidents:   the trust reported a never event in February 2017 which 
involved an insulin overdose due to the use of an incorrect medical device. 
This incident occurred in community services and involved a Sunderland 
resident. 
 
2016 NHS Staff Survey Results:  The trust’s overall score of 3.64 was below 
(worse than) average when compared with trusts of a similar type. This could 
not be broken down to acute and community services. 
 
CQUIN Q3 2016/17 update: 5 indicators had been achieved and 1 partially 
achieved. The IM&T indicators had been deferred to quarter 4.  Two indicators 
had not been achieved and work was ongoing with the trust to determine what 
could be achieved in the quarter (integrated community teams and preventing 
avoidable hospital admissions from care homes). 



    

Page 15 of 19 

 
National Diabetes Foot Care Audit 2016:  In the majority of measures, the trust 
scored better than the national average. The trust was below the national 
average in 2 of the time to treatment measures, however it should be noted 
that the number of patients was very small which impacted on the overall 
percentage.  The trust was marginally below the national average for the 
recording of 24 week outcomes. 
 
Community Services Friends and Family Test: The overall community- 
percentage recommended scores had decreased slightly, but remained on par 
with the national average. This information was not available at a CCG level. 
 
More information would be provided in relation to community services going 
forward as part of the out of hospital model/MCP development and the hospital 
group alliance/path to excellence work. 

 
The committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the contents. 

 
2017/89 Monthly Quality Overview Report  
 
 Mrs Grant presented the report. The purpose of the report was to provide the 

committee with an overview of any quality risks associated with the CCG’s 
commissioned services.  This included details of any hot spots and areas of 
good practice that had arisen to provide assurance that actions were being 
taken to reduce risks and maintain patient safety..  

 
It was noted that CHSFT and STFT had already been discussed in item 
2017/88. 

 
NEASFT  
2016 NHS Staff Survey: The trust’s overall score was above the national 
average and had been improving year on year since 2014. The bottom 4  
ranking scores related to  staff believing that the organisation provided equal 
opportunities for career progression or promotion, staff satisfied with the 
opportunities for flexible working patterns,  staff reporting good communication  
between senior management and staff  and  staff experiencing physical 
violence from patients, relatives or the public in last 12 months. 
 
Primary Care 
Friends and Family Test: In January 2017, responses were received with 
regard to 19 practices.  Data was suppressed for 1 practice due to the low 
number of responses, which was 1 less practice than the previous month. The 
regional percentage recommended score was 91%, with Sunderland practices 
ranging between 57% and 100%. Ten practices were in the range of 90-100% 
of patients who would recommend the service to friends or family members, 7 
were in the range of 89-90% and 1 scored 57%. This would be discussed at 
the local QRG and the primary care commissioning committee. 
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The committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the content 
 
2017/90 Cumbria and North East Quality Surveillance Group Update  
 
 Dr Bradford gave a verbal update from the quality surveillance group meeting 

held on 9 March 2017.  Dr Bradford advised it had been a positive meeting 
with some good assurances being identified.  The group was still in the early 
stages of development and a national review of quality surveillance groups 
was underway.  Dr Bradford would provide a further update to the committee 
when the review had been completed.  

 
Action: Dr Bradford 
 
2017/91 Quality in Care Homes Update  
 
 Mrs Farline gave a verbal update on quality in care homes in Sunderland to 

the committee.  
 

There were currently no homes with a suspension of placements. 
 
All homes audited from May to December 2016 had received an action plan 
and had received a validation visit or self-assessment carried out by the Local 
Authority. 
 
Donwell House had received support from local authority colleagues and a 
further quality improvement assessment had been carried out.  The home had 
scored 86% (green) which was a significant improvement from the audit 
completed in September 2016 where the score had been 48% (red).  The Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) was due to carry out a further inspection into the 
home due to it being still rated as overall inadequate in the report published in 
November 2016.  
 
Victoria Lodge had changed ownership from Four Seasons to Memory Lane 
and changed its name to Bryony Lodge.  
 
Thornbury Care Centre had changed ownership from Embrace to SLW LTD 
who owned Sycamore Care Centre. 
 
The Old Vicarage was due to be visited in April 2017 by the Local Authority 
and the CCG to assess progress against the action plan currently in place.  

 
Mrs Farline updated the the committee on CQC Inspections from January 
2017 to March 2017. 
 
Dr Gellia queried whether there had been any safeguarding incidents reported 
recently at Falstone Manor.  Mrs Farline advised there was an on-going 
investigation which had not concluded yet but no further safeguarding 
incidents had been reported to date. Mrs Fox noted that an update would be 
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included in the next quality in care home report, and linking in with the 
safeguarding adults board, would be included in the safeguarding highlight 
report. Dr Gellia noted there was a communication gap with staff at this home 
which had been apparent on a number of occasions.  Mrs Fox asked whether 
this had been reported onto SIRMS. Dr Gellia advised he was unsure but 
would check to ensure it was.  
 
Action: Dr Gellia  
 
The committee NOTED the verbal update. 

 
2017/92 Serious Incidents Lessons Learned Report  
 
 Mrs Grant presented the report.  The purpose of the report was to provide 

detail on the types of lessons learned following an SI as identified by CHS 
NHSFT, STFT, Northumberland Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 
(NTWFT) and NEASFT in their root cause analysis reports submitted as a 
result of serious incident investigations. The report included SIs that were 
closed during the first two quarters of 2016/17.   

 Key points 
The report had been submitted to the March joint Sunderland and South 
Tyneside CCG SI panel, where it had been recommended that the report was 
repeated on an annual basis to capture the maximum amount of learning. This 
approach had also been agreed at South Tyneside’s quality and patient safety 
committee. 
 
The joint panel had closed 100 incidents reported by providers in the first 2 
quarters of 2016/17. All incidents closed which were reported by NTWFT and 
NEASFT, irrespective of which incident panel had closed them, were 
considered to elicit system wide learning.  
 
As lead commissioners for STFT and CHS NHSFT, all incidents reported by 
these trusts were received by the joint panel. 
 
Twenty four incidents reported by CHS NHSFT were closed in the reporting 
period, 9 of which related to pressure ulcers and 6 to slips, trips and falls.  
These were also the most common incident types in 2015/16.  
 
Forty incidents reported by STFT were closed in the reporting period, 25 of 
which related to pressure ulcers and 5 to slips, trips and falls. The majority of 
the pressure ulcer incidents reported by STFT related to community/district 
nursing services and these were also the most common incident types and 
directorates in 2015/16.  
 
Across CHS NHSFT and STFT, overall learning in the reporting period was 
similar with the key areas of documentation and assessments highlighted.  
These were also the most frequently identified learning areas in 2015/16. CHS 
NHSFT and STFT also identified adherence to trust policies as a key area. 
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Fifty eight incidents reported by NTWFT were closed in the reporting period, 
across all SI panels, 24 of which were closed by the joint panel. Across all 
areas the most frequently reported incident type was 
‘apparent/actual/suspected self-harm incident’ which accounted for 46 serious 
incidents. Learning identified by NTWFT was very similar to that highlighted by 
the acute trusts, with documentation and assessments being the most 
frequently reported categories. 
 
Forty incidents reported by NEASFT had been closed in the reporting period, 
across all SI panels.  Twelve of these had been closed by the joint Sunderland 
and South Tyneside panel. Across all areas, the most frequently reported 
incident type was ‘treatment delay’ which accounted for 36 serious incidents. 
Learning identified by NEASFT included issues with capacity, pathways, 
internal communication and the requirement to improve joint decision making. 
 
Across all trusts identified in the report, CHS NHSFT had reported a greater 
proportion of lessons learned to incidents reported, with 2.5 lessons learned 
identified for every incident reported. NEASFT had the lowest proportion of 
lessons learned to incidents reported, with 1 lesson learned for every incident 
reported. Similar learning relating to documentation and assessments was 
identified across trusts, with the requirement for this to be timely, accurate, 
concise and clear. 
 
Dr Gillespie noted the report was a useful way to see what the themes and 
trends were. Dr Bradford added it was helpful to have all providers in one 
report.  

 
The committee RECEIVED the report, NOTED the content and AGREED that 
this report would be submitted to the committee on an annual basis.  

 
2017/93 Clinical Quality Assurance Visit Report  
 

 Mrs Grant presented the report to the committee.  The purpose of the report 
was to to highlight the key findings and any recommendations made following 
the clinical quality assurance visits to CHS NHSFT on 6 December 2016 and 7 
February 2017.  
 
CHS NHSFT (Outpatients Department) – visit date 6 December 2016 
Key points and assurances 
This had been a positive visit and the visiting team had been impressed by the 
responsiveness of the staff reacting to the collapse of a patient in the main 
corridor, and in particular, to the actions of the member of staff from the 
enquiries desk. 
 
Overall patient feedback had been positive regarding the care delivered, 
however some concerns were noted regarding the receipt of follow-up letters 
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and parking. These issues had been raised with the trust in the 
recommendations following the visit. 
 
The trust has been asked to consider a number of recommendations following 
the visit, including ‘first impressions’, safety, safeguarding, involvement, 
privacy and dignity and patient experience.   
The trust’s response had been received and was detailed in the action plan. 

 
 CHS NHSFT (Stroke pathway)  – visit date 7 February 2017 
 Key points and assurances 

The visit indicated that the centralisation of CHS NHSFT and STFT acute 
stroke services was progressing towards providing a service which would 
increase performance and attain the10 standards measured by SSNAP. 
 
The visiting team was impressed by the highly skilled, passionate and 
motivated consultants, medics, nurses and therapy practitioners working as a 
team delivering 24/7 services with an ethos of continuous development and 
innovation for patients requiring care on the stroke pathway.  The development 
of stroke services seemd to have a multi-agency agenda which encompassed 
the transfer of care into the community. 
 
Mrs Grant advised that the temporary centralised service was in its infancy 
and it would be difficult to quantify patient outcomes and improvements initially 
due to the delay in SSNAP data publication and the redevelopment of the ED.  
However the plans described during the visit suggest a favorable trajectory if 
this was the chosen future model. 
 
Patient experience gathered by the visiting team was positive, indicating that 
patients were happy with the standard of care received. 
 
Two areas for improvement had been highlighted, one around discharge 
communication pathways for South Tyneside patients and the other related to 
the out of hours radiology service.  The trust’s response had not been received 
at the time of writing the report and would be included in the next update of the 
action plan. 
 
Mrs Fox advised that the recommendations had been discussed at the QRG 
and the trust had requested that pragmatic recommendations were made 
following visits.  The CCG had agreed that as part of the review of the visit 
programme, questions would be reviewed and checked against other 
assessment processes to avoid duplication.  
 
The  committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the content. 

 
2017/94 NECS Commissioner Assurance Visit Review Project Report  
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 Mrs Grant presented the report to the committee.  The purpose of the report 
was to provide an update on the review of the CCG’s quality assurance visit 
programme.   

 Key points 
The NECS clinical quality team, in conjunction with the continuous 
improvement team, was undertaking a review of the commissioner assurance 
visit programme process across all CCGs.  This included the process and 
templates used by the CCG. The review was due to be completed in early 
summer 2017. 
 
The review aimed to: 

 Consider models of programme delivery with potential benefits of 
improved efficiencies 

 Review questionnaires and their clinical relevance in relation to current 
best evidence 

 Consider the use of technology to record data during visits 

 Consider the length, format and quality of the final report 

 Develop a standardised standard operating procedure for use across all 
clinical quality hubs. 
 

Assurance 

 In the interim, the current Sunderland CCG process, visit and report 
templates would continue to be used  

 In order to ensure that the reports were complete, visit attendees would 
be required to provide their feedback in a legible, written format in the 
template, in a timely manner  

 This information would be collated by NECS on behalf of the CCG to 
ensure that accurate feedback could be submitted to provider 
organisations and ultimately to the QRG and this committee.  

 On completion of the review process, the findings would be shared with 
the committee for discussion. 

 
Mrs Grant advised that the first meeting had taken place on 10 April 2017 
where some waste in the process had been identified and removed. The next 
meeting would focus on the templates and technology to be used.  

 
 The committee RECEIVED the report and NOTED the content  

  
 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 
2017/95 City Hospitals Sunderland Foundation Trust Quality Risk Assurance 

report  
 
 Mrs Fox advised that the report had been included on the agenda to enable 

the committee to have sight of the type of information reviewed at the quality 
review group.  

 
The committee RECEIVED the report for information  
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2017/96 Joint SCCG/STCCG HCAI Improvement Group minutes, 30 November 2016 
 

The committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/97 Communications and Engagement Steering group minutes, 23 February 

2017 
 

The committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/98 City Hospitals Sunderland Foundation Trust Quality Review group minutes, 

12 January 2017 
 

The  committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/99 North East Ambulance Service Foundation Trust Quality Review group 

minutes, 27 January 2017 
 

The committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/100 Named and Designated Professionals Safeguarding Assurance Group 

minutes, 20 January 2017 
 
 The committee RECEIVED the minutes for information 
 
2017/101 Cycle of Business  

 
 Mrs Sullivan presented the committee’s cycle of business for 2017/18 and 

requested this was used to ensure reports were submitted as required. In-depth 
discussions would be added going forward. 

 
 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 
2017/102 Latest Mortality Guidance  
 
 Mrs Fox highlighted that this report provided information for the committee on the 

expectations of providers and also referenced LeDeR.  
 
 The committee RECEIVED the report for information  

 
2017/103 Mrs Gibson referred to the terms of reference of the quality safety and risk 

committee and queried whether there was the potential to make a system wide 
group to provide assurance for all commissioned health services for the 
population. Ms Cornell advised that as the committee was a formal sub group of 
the governing body (GB) and the GB would need to approve this but there was 
an issue as to whether this was appropriate as the CCG was not the 
commissioner of some of the local authority services, however this could be 
discussed further to see how this could be taken forward.   Mrs Fox suggested 
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that Mrs Gibson submitted a one page proposal to the committee at its meeting 
on 13 June 2017. 

 
Action: Mrs Gibson  

 
2017/104 Dr Gellia expressed concerns around the waiting times for IAPT and asked who 

he could raise this with.  Mrs Fox advised Dr Gellia to raise this with the joint 
commissioning team. 

 
  Action:  Dr Gellia to raise his concerns with the joint commissioning 
team 

 
2017/105 Date and time of next meeting 

 
 Tuesday 9 May 2017, 2pm - 5pm, Joseph Swan Suite,  
 Pemberton H 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  
 
 
 
 
Date: 9 May 2017  
 



NHS Official                Item 9.1 

 

CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

 
23 MAY 2017 

Report Title: 

 
Sunderland CCG Finance Report – Year Ended 
2016/17 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to present to the Governing Body a summary of the financial position 
of the CCG for the year ended 2016/17. 
 

Key points, risks and assurances 

 

 The key issue is to ensure that the CCG has met all its financial duties for 2016/17. 
 

 The report provides assurance that the financial outturn for the year 2016/17 has achieved 
those duties.  

 

 Risks to delivery are documented within the report.  
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

 
Members are asked to:  
 

 Note the financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2016/17. 
 

 Note the update provided on CHC restitution. 
 

Sponsor/approving director   David Chandler, Chief Finance Officer 

Report author Tarryn Lake, Deputy Chief Finance Officer 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties 
 

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  

CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming services   

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  
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CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Any relevant legal/statutory issues 

N/A 

Are the identified risks on the risk register?  

 
Yes. 649, 1641, 1642, 1709, 1831, 1832 and 1841. 
 

 
If issue/report has been previously reviewed please specify meeting and date 

N/A  

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

 
None 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

N/A 

Any current or expected 
impact on patient 
outcomes/experience? 
 

N/A   

 
Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

N/A   

Version Date Comments  

ACV1.0 25/04/2017 TL Initial Draft 

ACV2.0 03/05/2017 TL amends 

ACV3.0 16/05/2017 TL Additional Amends 

ACV4.0 16/05/2017 DC Final 
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Governing Body  
Financial Report for 2016/17 

 
1. Purpose of Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to present the Governing Body a summary of the 
financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2016/17. 

 
2. Summary Financial Performance 
 

The summary financial performance for the CCG against key financial 
performance indicators (KPI’s) is outlined below.  The CCG delivered against all 
financial KPI’s. Further detailed information is provided within this report on the 
performance against each KPI.  
 
Reporting Area Key Performance Indicator Target Forecast Achievement RAG RAG Colour

2016/17 Target 

£000's

2016/17 Outturn 

£000's

Forecast Performance against 2016/17 in-year allocation - (surplus) / deficit 2,000 0 ↑ Green

Forecast Performance against cumulative surplus allocation - (surplus) / deficit (16,653) (23,581) ↑ Green

Running costs to remain within allocation 5,967 5,553 ↑ Green

Achievement of productivity targets 15,786 15,786 → Green

Period End Target Period End Position

Cash balance in bank account at period end <£486k £249k ↑ Green

Better payment practice code average achievement >95% 99.67% ↑ Green

Aged debts > £50k and > 90 days old 0 0 → Green

2016/17 Target 

£000's

2016/17 Forecast 

£000's

Headroom for mitigation of financial risks Greater than zero Greater than zero → Green

RAG Rating Key

↑ performance is on target and improving

→ performance is on target and has remained steady

↓ performance in on target and has declined

↑ performance is close to target and improving

→ performance is close to target and has remained steady 

↓ performance is close to target and declining 

↑ performance is off target but improving

→ performance is off target and has remained steady 

↓ performance is off target and declining

2016/17 

Income & 

Expenditure

Statement of 

Financial Position

Financial Risks & 

Mitigation 

   
Please note that specific performance measurement for RAG rating of KPI 
indicators can be viewed in Appendix 1.  

 
3. 2016/17 Income and Expenditure  
 

NHS England requires CCGs to report on the cumulative financial position (i.e. 
inclusive of previous year’s surpluses).  It has been recognised nationally that the 
requirement for CCGs to include the cumulative historic surplus in the reported 
position presents a distorted view for readers of finance reports.  As such the 
CCG reports the in-year financial expenditure against in-year allocations (i.e. 
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excluding the ring fenced cumulative historic surplus) as well as the cumulative 
surplus position.  
 
The level of cumulative planned surplus for the CCG was agreed at £16,653k at 
the start of 2016/17 by the Governing Body.  This utilised £2,000k of historical 
surpluses and was effectively an agreed in year deficit with NHS England of 
£2,000k for the CCG.  Subsequently, the Governing Body has agreed with NHS 
England to increase the planned cumulative surplus of the CCG in 2016/17 to 
£18,653k in order to manage financial risk in future financial years.  NHS England 
has confirmed this will be made available back to the CCG in 2017/18. 
 
In 2016/17 NHS England mandated all CCGs to hold 1% of their total allocation 
(including delegated budgets) uncommitted to manage system wide financial risk 
in the NHS.  In March 2017 NHS England confirmed that all CCGs were required 
to increase their cumulative surplus by the value of this risk reserve.  Effectively 
this has meant the CCG was only able to allocate expenditure against 99% of 
this original confirmed funding allocation for 2016/17 on commissioning 
healthcare for the population of Sunderland.  
 
The cumulative financial position of the CCG for 2016/17 is outlined below.  The 
ring fenced cumulative surplus included within the CCG’s reported position has 
been separately identified to provide further clarity to members on the 2016/17 
financial position of the CCG as well as the impact of the 1% additional surplus 
requirements mandated by NHS England.  This additional 1% surplus equated to 
£4,866k for the CCG.  
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CATEGORY 2016/17

Budget 

(£000's)

2016/17 

Actual

(£000's)

Variance

(£000's)

CCG NON POOLED BUDGETS

ACUTE COMMISSIONING 236,139 237,220 1,081

AMBULANCE SERVICES 11,900 11,823 -77

COMMUNITY SERVICES 19,495 19,338 -157

MH COMMISSIONING 22,303 22,310 6

MISC COMMISSIONING 3,652 1,444 -2,207

PACKAGES 3,388 4,119 731

PREMISES 2,040 2,040 0

PRESCRIBING 56,127 54,257 -1,869

PRIMARY CARE 43,987 43,426 -561

REABLEMENT 625 168 -456

CONTINGENCY 2,402 0 -2,402

SUB TOTAL NON POOLED BUDGETS 402,058 396,147 -5,911

CCG POOLED BUDGETS (BCF)

COMMUNITY INTEGRATED TEAMS & RAH 20,763 20,143 -620

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 25,661 25,970 309

LD SERVICES 9,731 9,745 15

PACKAGES 31,679 35,987 4,308

CARERS 1,700 1,677 -23

COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES 1,652 1,935 283

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT 300 300 0

CCG POOLED BUDGETS (BCF) 91,486 95,759 4,273

SUB TOTAL COMMISSIONING BUDGETS 493,544 491,905 -1,639

RUNNING COSTS 5,977 5,553 -424

TOTAL 2016/17 CCG FINANCIAL POSITION (PRE 1% RESERVE RELEASE) 499,521 497,459 -2,062

BROUGHT FORWARD RING FENCED SURPLUS 16,653 0 -16,653

TOTAL CUMULATIVE CCG FINANCIAL POSITION (PRE 1% RESERVE RELEASE) 516,174 497,459 -18,715

1% RESERVE - NHS E MANDATED SURPLUS FOR SYSTEM RISKS 4,866 0 -4,866

TOTAL 2016/17 CCG FINANCIAL POSITION (POST 1% RESERVE RELEASE) 521,040 497,459 -23,581

2016/17

 
 
The CCG has reported a cumulative surplus of £18,715k for 2016/17 prior to the 
additional 1% surplus mandated by NHS England.  This is in line with the revised 
planned cumulative surplus agreed by the Governing Body of £18,653k.  The 
CCG has achieved its financial duties for 2016/17 as a result.  
 
Further detailed analysis is provided below on the movements from the month 11 
report.  
 



    

Page 6 of 16 
 

CATEGORY  Forecast 

Outturn

Variance 

at Mth 11

(£000's)

Mth 12 

Outturn 

Variance

(£000's)

Movement 

in Forecast 

Outturn 

Variance

(£000's)

CCG NON POOLED BUDGETS

ACUTE COMMISSIONING 735 1,081 346

AMBULANCE SERVICES -31 -77 -46

COMMUNITY SERVICES -227 -157 70

MH COMMISSIONING 0 6 6

MISC COMMISSIONING -5,762 -2,207 3,555

PACKAGES 345 731 386

PREMISES 1,309 0 -1,309

PRESCRIBING -1,974 -1,869 105

PRIMARY CARE -121 -561 -440

REABLEMENT -26 -456 -430

CONTINGENCY 0 -2,402 -2,402

SUB TOTAL NON POOLED BUDGETS -5,752 -5,911 -159

CCG POOLED BUDGETS (BCF)

COMMUNITY INTEGRATED TEAMS & RAH -495 -620 -125

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 241 309 68

LD SERVICES 325 15 -310

PACKAGES 3,858 4,308 450

CARERS 46 -23 -69

COMMUNITY EQUIPMENT SERVICES 66 283 217

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT 0 0 0

CCG POOLED BUDGETS (BCF) 4,041 4,273 232

SUB TOTAL COMMISSIONING BUDGETS -1,711 -1,639 72

RUNNING COSTS -289 -424 -135

TOTAL 2016/17 CCG FINANCIAL POSITION (PRE 1% RESERVE RELEASE) -2,000 -2,062 -62  
 
The main movements in the outturn for 2016/17 from the month 11 forecast 
relate to adverse movements within packages, acute commissioning, pooled 
budgets and prescribing which have been offset in part by favourable movements 
in premises, primary care and reablement.  The movement in miscellaneous 
commissioning is due to movement in reserves. The movement in reserves 
relates to the transfer of funding from reserves to baseline budgets in month 12. 
The material funding transfers relate to vanguard schemes, premises market rent 
funding and provisions pressures.    
 
Further details are provided below on the forecast outturn movements.  
 
Non Pooled Budgets 
 
Within acute commissioning the CCGs reported outturn has moved adversely 
from month 11 by £346k.  This is mainly in relation to movements in the contracts 
held with Spire of £165k and County Durham and Darlington NHS Foundation 
Trust (CDDFT) of £100k due to additional activity.  In addition, the outturn 
position for non-contracted activity moved adversely by £70k from the forecast 
outturn for month 11 due to additional charges being received in month 12.   
 
As outlined in previous reports, the main acute contracts with City Hospitals 
Sunderland (CHS) and Gateshead Health FT (GHFT) were effectively blocked at 
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agreed funding levels in 2016/17.  These agreements mitigated fluctuations in 
expenditure which would have occurred due to movements in activity levels. 
Although these agreements managed in year pressures for 2016/17, significant 
fluctuations in activity would have led to contract discussions between 
commissioners and providers and would also impact on future funding required 
for acute contracted activity.   
 
The financial impact due to activity variations against plan have been closely 
monitored to ensure any short and medium term financial risks are mitigated and 
appropriately managed.  The chart below outlines the underlying financial 
position of key tariff based services as at month 11 (period to 28th February 2017) 
across all contracts.  Although the majority of these services were covered by 
block contracts for 2016/17, the underlying position is a net overspend of £1,423k 
being generated by A&E, outpatient and non-elective and emergency activity. 
Please note this data is subject to change following data validations being carried 
out by the contracting team and discussions with providers.   
 

There is over performance on A&E activity which is due to an ongoing increase in 
attendances.  In February 2017 this level of over-performance has increased in 
month and the year to date position is now over plan by 6,123 attendances.   
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The year to date over performance for outpatients is 3% over the activity plan 
(8,992 attendances) and £1,773k over the cost plan.  This over performance is 
across all providers and is currently under review by the contracting team.  
 
It should be noted that the impact of the activity performance has been factored 
into contract baselines for 2017/18 resulting in the additional productivity 
requirements identified.  This will be reviewed once the final outturn for activity is 
agreed for 2016/17 with providers to ensure there are no further financial 
pressures in 2017/18 which require mitigation.  
 
The outturn for primary care services has moved by £440k from the reported 
month 11 position.  This is partly due to movements in the delegated general 
practice budgets which are discussed further below and partly due to the release 
of 2015/16 accruals no longer required.  These relate to unutilised accruals for 
local incentive schemes of £92k and accruals for expenditure in relation to the 
Northern Doctors (NDUC) contract of £179k which are no longer required.  
 
There has been a favourable movement in the outturn for premises against the 
variance reported at month 11.  This is in part due to funding being allocated from 
reserves to cover the pressures which have been incurred on premises charges 
from NHS Property Services (NHSPS) in 2016/17.  Through discussions with 
NHSPS the CCG finance team has been able to identify £786k of charges 
reported in the month 11 forecast outturn against premises which should have 
been levied on other providers or NHS England.  NHSPS have subsequently 
corrected their billing in month 12 to reduce the CCGs charges for these errors.  
 
Prescribing is reporting an under spend at month 12 of £1,869k based on month 
10 prescribing data received from the Prescription Pricing Agency (PPA).  This is 
based on the PPAs expected spending profiles for 2016/17.  There has been an 
adverse movement in the reported position based on 10 prescribing data.  The 
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CCG is due to receive month 11 prescribing date in late April 2017 and month 12 
prescribing date in late May 2017.  A contingency of £200k has been included in 
the outturn position for 2016/17 to manage any adverse variances (consistent 
with previous financial years) in expenditure due to the volatile nature of 
prescribing expenditure. 
 
Reablement has had a favourable movement of £430k in month 12 which relates 
to the reversal of 2015/16 accruals no longer required.  These accruals relate to 
a large number of minor schemes for which no expenditure has been incurred to 
date and therefore further provision could not be carried forward into 2017/18. 
 
Delegated General Practice Budgets 
 
Delegated general practice budgets are reported within the overall position of the 
CCG in line with the nature of the expenditure being incurred.  In order to ensure 
clarity and transparency on the financial position of the ring-fenced delegated 
general practice budget the memorandum account has been provided below for 
information.    
 
Category 2016/17

Budget 

(£'s)

2016/17 

Actual

(£'s)

Variance

(£'s)

General Practice - GMS 21,480,246 21,453,018 -27,228

General Practice - PMS 3,875,747 3,970,454 94,707

General Practice - APMS 2,034,110 1,859,832 -174,278

QOF 4,295,100 3,916,658 -378,442

Enhanced Services 1,809,779 1,384,610 -425,169

Premises Cost Reimbursement 3,030,406 2,958,064 -72,342

Dispensing/Prescribing Drs 186,830 219,357 32,527

Other GP Services 2,176,662 2,718,955 542,293

Primary Care Reserves 0 0 0

Total Delegated GP Budgets (pre 1% release) 38,888,880 38,480,948 -407,932

1% Reserve - NHS E mandated surplus for system wide risks 395,120 0 -395,120

Total Delegated GP Budgets (post 1% release) 39,284,000 38,480,948 -803,052  
 
The CCG has reported an outturn for delegated budgets of £408k prior to the 
additional 1% surplus mandated by NHS England.  There has been a favourable 
movement of £191k against the month 11 forecast outturn position.  This is 
mainly due to an £110k underspend of the 2016/17 GP Career Start scheme and 
the release of the remaining contingency reserves of £98k.   
 
Material variances to note on the delegated primary care budgets are:  
 

 APMS forecast underspend of £174k relates to expected in-year savings 
from the re-procurement of contracts.  

 The Quality Outcomes Framework (QOF) under spend relates to the 
reversal of 2015/16 accruals which are no longer required in full following 
the finalisation of QOF achievement scores.   
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 The enhanced services budget is forecasting an underspend of £463k for 
2016/17. This includes slippage of £173k on the 2015/16 accrual for the 
unplanned admissions DES achievement. 

 The other GP services forecast overspend relates to approved non 
recurrent schemes for 2016/17 offset by the reversal of un-utilised 2015/16 
accruals for maternity and locum cover.  

 
More detailed spend information and variance analysis for acute, community and 
mental health is detailed in Appendix 2. 
 
Pooled Budgets (Better Care Fund (BCF) budgets) 
 
The CCG and the Local Authority have agreed an outturn position for 2016/17 for 
the Better Care Fund which is included in Appendix 3 for information.  
 
The 2016/17 financial outturn for the Better Care Fund has resulted in a liability of 
£4,273k for the CCG which is an adverse movement of £232k from the month 11 
reported position. This is in the main due to a further increase in client numbers 
in packages of care.  
 

 Running Costs 
 
The running costs outturn position for 2016/17 has moved by £135k from month 
11.  This is in part due to non-recurrent spending scheme plans not materialising 
and in part due to the release of 2015/16 accruals for staff recharges no longer 
expected.  
 
Productivity Savings 
 
The productivity plan for 2016/17 required £15.8m of efficiencies to be achieved.  
The CCG has confirmed delivery of the productivity plan in full for 2016/17 and as 
such is reported as green on the CCGs assurance reports with NHS England.  

 
4. Statement of Financial Position  

 
Summary Statement of Financial Position  
 
A copy of the summary Statement of Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 
2017 shows current assets of £1,952k and current liabilities stood at £30,574k.  
Please note that the prepayments and accrued income relates in the majority to 
the maternity pathway prepayment made in line with national guidance.  
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Mar-17 Feb-17 Movement

£000's £000's £000's

Non Current Assets Property, plant and equipment 0 1 (1)

Total Non Current Assets 0 1 (1)

Current Assets Trade and other Receivables 573 473 100

Prepayments & Accrued Income 1,130 1,366 (236)

Cash and cash equivalents 249 470 (221)

Total Current Assets 1,952 2,309 (357)

Total Assets 1,952 2,310 (358)

Current Liabilities Trade and other payables (14,850) (13,253) (1,597)

Accruals (15,724) (17,525) 1,801

Provisions 0 0 0

Total Current Liabilities (30,574) (30,778) 204

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED (28,622) (28,468) (154)

Financed by Taxpayers Equity

Capital & Reserves General Fund (28,622) (28,468) (154)

TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY (28,622) (28,468) (154)  
 

Better Payment Practice Code (BPPC) 
 

BPPC can be summarised as a target to pay 95% of NHS and non-NHS trade 
creditors within 30 calendar days of receipt of goods or valid invoice (whichever 
is later) unless other payment terms have been agreed.  The target for the month 
of March was achieved.  The BPPC year to date performance is outlined below.  
 
Better Payment Practice Code - 30 Days NUMBER £000's

Non-NHS

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 6,682 112,699

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 6,616 112,390

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 99.01% 99.73%

NHS 

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,020 322,770

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 2,019 322,769

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within 30 Day Target 99.95% 100.00%  
 
Cash Management 

 
The CCG is expected by NHS England to proactively manage the cash it draws 
down each month and the amount it actually spends. The target is to have no 
more than 1.25% of the monthly drawdown of cash left in the main bank account 
each month. This equates to circa £486k for the CCG. This target was achieved 
in March with £249k left in the bank at the end of the month.  
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Aged Debts  
 
The CCG monitors aged debts on a monthly basis to ensure prompt recovery of 
all outstanding debts and avoidance of debt write offs.  The current target is to 
have no outstanding debts over 90 days old and above £50k in value.  This target 
was achieved in March with no aged debts over 90 days old and above £50k in 
value outstanding.  
 
In month 12 the CCG included a provision in the Statement of Financial Position 
of £89k for a potential bad debt in relation to recharges of sexual health drugs to 
Sunderland City Council. The CCG is continuing to pursue the reimbursement of 
these drugs from Sunderland City Council. 

 
5. Financial Risks & Mitigation  

 
The CCG has successfully managed and mitigated financial risks in 2016/17 
leading to achievement of all financial duties.  

 
6. CHC Restitution Update 

 
Following the demise of the PCTs, CCGs have been mandated to contribute 
towards a national risk share pool to cover the costs of CHC restitution for 
periods of unassessed care from 1st April 2004 to 31st March 2012.  The CCG 
commissioned STFT to provide a CHC restitution assessment service for 
restitution claims received by Sunderland PCT.  Upon a claim being assessed as 
valid by the STFT team, the CCG pays the claimant and then claims funding 
back from the national risk share pool to cover the cost. 
 
The national risk share pool is due to cease on the 31st March 2017 and as such, 
a deadline of the 31st September 2016 was set for all assessments to be 
completed by the restitution team in order for allow for processing time. In 
previous months the report flagged the risk that the CCG may become liable for 
claims not paid by the 31st March 2017, however in December 2016 the CCG 
received a letter confirming that NHS England would cover the costs of all the 
claims identified as part of the risk pool even if these were settled after the 31st 
March 2017 date. 
 
The current progress at the time of writing the report for the CHC restitution 
cases within Sunderland is as follows: 
 

 All claims have now been assessed by the STFT restitution team. 

 94 claimants have been assessed as eligible for restitution and paid a total 
of £ 2,595,697.70 which £2,487,082.50 has subsequently been claimed 
back from the national risk share pool and £108,615.20 to be reclaimed in 
April.  

 121 claimants have been assessed as not being eligible for restitution 
payments.  
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 17 claims are currently being processed within the CCG (a number of 
which are waiting information from claimants to progress). 
 

 
7. Recommendation  
 

Members are asked to:  
 

 Note the financial position of the CCG for the year ended 2016/17. 
 

 Note the CHC restitution update. 
 
  Tarryn Lake  
  Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
  Sunderland CCG



    

Page 14 of 16 
 

Appendix 1 –Performance Measurement Thresholds for KPIs 
 

Reporting Area Key Performance Indicator Green Blue Red Status of 

Indicator

Forecast performance against 2016/17 core allocation Forecast 

expenditure less 

than or within 

0.1% of plan. 

Forecast 

expenditure 

greater than plan 

by more than 0.1% 

but less than 0.5%.

Forecast 

expenditure 

greater than plan 

by more than 

0.5%.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Forecast to achieve revised planned surplus Forecast surplus 

greater than or 

within 0.1% of 

plan. 

Forecast surplus 

less than plan by 

more than 0.1% but 

less than 0.5%.

Forecast surplus 

less than plan by 

more than 0.5%.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Running costs to remain within allocation Running costs 

forecast equal to 

or less than 

allocation.

not applicable. Running costs 

forecast above 

allocation.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Achievement of productivity targets Forecast 

productivity 

achievement 

greater than 95% 

of plan.

Forecast 

productivity 

achievement less 

than 95% but 

greater than 75% of 

plan.

Forecast 

productivity 

achievement 

below 75% of 

plan.

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Cash balance in bank account at period end Cash balance less 

than £485k at 

period end.

Cash balance 

greater than £485k 

but less than £600k 

at period end. 

Cash balance 

greater than £600k 

at period end.

Local CCG 

indicator. 

Better payment practice code average achievement BPPC average 

achievement 

greater than 95%.

BPPC average 

achievement 

greater than 75% 

but less than 95%.

BPPC average 

achievement less 

than 75%.

Local CCG 

indicator. 

Aged debts > £50k and > 90 days old No aged debts 

greater than £50k 

and older than 90 

days. 

Number of aged 

debts greater than 

£50k and older than 

50 days  not greater 

than two in total.

Number of aged 

debts greater than 

£50k and older 

than 50 days 

greater than two 

in total.

Local CCG 

indicator. 

Financial Risks & 

Mitigation 

Headroom for mitigation of financial risks Mitigations are 

greater than or 

equal to risks 

identified.

Risks not fully 

mitigated and, if 

they were to 

materialise, the 

CCG would not be 

in deficit or would 

be in deficit up to 

1% of allocations.

Risks not fully 

mitigated and, if 

they were to 

materialise, the 

CCG would be in 

deficit greater 

than the 1% of 

allocation

NHS England 

national 

assurance 

indicator.

Statement of 

Financial Position

Rating Measurement

2016/17 

Income & 

Expenditure
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Appendix 2 – Budget Category Analysis 
Acute Commissioning

Month 12 2016/17

CATEGORY

2016/17

Budget 

(£000's)

2016/17 

Actual

(£000's)

Variance

(£000's)

CITY HOSPITALS SUNDERLAND NHSFT 179,613 179,598 -15

GATESHEAD HEALTH NHSFT 21,533 21,402 -130

NEWCASTLE TYNE HOSP NHSFT 10,665 11,240 575

CO. DURHAM & DARL NHSFT 6,447 7,059 612

SPIRE HEALTHCARE LTD 4,177 4,341 165

NORTHERN DOCTORS 3,122 2,973 -150

SOUTH TYNESIDE NHSFT 1,033 1,496 463

NORTHUMBERLAND T/W NHST 678 678 0

SOUTH TEES HOSPITAL NHSFT 541 518 -23

NORTHUMBRIA HC NHSFT 402 374 -27

NORTH TEES & HARTLEPOOL NHSFT 329 166 -163

EXEMPT OVERSEAS VISITORS AND 1516 IMPACTS 162 -207 -369

AQP SERVICES 2,234 2,095 -139

WINTER PRESSURES 2,350 2,217 -133

NON CONTRACT ACTIVITY NHS & NON NHS 1,827 2,008 182

EXCEPTIONS & PRIOR APPROVALS 1,026 1,261 234

TOTAL 236,139 237,220 1,081

YTD Notes

Mental Health Commissioning

Month 12 2016/17

CATEGORY

2016/17

Budget 

(£000's)

2016/17 

Actual

(£000's)

Variance

(£000's)

NORTHUMBERLAND T/W NHST 21,122 21,171 20

TEES ESK/WEAR VAL NHSFT 253 253 -0

MIND 64 -1 -1

OTHER 864 886 -13

TOTAL 22,303 22,310 6

YTD Notes

Community Services

Month 12 2016/17

CATEGORY

2016/17

Budget 

(£000's)

2016/17 

Actual

(£000's)

Variance

(£000's)

S TYNESIDE NHSFT 13,559 13,556 -2

SUNDERLAND LA 70 24 -46

OTHER CONTRACTS 466 372 -94

VANGUARD 5,400 5,385 -15

TOTAL 19,495 19,338 -157

YTD Notes

Budgets have been included at the agreed contract. Within this financial year no material variances are anticipated against the 

planned figures.

2016/17

Budgets have been included at the agreed contract level. Against 2016/17 contracts Newcastle is showing overperfomance which 

related mainly to Q1 activity.  Other variances against 2016/17 contracts have come in STFT Acute mainly in relation to gastro 

activity, underperformance from Northern Doctors urgent care centres, underperformance on the Gateshead Breast Services 

Contract, an underspend with winter pressures budgets and an anticipated overspend against the CDDFT contract which is partly 

as a result of breast, Gastro and Non-Elective overperformance. There are a couple of impacts from 2015/16 estimates that have 

materialised in 2016/17 the biggest of which relates to Spire (£241k), Tyneside Surgical Services, North Tees and South Tees.

2016/17

2016/17

Budgets have been included at the agreed contract. The main variances that are reported above are in relation to impacts from 

2015/16.
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Appendix 3 – Better Care Fund Month 12 Financial Position  
 

Sunderland CCG & Sunderland City Council 

2016/17 Better Care Fund - Summary 

Month 12 Financial Position (Period ending 31st March 2017) 

Schemes   2016/17

 Budget

£

2016/17 Outturn

£

2016/17 

Outturn 

Variance

£

Community Integrated Teams & RaH Services Scheme 29,134,868              28,265,410             869,458-                        

Mental Health Services Scheme 27,922,776              28,259,241             336,465                        

LD Services Scheme 34,473,387              34,524,765             51,378                          

Packages Scheme 56,398,387              64,068,301             7,669,914                     

Carers Scheme 3,645,841                 3,597,195               48,646-                          

Community Equipment Scheme 2,456,320                 2,877,380               421,060                        

Disabled Facilities Grant 3,157,117                 3,157,117               -                                 

Total 2016/17 BCF OVER / (UNDER) SPEND              157,188,696            164,749,409                      7,560,714 

SUNDERLAND CCG SHARE OF FORECAST OVER / (UNDER) SPEND* 4,272,828

SUNDERLAND CITY COUNCIL SHARE OF FORECAST OVER / (UNDER) SPEND* 3,287,886

* Share of over / (under) spends are determined in line with sc75 agreement of the BCF for 2016/17.  
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

 
GOVERNING BODY 

23 MAY 2017 

Report Title: SCCG Assurance Report – May 2017 

Purpose of report 

To provide the Governing Body with the current position against the CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework requirements and delivery against the CCG Operational Plan for 2016/17 

Key points, risks and assurances 

Key point to note: 
For 2016/17, a new CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF) was introduced to 
replace the previous CCG assurance framework and CCG performance dashboard (delivery 
dashboard).  Due to the availability of data for the new indicators and baseline positions, a number 
of indicators are still to be populated.  The business intelligence team (BI) continue to establish 
data flows from national data and local data to serve as a proxy (where available). 
 
Where data is available for the six clinical priorities, an estimated performance position is provided. 
 
An update in relation to Sunderland CCG’s (SCCG) 2016/17 operational plan is provided. Key 
points include:  

‾ As reported last month, the sustainability programme is rated as red overall. 
‾ Since April’s report, there have been two changes to overall project rating; the urgent care 

strategy project has changed from green to amber and the STFT contract review, within the 
sustainability programme, has changed from amber to green. 

‾ The learning disabilities and autism care and treatment reviews (CTR) and care programme 
approach (CPA) project is now complete and has closed. 

‾ Three projects remain amber overall in this reporting period: integrated self-care and LTC 
rehabilitation project within the CVD programme; paediatric primary and community care; 
and the urgent care strategy; 

‾ There are three amber risks related to the STFT contract review and home oxygen project 
within the sustainability programme and the self-care and LTC rehabilitation project within 
the CVD programme. 

‾ An update in relation to the work that has taken place to prepare for delivery of the 2017 - 
2019 operational plan. 

‾ Updates in relation to: general practice; ambulatory emergency care; cancer; CVD, 
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specifically in relation to diabetes; and implementing wave 2 NHS Right Care. 
 
key performance risks based on latest data available for each indicator: 
 

 A&E 95% City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust (CHS NHSFT) performance. 

 Referral to Treatment (RTT) at CHS NHSFT particularly orthopaedics, respiratory medicine 
and emerging risks for dermatology at CDDFT. 

 Cancer 62 day performance 

 MRSA at CHS NHSFT 

 Ambulance performance 

 Activity Levels in secondary care due to expected reduction in non-elective activity 

 Anti-microbial resistance which is a quality premium indicator. 

 Use of NHS e-Referral which is a quality premium indicator 

 Four week smoking quitters which is a quality premium indicator 

 Diagnostics at CHS NHSFT particularly around echocardiography 

 Short stay emergency admissions for people aged 75+  which is a quality premium indicator  

 Emergency admissions for falls  which is a quality premium indicator 

 Clinical priority areas such as maternity, diabetes, learning disabilities and dementia 
 
 

Recommendation/Action Required 

The Governing Body is asked to: 

 Note the position and progress against each indicator in the 2016/17 improvement and 
assessment framework. 

 Note the baseline position for each of the six clinical priority areas. 

 Note the predicted CCG Quality premium payment relating to 2016/17.  

 Note the progress on delivery of the 2016/17 operational plan and progress to date in 
respect of moving to deliver and report on the 2017 - 2019 operational plan. 
 

Sponsor/approving director   
Debbie Burnicle 

Deputy Chief Officer 

Report author 

Matt Thubron 

Deputy Head of Contracting, Performance and 

Business Intelligence 

Helen Steadman 

Strategy and Planning Manager 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties  

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  
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CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming services   

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Any relevant legal/statutory issues 

No 

Are the identified risks on the risk register?  

Yes  
647 – Accident and Emergency 4 Hour Wait 
643 – Referral to Treatment 
1285 – Non Electives/QIPP 
1074 - MRSA 
657 – Astro PU/Prescribing Spend 
1075 – C Difficile 

 

If issue/report has been previously reviewed please specify meeting and date 

A report is provided monthly to the Executive Committee and to every Governing Body  

Equality analysis completed 

(please tick)  
Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 

required?   

No  

Has there been appropriate 

clinical engagement?  
Yes via the clinical leads and Executive GP leads 

Any current or expected 

impact on patient 

outcomes/experience? 

 

Yes as per the Executive Summary and each programme 
update 
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*CCG Corporate Objectives 

CO1 - Ensure the CCG meets it public accountability duties 

CO2 - Maintain financial control and performance targets 

CO3 - Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned 

services 

CO4 - Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and  

  reforming services  

CO5 - Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities 

CO6 - Develop the CCG localities 

CO7 - Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care 

Fund   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Has there been member 

practice and/or other 

stakeholder engagement if 

needed?   

Yes via the Programme Boards which are multi agency and via 
specific operational groups and contract management 
meetings e.g. the HCAI group with CHS and the NTW contract 
meetings re IAPT   
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Governing Body 
Assurance Framework 

23rd May 2017 
 

1. Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Governing Body with an update in 
relation to the current position for the CCG against the 2016/17 CCG 
improvement and assessment framework (IAF) and progress with delivery of 
the operational plan transformation programmes.   

 
Due to the lack of baseline information for some of the new indicators in the 
framework, a number of indicators have no performance rating.   
 
As some of these indicators rely on nationally published data which is not 
timely, the BI Team will be working to develop proxy measures where the ability 
is there to do so.  Where data is available from local data sources for 2016/17, 
this is referenced in the report.  
 

 
2. 2016/17 improvement and assessment framework 
 
 NHS England introduced a new improvement and assessment framework (IAF) 

for 2016/17 which replaces the CCG assurance framework and delivery 
dashboard which operated in previous years.  In the Government’s Mandate to 
NHS England, the new framework takes an enhanced and more central place 
in the overall arrangements for public accountability of the NHS.   

 
 The IAF draws together in one place NHS Constitution and other core 

performance and finance indicators, outcome goals and transformational 
challenges. 

 
 A full list of the indicators is included within the performance scorecard included 

in Appendix two of this report.  Leadership and sustainability will not be 
reported as these are full year assessments.     

 
 The finance aspects are covered by the Finance Report.   
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3. Changes since last month’s report 

 
o The QP achievement remains at £0 but some elements of data are currently 

out of date due to no recent published information. 
 

o Updated information has been included against a number of indicators in the 
IAF which is included within the appendices.  This is based on an updated 
release of the national dashboard.  

 
o Diagnostics performance is still not achieving due to pressures in 

echocardiography at CHS NHSFT and short term pressures in CT. 
 

o Further detail for each of the six clinical priorities including an estimate of the 
current position and an assessment of what indicators the CCG need to 
focus on to improve on the baseline position. 

 
o Cancer performance remains in achievement across all standards but still 

pressures around urology going into 2017/18. 
 

o Improvements in overall Referral to Treatment (RTT) performance after a 
period of decline due to improvements in a number of specialties.   

 
o Accident and Emergency four hour wait at CHS NHSFT was below the 95% 

standard for 2016/17 but the health economy achieved the standard.  
Improved performance so far in April 17. 

 
o The CCG remain above the national standards and expectations for all 

Mental Health indicators with IAPT performance improving steadily. 
 

o Continued increased non elective admissions affecting all related indicators 
including quality premium indicators and other elements of the IAF. 

 

4. NHS Constitution Indicators  
 
o Referral to Treatment (RTT) – CHS NHSFT and the CCG’s performance for 

the year to date as at January 2017 remains in achievement of the standard.  
Performance has improved on December 2016 and early information for 
February 2017 shows a further improvement. 

 
The following performance is for January 17 which shows the same 
specialties failing to achieve the RTT incomplete constitutional standard as 
in December 16. 
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ENT and rheumatology are now above the 92% standard for February 17 
which means the only two specialties not achieving the incomplete standard 
are orthopaedics and rheumatology. 
 
Orthopaedics remains a pressure for the CCG and CHS NHSFT but recent 
performance has shown no improvement despite an improvement trajectory 
and action plan in place at CHS NHSFT.  Demand has decreased from the 
vast majorities of CCGs and over 18 week waiters have reduced slightly 
month on month but performance has actually decreased.  CHS NHSFT 
have also picked this up and are working with the department to understand 
why.  The contracting team have asked for an updated action plan and 
assurance that patients are being treated in clinical priority order and the 
action plan is addressing the areas of pressure e.g. sub specialisms of foot 
and ankle etc.  Further detail will be included within the June 17 update. 
 
Respiratory medicine has shown a slight deterioration from the previous 
month but CHS NHSFT now have additional consultants in place to carry out 
the required work on the backlog.  CHS NHSFT have identified that the main 
area of pressure relates to sleep studies so there will be some targeted work 
in April 17 and May 17 which should help improve performance.  A revised 
trajectory has been requested from CHS NHSFT. 
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o Diagnostics – Diagnostics continues to be a pressure for the CCG, mainly 
due to echocardiography at CHS NHSFT as detailed in previous reports.  
The improvement trajectory agreed sees performance back in achievement 
of the standard from July 17 and performance for this area is on track.  
There was a further short term issue in January 17 around CT at CHS 
NHSFT due to a broken scanner which was fixed very quickly but 
unfortunately a number of patients breached 6 weeks.  This is now resolved.  
Regarding echocardiography, increased capacity and additional staffing in 
the form of locums and staff from STFT are now in place. 
 

o A&E 95% – The Sunderland health economy achieved the 95% standard in 
2016/17 with performance of 95.11% despite a deterioration in performance 
at CHS NHSFT during the ‘winter’ period.  CHS NHSFT ended the year with 
performance of 92.97% (still subject to validation) with type 1 performance 
the main driver.  The end of year performance position was lower than 
2015/16 despite increased activity reporting in-line with the recording of 
streamed patients to the GP led urgent care centre which inflated activity 
levels in 2016/17. 

 
CHS NHSFT have submitted an improvement trajectory to NHS 
Improvement which is still subject to agreement which sees an improvement 
on the previous year and delivery of the 95% standard in March 18.  It has 
also been confirmed that the entire System Transformation Fund (STF) 
calculation will be based on finance and the four hour wait only (although 
CHS NHSFT were asked to submit improvement trajectories for other 
areas). 

Discussions continue to take place at the A&E Delivery Board around current 
performance as well as providing assurance to NHS England around 
“winter”.  The continued focus on streaming at the front door remains the key 
discussion at the A&E Delivery Board as well as increasing pressures across 
the system including ambulance performance and arrivals into CHS NHSFT. 
A special A/E Delivery Board workshop to review the overall position and 
next steps is taking place on 8.5.17.  
 
The CCG met with representatives from NEAS and CHS NHSFT to help 
understand what actions can be taken to improve ambulance handover and 
turnaround times as well as understand the volumes of ambulances going 
into CHS NHSFT.  It is clear that the environmental issues relating to the 
new build are contributing to increased handover delays which should 
improve in May 17 but a piece of work has been agreed which is to scope 
out an audit on site at CHS NHSFT by NEAS to understand the case mix 
arriving at CHS NHSFT as well as understand the pathway and turnaround 
times.  This is due to be reported back to the next A&E Delivery Board.  
 

o Cancer standards – The CCG continues to be in a good position for all 
cancer standards for the year to date as at January 17 although pressures 
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remain with cancer 62 days.  Access to diagnostics is a key pressure; 
particularly in urology and CHS NHSFT continue to work with the department 
to improve diagnostics access both on-site at Sunderland Royal Hospital and 
off-site at County Durham and Darlington NHS FT (CDDFT).   

 
Despite CHS NHSFT flagging pressures into quarter three and four, CHS 
NHSFT performance should be in achievement of the standard quarter three 
which is encouraging but risks still remain into quarter four.  
 
CHS NHSFT have secured the level of theatre capacity needed both on site 
and off site at CDDFT short term to help improve performance for 2016/17 
for Urology but further work is needed at CHS NHSFT to secure recurrent 
capacity going forward.     
 

 
 

 
 

o Red 1 Category A calls responded to within 8 minutes – Performance for 
February 2017 is not achieving the national standards with performance of 
69.78% for red 1 and 62.67% for red 2.  Performance has increased in red 1 
over the previous month.  Workforce pressures around recruitment and 
sickness absence remain a significant issue as well as the volume of calls 
and incidents.  Handover delays are also significant compared to previous 
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years which is further compounding the issue for NEAS with a significant 
amount of time lost due to handover delays. 
 
NEAS continue to focus on recruitment and reducing sickness absence rates 
as well as initiatives such as: 
 
- Reducing the number of patients conveyed to hospital 
- Focused work on the Nature of Call compliance leading to greater 

accuracy and identification of red 1 incidents 
- Working in partnerships with local foundation trusts to develop local 

action plans to improve handover delays and turnaround times 
 

The Sunderland Paramedic Pathfinder project was introduced from May’16 
and will run through to May ’17.   

 
o Training was completed on the 7th December with 121 staff trained 

who operate in the Sunderland and directly surrounding areas. 
o The 121 staff that have been trained will capture approximately 30% of 

paramedic staff on duty at one time which limits the impact. A regional 
wide roll out would resolve the issue of crews crossing CCG borders.  

o Whilst a number of crews have historically referred to Chest Pain 
Assessment Unit (CPAU), there has been no data capture prior to the 
introduction of Paramedic Pathfinder.       

o The capture of accurate referral data has proved to be problematic due 
to the introduction of the new electronic Patient Care Record (ePCR) 
within NEAS. Crews have to input Pathfinder referrals manually into the 
free text section and data capture is reliant on manually searching 
through Patient Reports for Pathfinder referrals. It is therefore  possible 
that there have been many more referrals have not been reported, 
particularly those ones that have resulted in see, treat and discharge 
with self-care advice 

 
The below table shows activity and the proportion of referrals avoiding arrival 
at secondary care for October 16 to February 17.  Approximately 80% of 
referrals are step down over that time period which is 500 over the five 
month period. 
 

 

Service Accepted Refused

% Referrals 

Avoiding 

Admission

Accepted Refused

% Referrals 

Avoiding 

Admission

Accepted Refused

% Referrals 

Avoiding 

Admission

Accepted Refused

% Referrals 

Avoiding 

Admission

Accepted Refused

% Referrals 

Avoiding 

Admission

Ambulatory Care at CHS* 12 15 44.44% 22 10 68.75% 13 14 48.15% 16 12 57.14% 11 9 55.00%

Recovery at Home 32 8 80.00% 40 4 90.91% 30 4 88.24% 36 10 78.26% 34 6 85.00%

Pallion Urgent Care Centre 11 2 84.62% 9 2 81.82% 10 0 100.00% 14 5 73.68% 16 6 72.73%

General Practice 23 0 100.00% 19 0 100.00% 26 1 96.30% 32 1 96.97% 36 3 92.31%

Initial Response Team 5 0 100.00% 2 0 100.00% 2 2 50.00% 1 0 100.00% 4 1 80.00%

GP Out of Hours 11 0 100.00% 2 0 100.00% 11 2 84.62% 9 2 81.82% 14 2 87.50%

NDUC Urgent Care Centres 3 0 100.00% 6 0 100.00% 9 0 100.00% 6 0 100.00% 3 0 100.00%

Palliative Care Teams 1 0 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 2 0 100.00% 1 0 100.00% 0 0 0.00%

Renal Ambulatory Unit 1 0 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

Other 0 0 0.00% 1 0 0.00% 1 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 100.00%

99 25 79.84% 101 16 86.32% 104 23 81.89% 115 30 79.31% 119 27 81.51%

Feb-17Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17
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 A more focussed review of NEAS performance and proposals for 
improvement is to be presented to the June 2017 Executive committee due 
to continuing concerns about the monthly performance updates. 
 

5. Other mandatory national requirements 
 

o HCAI – MRSA remains at five cases for 2016/17, all attributable to CHS 
NHSFT.  The findings of the post investigation reviews (PIR) are included 
within the HCAI Improvement Plan. 
 

o C. difficile for CHS NHSFT and the CCG finished the year below national 
expectations (CHS NHSFT finished the year contractually below due to 
upheld appeals to the HCAI Improvement Group). 

 

6. Better health 
 
Due to the nature of some of the indicators, actual performance will not be 
available due to many indicators being annually published.  Where performance 
is being reported, this may be actuals based on proxy data from providers or 
local intelligence.  These are flagged on each indicator as part of the 
dashboard. 
 
Baselines have been published for the following indicators on MyNHS: 
 
o Personalisation and choice 

o Personal health budgets 
o Proportion of deaths which take place in hospital 

o Health inequalities 
o Avoidable emergency admissions 

o Clinical priority – diabetes 
o Diabetes patients that have achieved all the NICE-recommended 

treatment targets: Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and blood pressure) 
for adults and one (HbA1c) for children 

o People with diabetes diagnosed less than a year who attend a 
structured education course 

o Child obesity 
o Percentage of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight or 

obese 
o Smoking 

o Maternal smoking at delivery 
o Successful smoking quitters at 4 weeks - (quality premium) 

o Falls 
o Injuries from falls in people aged 65 and over - (quality premium) 

o Anti-microbial resistance 
o Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate prescribing of antibiotics in 

primary care - (quality premium) 
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o Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate prescribing of broad 
spectrum antibiotics in primary care - (quality premium) 

o Carers 
o Quality of life for carers. 

 
 The dashboard also includes a local risk assessment based on current 

performance and benchmarking that has been made available.   

o Anti-microbial resistance (quality premium) remains a challenge for the 
CCG as the CCG are currently achieving the primary care element of the 
indicator but by seeing an improvement in this element, it is impacting 
upon the second element relating to appropriate prescribing of broad 
spectrum anti-biotics in primary care.  The following actions have been 
taken to help improve performance but risks remain to delivery for 
2016/17. 

o Regular antimicrobial prescribing benchmarking reports are provided to 
practices 

o As cephalexin accounts for the majority of the broad spectrum antibiotic 
prescribing in Sunderland, practice pharmacists have completed an audit 
on cephalexin prescribing at prescriber level in each practice. The results 
have been fed back in practices, in a special newsletter and at the 
December TITO MO stall. 

o The MO pilot of point of care C-Reactive Protein (CRP) testing for 
respiratory tract infections in general practice is on-going in four practices. 
The evaluation of this project is expected to be completed end June 2017. 

o These areas to be included in the GP Quality Premium 17/18 going to the 
April Primary Care Committee for approval 

o GP referrals made via NHS e-Referral (eRS) (quality premium) is not 
achieving the national expectation as at December 2016 with performance 
of 72% against a target of 80%.  CHS NHSFT have an action plan in place 
to increase the number of services on NHS e-Referral but issues still 
remain around the levels of paper referrals into CHS NHSFT so work is 
on-going to understand the system wide actions which can be taken to 
improve performance.  It is likely that this element will not deliver for 
2016/17 due to the complexities around use of NHS e-Referral but plans 
are currently in the process of being drawn up alongside CQUIN for 
2017/18 to help increase performance in-line with contractual and national 
requirements.   

o Four week smoking quitters (quality premium) is currently below trajectory 
as of December 2016.  Despite assurances that performance usually 
increases in quarter four each year, performance is significantly below 
expectations so achievement of this indicator is a significant challenge.   

o Injuries from falls for over 65s (quality premium) is currently being reported 
as a proxy measure and is showing an under achievement against our 
locally set trajectory, which is linked to the overall increase in short stay 
emergency admissions into CHS NHSFT. 
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o Shorty stay emergency admissions for people aged 75+ (quality premium) 
is showing an under achievement against our locally set trajectory, due to 
increased emergency admissions into CHS NHSFT which is detailed later 
in the report. 

o Personal health budgets (PHB) information is now available for the first 
two quarters which shows seven PHBs in place in Sunderland which is 
significantly lower than the regional and national position.  Work is on-
going to try and understand what others are doing with PHBs as well as 
look at opportunities across work streams such as CHC and patient 
transport but this is just exploratory at this point. This is also an expected 
part of the national MCP framework and the local PMO are exploring any 
additional support they could bring to this area e.g. linkages with Stockton 
who have national pilot status. 

 

7. Better care 
 
Baselines have now been made available for a number of indicators within this 
section of the IAF.  Due to the nature of some of the indicators, actual 
performance will not be available due to many indicators being annually 
published.  Where performance is being reported, this may be actuals based on 
proxy data from providers or local intelligence.  These are flagged on each 
indicator as part of the dashboard. 
 
Baselines have been published for the following indicators on MyNHS: 
 
o Urgent and emergency  

o Emergency admissions for urgent care sensitive conditions 
o Short stay emergency admissions for ages 75+ - (Quality 

premium) 
o Delayed transfers of care attributable to the NHS per 100,000 

population 
o Primary medical care 

o Patient experience of GP services - (quality premium) 
o NHS Continuing Healthcare 
o Clinical priority – dementia 

o Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia 
o Clinical priority – cancer 

o Cancers diagnosed at early stage - (quality premium) 
o One-year survival from all cancers 
o Cancer patient experience 

o Learning disabilities (LD) 
o Reliance on specialist inpatient care for people with a learning 

disability and/or autism 
o Proportion of people with a learning disability on the GP register 

receiving an annual health check 
o Mental health 
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o Improving Access to Psychological Therapies recovery rate 
o People with first episode of psychosis starting treatment with a 

NICE-recommended package of care treated within 2 weeks of 
referral 
 

The dashboard also includes a local risk assessment based on current 

performance and benchmarking that has been made available. 

o The CCG continues to achieve the estimated diagnosis rates with 
performance of 75.4% of the estimated people with dementia who have a 
diagnosis which is a slight decline over the past two months. 
 

o Delayed transfers of care (DTOC) remain significantly below 2015/16 and 
2014/15 with performance 33% lower for the first ten months of the year. 
 

o A number of mental health transformation indicators have been published 
based on the CCGs quarterly returns.  Crisis care, liaison mental health and 
out of area placements are all rates as fully compliant which mental health 
services for children and young people (CYPMHS) is rated as not compliant 
due to the CCG not being able to demonstrate increased expenditure by at 
least our allocation of baseline funding for 2016/17 compared to 2015/16.  The 
CCG are due to submit the quarter four self-assessment which should see 
CYPMHS move from requires improvement to meets expectation but that is 
subject to NHS England’s view of the financial element of the assessment.  
 

o Support for the Cancer early diagnosis is being considered as part of the 
suggested GP Quality Premium for 17/18 

 

8. Clinical Priorities 
 
Included within appendix two is the CCG’s baseline assessment against the six 
clinical priority areas which form part of the IAF.  Also included is an 
assessment of the current position based on the latest information available 
and local intelligence.  The BI Team and leads have identified opportunities to 
improve performance based on coding for a number of indicators which are 
currently being investigated but other indicators require service re-design and 
are longer term.     
 
Based on the current data available there are estimated to be no change to the 
previously reported positions with: 

 Cancer is likely to be top performing due to current performance in the 
62 day standard and latest published information for patient experience.  
Please note that this is affected by the national calculation so if the rest 
of the country also improve, the CCG may not be top performing.  Risks 
also remain to the 62 standard which could affect performance against 
the priority 
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 Mental health remains at performing well due to performance of Early 
Interventional Psychosis (EIP) indicator and IAPT recovery indicator.  
The CCG are currently performing well above expectations for EIP and 
need performance in IAPT recovery to improve by an additional 3% to a 
55% recovery rate to move up to top performing which is very close 
given current performance. 

 

 Dementia remains at needs improvement due to performance in the care 
plan review indicator.  The CCG would need to see an improvement of 
around 0.2% to 2% in this indicator to move to performing well and 3% to 
4% to top performing and see no deterioration in the dementia diagnosis 
rate.  The CCG are already in the top cohort for dementia diagnosis.  A 
baseline position for each practice is now available and has been 
provided to the CCGs management lead with a view to distributing 
amongst practices in order to check coding against national 
requirements but also provide an understanding as to whether any 
patients have a plan but are not coded and whether or not links can be 
made to patients who are part of an Community Integrated Team (CIT) 
who have a health and social care plan. 

 

 Diabetes is currently rated at needs improvement due to the structured 
education course indicator.  In order to move to performing well the CCG 
would need a 4% improvement (from 1.8% of people with diabetes 
attending a structured education course to 5.7%) and move from above 
that to be performing well (assuming the national position stays the 
same) to be top performing.  Again, there are potential issues with 
coding in primary care but it has been identified that work will also need 
to take place around referring people with diabetes onto the education 
course (DESMOND) and potentially extending the acceptance criteria of 
the current service from 6 months to 12 months.   

 

 Learning disabilities (LD) is currently rated as needs improvement and 
this indicator is complicated by the fact the reliance on inpatient beds for 
patients with LD is based on the North East and Cumbria Transforming 
Care Partnership Position (TCP).  Sunderland is in a good position but to 
improve from needs improvement, the TCP would need to improve 
significantly in comparison to the England position and to be top 
performing, we would also need to see an improvement in the number of 
annual health checks carried out for people with LD.  Again coding 
opportunities are being explored and work with General Practice around 
carrying out health checks supported by the proposed GP Quality 
Premium for 17/18.  Practice baselines have been shared with the 
management lead for distribution to practices.   

 

 Maternity is the most complex of the six clinical priorities given the 
number and nature of indicators involved.  The CCG is currently rated as 
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needs improvement due to comparable performance to national figures 
for 3 out of the four indicators and poor performance for smoking during 
pregnancy.  There are many connotations to improve performance but 
all are linked to national performance.  If smoking during pregnancy 
stayed the same, the CCG would need to move into the top quartile for 
performance in any two of the other indicators (experience, choice and 
still births) to move to performing well.  It is accepted that in order to 
really improve the overall domain rating, the CCG would need to see a 
significant improvement in the smoking during pregnancy indicator and 
accepting that the national position would move as the country try to 
improve, it is a significant challenge.  The contracting team are working 
in collaboration with Sunderland City Council and CHS NHSFT to use 
the £75k given to the CCG to improve smoking at time of delivery.  CHS 
NHSFT have ordered additional co2 monitors for midwives and are 
organising targeted training for midwives to ensure that the BabyClear 
programme is embedded in core delivery as well as increasing training 
to healthcare assistants.   

 

9. Activity 
 

o Non Elective Inpatients – Published information for January 17 shows the CCG 
continue to be above the trajectory and some way off achievement but the 
variance against trajectory for December 2016 and January 2017 was much 
lower than expected (albeit above trajectory).  The increased activity relates to 
increased use of ambulatory care and assessment/observation wards linked to 
streaming in A&E in which activity is being recorded and charged as 
admissions.  Although analysis is not evidenced clinically, activity at diagnosis 
level shows growth in areas which appear to be very minor and what look to 
have been treated in A&E previously such as abscesses, nose bleeds and skin 
conditions.  The CCG have undertaken a system wide audit in March 2017 
with an initial focus on emergency readmissions.  The indicative 
information (still subject to validation by the provider) suggests that 33% 
of readmissions could have been avoided through actions taken by an 
appropriate agency.  A summary report has been prepared and will be 
distributed to the members of the Sunderland Care Models Assurance Group 
(SCMAG) and the Community Services Provider Board as a number of the 
recommendations will need to be addressed by that group.  One of the key 
recommendations will be to carry out a further audit of short stay admissions 
(which was not feasible under the time constraints) which will help inform the 
work on ambulatory care, ED interface work and also further developments to 
the out of hospital model. 
 
Although emergency admissions are increasing at an overall level, updated 
tracking of patients who are part of a Community Integrated Team (CIT) for 41 
practices shows an impact on health related contacts, particularly A&E 
and non-elective admissions with a 13.7% reduction post MDT compared 
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to the same period prior to the patient having an MDT.  Although health 
focused, it is showing an impact but more work is needed to understand the 
effectiveness of MDTs, understand the variation across Sunderland and also 
expand the scope to cover more than just secondary care. The MCP Provider 
Executive Board have set off a review of the MDT process and will be making 
recommendations to commissioners shortly.  There has also been some 
anecdotal evidence about MDTs moving from weekly to fortnightly due to 
attendance problems from partners.  This will be challenged in the review.   
 
One key development is an information dashboard which Localities are very 
keen to have access to and use to understand the impact they are making and 
to enable peer review.  This will in effect be a full CIT specific emergency 
admissions dashboard which is in the process of being finalised which will be 
shared with CITs along with the usual suite of information.  
 
The CCG will not amend the GPA contract for input into MDTs until the provider 
review has taken place but this will include a closer look at high cost patients 
and frequent fliers to ensure the process is taking account of these patients. 
The guidance for MDTs will then be reviewed. 
 
Other work streams related to reducing emergency admissions are in place, 
particularly the Consultant Connect pilot which is referenced later in the report 
which has been extended until October 17 and is demonstrating a reduction in 
emergency admissions. 
 

o Elective Inpatients – Elective activity continues to be below trajectory which no 
impact on RTT performance which is encouraging.  GP referrals also continue 
to decrease but it is key that we continue to triangulate information to ensure 
performance remains above the national standards.     
 

Please note that a narrative is included within the main scorecard for each indicator. 
 
10. Quality premium 
 

A new quality premium is in place for 2016/17 worth £1.421m depending upon 
achievement.  The 2016/17 QP is split into two sections; the first being 
nationally mandated measures (70% of the scheme) and the second being 
locally selected measures (30% of the scheme) and the measures are as 
follows: 

 
o National measures 

o Cancers diagnosed at early stage (20% of the scheme) 
o GP referrals made by NHS e-Referral (20% of the scheme) 
o Overall experience of making a GP appointment (20% of the scheme) 
o Improving antibiotic prescribing in primary care (10% of the scheme) 

o Local measures 
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o Reduction in the number of injuries from falls for ages 65 and over 
(10% of the scheme) 

o Reduction in short stay emergency admissions for ages 75 and over 
(10% of the scheme) 

o Maintain the number of smoking quitters at 2015/16 levels (10% of the 
scheme) 

 
As with previous years, a number of financial penalties will be incurred if the 
CCG do not deliver a number of constitutional targets which are A&E 4 hour 
wait, RTT which is now only for incomplete pathways, Cancer 62 days and 
NEAS red 1 ambulance calls.   

A full breakdown of the QP for 2016/17 is including in appendix four of this 
report along with a risk assessment against each indicator based on previously 
available data and local intelligence.  At this point, performance against the QP 
is estimated to be £0 due to deterioration in the short stay emergency 
admissions indicator.  As data availability is limited, the risk assessment for 
each indicator is based on current performance and local intelligence and this 
will develop throughout the year as more robust data becomes available. 

 
The purpose of this section of the report is to provide the Executive with an 
update in relation to Sunderland CCG’s (SCCG) 2016/17 operational plan.  

 
11. Operational plan 2016/17 

The purpose of this section of the report is to provide the Executive with an 
update in relation to Sunderland CCG’s (SCCG) 2016/17 operational plan and 
advise of progress in relation to planning delivery for 2017 - 2019.  

 
 

11.1  Plan delivery 
11.1.1 The appended dashboard summarises the current position for the 11 

transformation programmes on the 2016/17 plan on a page (PoaP) 
which includes the productivity projects within the sustainability 
programme as of   11 April 2017.  
Overall project RAG rating -– changes since last month 

 
11.1.2 Since last month, there have been two changes to the overall project 

rating for the projects on the CCG PoaP; the urgent care strategy 
project has changed from green to amber and the STFT contract 
review has changed from amber to green   

 Urgent care strategy - The outline case for change (OCfC) 
including service configuration options, due for submission to the 
Executive Committee in April has slipped due to the complexities of 
the interdependencies of this project with the implementation of 
Extended Access in primary care and publication by NHS England in 
March 2017 of mandated best practice. A change control request to 
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agree the submission date of the OCfC to the Executive Committee 
has been submitted to Ann Fox as Director lead for this project. 
Engagement with practices in respect of potential future service 
configuration is planned in April and May.  Work is to take place to 
understand the impact and risks  associated with this slippage of 
project timescales.  

 STFT contract review - the STFT contract has been agreed for 
2017/18 with the efficiency included in the overall financial envelope.  
STFT have identified an area where the efficiency can be applied in 
Care Homes without the model being jeopardised.  The CCG have 
recommended that this is discussed and agreed with Providers as 
part of the MCP Leadership Group and then ratified by the 
Sunderland Care Model Assurance Group.  The 18/19 efficiency will 
be taken forward in 2017/18 as part of the 2017/18 operational 
planning process. 

 
11.1.3 In this reporting period there are three amber risks relating to the 

home oxygen, integrated self-care and LTC rehabilitation and 
STFT contract review projects. 

 

 STFT contract review – the CCG have agreed a two year contract 
with STFT with a £1m efficiency coming out of the contract over 
17/18 and 18/19.  STFT have committed to work with the CCG to 
release the efficiencies.  The CCG have allocated a further £0.5m 
reduction to the LTC rehab work which is being progressed.  Due to 
the need to conclude the rebasing of the contract, which is a 
commitment in 16/17, a risk still remains until this is concluded. 

 Home oxygen service – the process for Air Liquide to follow to 
remove unused oxygen has been approved by the Executive 
Committee and can now be implemented. Air Liquide are supportive 
of this and in addition have developed a process for removal of 
oxygen from patients that do not engage with the service and have 
initiated removal of oxygen from one patient with agreement from the 
CCG. These processes support the removal of unused oxygen while 
mitigating against the risk that the patient will incur additional costs 
by requesting re-installation of oxygen. Cost savings have been 
revisited with finance colleagues and targets will remain the same as 
will be achieved by reducing oxygen use to average for the area. 
However, it is recognised that savings will only be released over time 
i.e. within the next 2-3 years. The HOS-AR contract has been 
awarded for 2017-19, with the new service specification that will 
reduce inappropriate initiations of oxygen and this too will support 
cost reductions.  

 Integrated self-care and rehabilitation project – the rating has 
changed from red to amber following internal discussions and 
agreement to pursue the 2017/18 productivity savings in year 
through contract efficiencies. However, there is also a risk of 
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challenge to deliver the model through existing providers and not to 
go out to the market. Equally this approach assumes that providers 
in the MCP will agree to deliver the new model of care.  Discussions 
with the Provider Board are currently underway. 

  
11.2 For information 
 

11.2.1 As reported in March the overall rating of the sustainability 
programme remains red because of the risks regarding delivery of 
current and future schemes.  

 The 2017-19 productivity plan identifies a gap in productivity of 
£3.4m which is being covered by draw down. The plan assumes 
additional plans will be delivered in 2018/19 to cover the 2017/18 
shortfall.  

 Programme and project leads were assigned to productivity projects 
at the 03 April Director and SMT meeting, however next steps in 
relation to implementation need to be completed in a timely way.  

 Discussions continue with the MCP Senior leadership team 
regarding delivery of the MCP efficiencies. 

 
11.2.2 Three projects remain amber overall: 

 

 Paediatric primary and community care - This 2016/17 
productivity project was discussed at the Director and Senior 
Management team meeting on 04 April 2017 (section 11.4).It was 
agreed that no efficiency target would be assigned to this project and 
so a project lead would not be needed. 

 Integrated self-care and LTC rehabilitation – this project remains 
amber because of the decision to include this within the scope of the 
MCP, and not to procure, as well as long term staff sickness. Based 
upon the work that had been done in quarters 2 and 3 of 2016/17 
and further discussions with Vanguard leads for self-care and falls 
service review, NECS has drafted a proposed model of care and 
population based service specification. Given long term staff 
absence, exploratory discussions are taking place with the MCP 
PMO to understand whether there might be capacity to support the 
next stage of this project to engage with MCP providers regarding 
the model of care and mobilisation. The delivery of the forecast 
efficiency of £525k through the new model of care/service 
specification needs to be reviewed and a process to be agreed to 
engage on the specification and implementation. 

 Urgent care strategy – discussed in 11.1.2 
 

11.2 3 General Practice 

Further to April’s update, consultation has taken place with the LMC 
and Practices. The Quality Premium was presented to the Executive at 
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the beginning of April 2017, requesting comments. To date only one 
comment has been received requesting information regarding 
monitoring of performance against the QP. The document is to be 
presented to the Primary Care Committee at the end of April. Finances 
have been agreed. The QP will be launched during May 2017, slipping 
from the original 1 April 2017 mobilisation date. This slippage was 
discussed and a revised date agreed at the recent SCCG Development 
Session.   

 
11.2.4 Ambulatory emergency care – an acute surgical pilot was launched 

on 3rd April to run until 5pm on 13th April.  Results from this pilot will be 
used to inform the shape of the service going forward.  

  
11.2.5 Cancer - The implementation of the Cancer Plan continues to be 

monitored through the Task and Finish Group. Practices have begun to 
return cancer improvement scheme plans and evaluation has begun. 
As some of the data is released annually at a national level this will limit 
when a full evaluation will be complete. The elements of the scheme - 
screening recall, significant event audit and safety netting have been 
put into the draft Quality Premium which should ensure sustainability 
and is due to be launched in April 2017. Practice visits have been 
completed and Cancer Research UK will visit in 6 months to review and 
are also completing an evaluation.  

 
The Cancer Alliance Commissioning Forum has been formally 
launched. Two regional pieces of work are in progress: a review of 
breast services and Upper GI / heptobilliary services. Transformation 
bids were submitted on behalf of the STP footprint by the Cancer 
Alliance, to access national funding to progress some of the key targets 
around early diagnosis, implementing the recovery package and 
stratified follow up pathways were successful. Funding will be allocated 
throughout 2017/18, which includes resource for Sunderland to 
implement these initiatives in a regional approach. The Breast 
Assessment service in Sunderland is seeing new patients and a soft 
launch of the service will begin in April. The CCG are trying to arrange 
a meeting with CHSNHSFT urology services to discuss the potential for 
reforming pathways to relieve pressure and ensure the 62 day 
performance target is met however this has proved difficult to date. 

 

11.2.6 CVD – National Diabetes Prevention  Programme (NDPP) Wave 3 
 

Following April’s report, the Diabetes Prevention readiness assessment 
was completed and returned to the Northern England Clinical Network 
for Diabetes in accordance with the deadline of Monday 10th April. A 
follow up regional meeting will take place on 24th May but prior to this a 
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local meeting with secondary, primary and Public Health leads will take 
place to understand what would be required for Sunderland. 

 
11.2.7 CVD – national diabetes treatment and care transformation fund 

 
Sustainability and transformation areas were asked to bid for 
transformation funding for the national diabetes treatment and care 
transformation fund. The CCG supported and submitted a bid in 
accordance with the deadline of 18th January 2017 to improve the 
achievement of the NICE recommended targets and diabetes inpatient 
specialist nursing services (DISNs). We received notification on 20 April 
2017 that we have been allocated £250,000 for 2017/18 to improve 
achievement of the NICE recommended treatment targets for HbA1C, 
cholesterol and blood pressure. Unfortunately we were unsuccessful in 
the bid for a Diabetes Inpatient Specialist Nursing team as other bids 
were considered to offer a greater potential for sustainable 
improvement and greater potential for value. 

 
11.3 Wave Two NHS Right Care 
 

11.3.1 The CCG has concluded steps 3 and 4 of the ’15 step process’ 
reported in April’s report for submission to our Local NHS RightCare 
Delivery Partner:  

‾ Step 3: to agree and approve a decision making process as an initial 
filter to test viability and determine whether to prioritise and invest 
time in a reform/QIPP idea.  

‾ Step 4: to  self-assess against the five domains (leadership; 
engagement; intelligence; effective improvement processes; and 
capability/capacity) of NHS Right Care’s Quality framework  

 

11.4 2017-2019 operational plan 
 

11.4.1 To prepare for delivery of our two year plan, including the expanded 
sustainability programme, the following actions have been completed 
since April’s report: 
 03 April 2017 – Director and senior team meeting to share the 

outputs of the Governing Body development sessions in February 
and Director Time Out and to conclude discussions/decisions 
concerning 2017 -2019 plan delivery, operational requirements and 
alignment of the staff team.  

 
A report from the 03 April session documents the following actions: 

 
‾ Agreed a programme approach to deliver the 37 productivity 

schemes through the MCP and in hospital programmes 
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acknowledging interdependencies between projects in programmes 
and interrelationships between programmes. 

‾ Agreed the project leads for the projects within the programmes; 
where no project lead was identified, actions were agreed to move 
forward. 

‾ Reviewed the PoaP programmes in light of the move to become a 
strategic commissioner and delivery of our financial plan (37 
productivity schemes). 

‾ Agreed next steps to move to implementation. 
 

 28 & 29 March and 05 April – PMO improvement events on the 
project management toolkit. 

 
Outputs include: 

‾ Streamlined project management toolkit including written guidance 
to support understanding of requirements of project leads. 

‾ Assurance is being developed at the beginning, middle and end of a 
project life cycle. 

‾ A draft assurance report has been developed and shared with the 
CFO. 

‾ Completion and content of project documentation is variable. PMO 
have identified priority areas (risk and issues logs) to support project 
leads. 

‾ New streamlined project toolkit to be shared on 25 April. 
‾ New report to SDG regarding the productivity schemes for the 2017 -

2019 plan to start in June 2017.  
 

11.5 Recommendations 
The Governing Body is asked to note progress in relation to delivery of the 
2016/17 PoaP and preparations in respect of the delivery of the CCG’s 2017 - 
2019 operational plan 

 
Authors:  Matt Thubron 

Deputy Head of Contracting, Performance and Business 
Intelligence 

 
   Helen Steadman 
   Head of Strategy, Planning and Reform 
 
Sponsoring Director: Debbie Burnicle 
    Deputy Chief Officer 
 
Date:   5th May 2017
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Appendix two – Indicative performance against the 2016/17 CCG improvement and assessment framework (IAF) 
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2016/17 CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework 

 

Personalisation and Choice Urgent and emergency care

Health inequalities Primary medical care

Clinical priority: Diabetes NHS Continuing Healthcare

Child obesity Elective access

Smoking 7 day service

Falls Care ratings

Anti-microbial resistence    Clinical priorities:  Maternity

Carers Dementia

Cancer

Learning disabilities

Mental health

Quality of Leadership Estates strategy

Workforce engagement Allocative efficiency

CCGs' local relationships New models of care

Probity and corporate governance Financial sustainability

Sustainability and transformation plan Paper-free at the point of care

Risk assessment against the new improvement and assessment framework
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Clinical Priority Baseline Update 

 

 

Cancer
Cancer Indicators Trajectory Latest Data Performance Notes

New cases of cancer diagnosed at stage 1 and 2 as a proportion of all new cases of cancer diagnosed - (Quality Premium Indicator - National Priority) 50.70% 2014 53.40% Trajectory is based on national average baseline 2014.

People with an urgent GP referral having first definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of referral 85% Sept-16 YTD 87.43% 85% operating standard

Adults diagnosed with any type of cancer in a year who are still alive one year after diagnosis 70.20% 2013 69.40% Trajectory based on national average baseline 2013

Positive responses to the question "Overall how would you rate your care?" 8.7 2015 8.8 Trajectory based on national avg .2015, (published Nov '16)

Top 

Performing 

Mental Health
Mental Health Indicators Trajectory Latest Data Performance Notes

People ho ere i itiall  assessed as at ase ess , atte ded at least t o treat e t o ta ts, are oded as dis harged, a d are assessed as o i g to re o er 50% Aug-16 YTD 51.76% Nationally pubished monthly data - time lag.

People with first episode of psychosis starting treatment with a NICE-recommended package of care and treated within 2 weeks of referral 75% Jul-16 96.90% Rolling quarter

      Mental Health - Overall rating methodology (current position)

Performing well 50 - 55%
> 75%
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Dementia
Dementia Indicators Trajectory Latest Data Performance Notes

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia 70% Sep -16 -YTD 79.80%

Patients diagnosed with dementia who have had a face to face review of their care plan within the last 12 months 2014/15 75.40% Expected to be published in CCGIAF dashboard - Jan '17 (23/01/17)

Dementia - Overall rating methodology

Needs

improvement

76.7 - 100%

0 - 75.6%

Diabeties
Diabeties Indicators Trajectory Latest Data Performance Notes

Diabetes patients that have achieved all the NICE-recommended treatment targets: Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and blood pressure) for adults and on 40% 2014/15 42.40% Annual publication

People with diabetes diagnosed less than a year who attend a structured education course 5.7% 2014/15 1.80% Annual publication

Diabeties- Overall rating methodology (current position)

Needs

improvement

Significantly below national average (5.7%) 

based on a comparison using 95% confidence 

intervals

>40.2% (current median)
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Learning Disabilities
Learning Disabilities Indicators Trajectory Latest Data Performance Notes

Rate of inpatients per million GP registered adult population for each Transforming Care Partnership. CCGs are then assigned the score of the TCP they belong 59 June 16/17 87 per million Published quarterly.  Trajectory based on national average

47.0% 2014/15 55%

Learning Disabilites- Overall rating methodology

People ith a lear i g disa ilit  ho are o  the GP register a d re ei i g a  a ual health he k duri g the ear. Measured as a per e tage of the CCG’s 
registered learning disability population

Needs

improvement

Rate is significantly above the 

average rate

Performance is not significantly 

different to the average score

Maternity
Maternity Indicators Comparison Latest Data Performance

The s ore out of  for o e ’s e perie e of ater it  ser i es ased o  the  CQC Natio al Mater it  Ser i es Sur e 79.7 2015 84.9

The score out of 100 for choices offered to women in maternity services based on the National Maternity Services Survey 65.4 2015 63.2

The rate of stillbirths and deaths within 28 days of birth per 1,000 live births and stillbirths, reported at CCG of residence level by calendar year. 7 2014 8

Women who were smokers at the time of delivery 11.1% June -16 YTD 15.8%

Maternity- Overall rating methodology (current position)

1
Score is significantly 

above the average 

score

2

Score is not significantly 

different to the average 

score

3
Score is significantly 

below the average 

score

Indicator 

rating 

category

Maternal Smoking
Neonatal mortality 

and stillbirth

Experience of maternity 

services

Rate is not significantly 

diffenet to the average 

rate

Rate is significantly 

above the average rate

Rate is significantly 

above the average rate

Rate is not significantly 

diffenet to the average 

rate

Score is significantly above 

the average score

Score is not significantly 

different to the average 

score

Score is significantly below 

the average score

Choices in maternity 

services

Rate is significantly 

below the average rate

Rate is significantly 

below the average rate

Annual 2015.  Score out of 100.  Trajectory based on national average 2015

Notes

Trajectory based on national average 2015

Annual 2014.  Deaths per 1.000 live births.  Trajectory based on national 

trajectory based on national average Q3 2015/16

Needs

improvement
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Appendix 3 – IAF Dashboard 

 

2015/16 

Outturn

Latest 

Data

Actual 

To Date

Target 

To Date

Same 

Period 

Last 

Year

Risk to 

Year 

End

Comments

18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Admitted (adjusted) pathways 89.69% Jan-17 - YTD 85.48% 90.0% 85.57% Grey     

18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Non-admitted pathways 98.37% Jan-17 - YTD 95.65% 95.0% 96.39% Grey     

18 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - Incomplete Pathways 95.45% Jan-17 - YTD 94.71% 92.0% 94.6% Green     

52 Week Referral to Treatment Waiting Times - incomplete pathway 1 Mar-17 - YTD 0 0 1 Green No change since May 15    

  

Patients waiting more than 6 weeks for 15 key diagnostic tests 0.51% Jan-17 - YTD 1.34% 1.0% 0.76% Red

Pressures still relate to echocardiography and CHS NHSFT now have additional capacity through additional locums and 

capacity from STFT to focus on the backlog.  It is expected that performance will improve from July 17.  Pressures in 

January 17 for CT were unexpected due to a broken CT scanner which was quickly repaired.

    

% patients spending 4 hours or less in A&E or minor injury unit - City Hospitals Sunderland 93.57% Jan-17 - YTD 93.24% 95.0% 93.9% Red     

% patients spending 4 hours or less in A&E or minor injury unit - Northern Doctors Urgent Care 99.74% Jan-17 - YTD 99.22% 95.0% 99.8% Green     

No waits from decision to admit to admission (trolley waits) over 12 hours 1 Mar-17 - YTD 0 0 1 Green   

% patients seen within 2 weeks of urgent referral for suspected cancer 94.74% Jan-17 - YTD 95.87% 93.0% 94.26% Green     

% patients seen within 2 weeks of urgent referral for breast symptoms 94.04% Jan-17 - YTD 96.48% 93.0% 92.98% Green     

% patients treated within 31 days of cancer diagnosis 98.54% Jan-17 - YTD 98.70% 96.0% 98.8% Green     
Cancer diagnosis to treatment waiting times (31 day subsequent treatment surgery) 98.08% Jan-17 - YTD 97.69% 94.0% 98.3% Green     
Cancer diagnosis to treatment waiting times (31 day subsequent treatment drugs) 100.00% Jan-17 - YTD 99.86% 98.0% 100.0% Green   
Cancer diagnosis to treatment waiting times (31 day subsequent treatment radiotherapy) 98.36% Jan-17 - YTD 99.05% 94.0% 98.3% Green   

% patients treated within 62 days of urgent referral for suspected cancer 87.38% Jan-17 - YTD 87.37% 85.0% 87.6% Green

Despite the CCG delivering the standard overall, pressures still relate to urology at CHS NHSFT and the trust have agreed 

an improvement trajectory with NHS England which will see performance improve from September 2017.  This is on the 

back of an agreed business case for additional theatre sessions and supporting staff which is in the mobilisation stage 

now.

    

% patients treated within 62 days of urgent referral from NHS Cancer Screening Programmes 94.78% Jan-17 - YTD 94.62% 90.0% 95.0% Green     

62 day wait for first treatment for cancer following a consultants decision to upgrade the patient priority 73.61% Jan-17 - YTD 80.95% 85.0% 72.9% Grey

Please note that there is no national standard for this indicator, the 85% target is a locally agreed target with CHS NHSFT 

and is in place across a number of providers.  3 patients breached in November 15, all cited as being on a complicated 

pathway with multiple tumour groups requiring complex diagnostics.  1 patient breached due to surgery capacity for the 

Urology Robot at CHS and 2 breaches were due to MDT delays.

   

Ambulance: Cat A calls responded to <8 mins (Red 1 - Critical) 70.12% Feb-17 - YTD 69.78% 75.0% 71.0% Red     

Ambulance: Cat A calls responded to <8 mins (Red 2 - Serious) 70.85% Feb-17 - YTD 62.67% 75.0% 71.4% Red     

Ambulance: Cat A calls resulting in an ambulance arriving at the scene within 19 minutes 95.57% Feb-17 - YTD 92.95% 95.0% 95.7% Red     

Number of patient breaches of Mixed Sex Accommodation 0 Mar-17 - YTD 5 0 0 Red No change since September 2016.    

Cancelled operations for non clinical reasons who were given a TCI date within 28 days of the original 

appointment - City Hospitals Sunderland
13 Jun-16 - YTD 4 0 2 Red    

No urgent operation to be cancelled for a 2nd time 0 Jun-16 - YTD 0 0 0 Green  

% patients discharged from Mental Health wards receiving follow up within 7 days 98.33% Dec-16 - YTD 95.36% 95.0% 98.7% Green   

Mixed sex accommodation

Ambulance Response Times

NHS Constitution Measures

A&E waits

RAG Rating : 2015-16 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: performance vs 

same period in 2014/15 

Diagnostic test waiting times

Cancer waits - 31 days

Cancer waits - 62 days

The CCG deli ered the o erall WW sta dard a d the sta dard for e hi ited reast s pto s. Upper GI a d hildre ’s 
were the only tumour groups which failed to achieve the standard, the latter due to very low numbers.   Due to on-going 

developments with the re-location of the dental service from Grindon Lane to Sunderland Royal Hospital it is likely that 

the new Breast Assessment Service will be live from the first working day in July 2016.   

Cancer waits - 2 week

As reported previously, orthopaedics and respiratory medicine are the only specialties not delivering the incomplete 

standard as at Feb17.  ENT and rheumatology are now delivering and the focus is around sustainability.  Additional 

workforce is now in place in respiratory medicine and now the main issue revolves around a backlog of sleep studies 

patients and this will now be the focus to bring the specialty back into compliance.  Orthopaedics is more of a challenge 

and despite demand into CHS NHSFT decreasing from most CCGs, performance has not improved so this has been picked 

up with the trust and an updated action plan has been requested and comfirmation that patients are being treated in 

clinical priority order.  PRessures still lie in subspecialism areas such as foot and ankle and spines.

CHS NHSFT are currently not achieving the 95% standard for 2016/17 with all four quarters below the standard for 

2016/17 so far. Quarter three performance was 93.18% which was just above the STF trajectory for quarter three. Current 

performance as at 17th February 2017 is 93% with quarter four performance below the STF trajectory due to a 

deterioration in performance in January 17 and February 17.  Discussions continue to take place at the A&E Delivery Board 

arou d urre t perfor a e as ell as pro idi g assura e to NHS E gla d arou d i ter . The o ti ued fo us o  
streaming at the front door remains the key discussions at the A&E Delivery Board as well as increasing pressures across 

the system including ambulance performance and arrivals into CHS NHSFT. A dedicated session on ambulance service 

performance and arrivals into CHS NHSFT took place in February 17 which highlighted an increase in the number of 

arrivals into CHS NHSFT and a number of key actions were agreed including a joint meeting between the CCG, CHS NHSFT 

and NEAS.

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: performance vs 

same period in 2015/16 

Cancelled operations

Mental Health

Referral to treatment waiting times for non-urgent consultant-led treatment

Workforce pressures around recruitment and sickness absence remain a significant issue as well as the volume of calls 

and incidents. Handover delays are also significant compared to previous years which is further compounding the issue 

for NEAS with a significant amount of time lost due to handover delays.  NEAS continue to focus on recruitment with 

targeted initiatives on-going such as the recruitment process for the next two cohorts of the Sunderland diploma, a further 

overseas recruitment exercise for additional paramedics and focus on trying to secure additional graduates.
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2015/16 

Outturn

Latest 

Data

Actual 

To Date

Target 

To Date

Same 

Period Last 

Year

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

GP referrals made by e-referrals - (Quality Premium) 74.00% Dec-16 72.04% 80.0% 60.0% Red

Performance remains around the 72% mark which means the CCG will not achieve this 

element of the quality premium.  This is a very complex area which covers technical 

issues, primary care engagement, joint working with other commissioners and also 

working with CHS NHSFT.  Although work has commenced on this, the opportunities for 

increasing the number of services live on NHS e referral at CHS NHSFT are minmal due 

to the vast majority of services already live.  As this indicator is part of the CCG IAF and 

a CQUIN for providers, work has now commenced on working with CHS NHSFT and 

primary care to increase the proportion of referrals going through NHS e referral with 

        

Personal health budgets New 2016/17 Sep-16 - YTD 7 20 Red

The first published data around this indicator relates to quarter two 2016/17 for 

Sunderland CCG. The indicator focus is to increase the number of patients with a 

personal health budget (PBH). As this is a key objective of the five year forward view 

and this directly measures this ambition. It is expected that as at the end of 2016/17 

performance will be below the baseline of 20 PHBs per 100,000 registered population, 

for monitoring in 2017/18. The plan is to improve performance to become in line with 

trajectory through the course of 2017/18.  Glenda Laydon, Monday, February 06, 2017

ggggggg

Percentage of deaths which take place in hospital New 2016/17 No new data 51.70% TBC Grey
Rolling annual averages (provided quarterly) published June 2016 for 2014/15 Q4 - 

2015/16 Q3 gggggggggggg

People with a long-term condition feeling supported to manage their condition(s) New 2016/17 Jul-16 - YTD 66.50% 50.9% Amber
Published annually.  Latest data relates to July 2015 - March 2016.  Next publication 

Sept 2017. gggggg

Inequality in avoidable emergency admissions New 2016/17 No new data 1450 1028 Red
Latest data is higher than the CCG average of 1028,indicating that there are 

inequalities present in avoidable admissions. gggggggggggg

Reduce short stay emergency admissions for ages 75+ - (Quality Premium) New 2016/17 Mar-17 - YTD 6,991 5369 Red gggggggggggg

Diabetes patients that have achieved all the NICE-recommended treatment targets: Three (HbA1c, 

cholesterol and blood pressure) for adults and one (HbA1c) for children
New 2016/17 No new data 42% Red gggggggggggg

People with diabetes diagnosed less than a year who attend a structured education course New 2016/17 No new data 1.80% TBC Red gggggggggggg

Percentage of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight or obese New 2016/17 No new data 36.60% TBC Red
Data relates to 2015.  Childhood Measurement Programme underway for 2016/17, 

expected publication of results Nov '16 gggggggggggg

Maternal smoking at delivery New 2016/17 Sep-16 - YTD 36.60% TBC Amber

The latest published data relates to quarter two 2016/17.  Sunderland CCG 

performance is 17.4% compared to England average of 10.4%.  A lower value is better 

than a high value, SCCG is in the lowest performance (worst) quartile nationally.  

Glenda Laydon, Monday, February 06, 2017

gggggg

Successful smoking quitters at 4 weeks - (Quality Premium) New 2016/17 Dec-16 - YTD 988 1,436 Amber
Sunderland remains under trajectory but this is a very seasonal indicator and there is 

still a hope that the year end surge brings the CCG under the trajectory. gggggggggggg

Injuries from falls in people aged 65 and over - (Quality Premium) New 2016/17 Jan-17 - YTD 2,354 2078 Red

Falls locally reported proxy data is sourced from SUS inpatient data. In order to capture 

patients admitted at the end of the month (overlapping the next month before 

discharge), reporting is two months behind current month.

gggggggggggg

Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate prescribing of antibiotics in primary care - (Quality Premium) 1.31% Jan-17 - YTD 1.10% 1% 1.08% Amber
This continues to demonstrate the hard work from the practices. The RCGP TARGET 

patie t leaflets ere distri uted at Septe er’s TiTO i  ad a e of the i ter seaso .
         

Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate prescribing of broad spectrum antibiotics in primary care - 

(Quality Premium)
10.63% Jan-17 - YTD 10.03% 10.0% 10.8% Amber

Prescribing against target has continued to decrease over the last three months. Audits 

on prescribing of cephalosporins are being carried out by the practice pharmacy teams 

to enable the CCG to identify where particular support is required. It should be noted 

that as the volume of prescribing reduces overall, it will impact on this measure.          

Quality of life of carers New 2016/17 2016 77.00% TBC Amber
Publication September 2016.  National average is 80%.  Annual publication based on 

results from General Practice Patient Survey. gggggggggggg

Emergency Admissions

Better Health

RAG Rating : 2016-17 performance vs 

target

Arrow: performance vs same period in 

2015/16 (where available)

Personalisation and choice

Smoking

Child obesity

Falls

Carers

Health inequalities

Clinical Priority - Diabeties

Anti-microbial resistance
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2015/16 

Outturn

Latest 

Data

Actual 

To Date

Target 

To Date

Same 

Period Last 

Year

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

Estimated diagnosis rate for people with dementia 75.80% Mar-17 - YTD 76.20% 70.0% 75.8% Green  
Dementia care planning and post-diagnostic support New 2016/17 No new data 75.40% Amber

First publication expected Sept 2016, then to be reported quarterly.  Actual to date relates to 2014/15, 

aligned to National average performance of 67.3%.

Cancers diagnosed at early stage - (Quality Premium) New 2016/17 No new data 53.40% Amber
Nationally published annually, however communications underway to devise local proxy reporting on a 

quarterly basis.  Actual to date relates to 2014, National performance is 50.7%

People with urgent GP referral having first definitive treatment for cancer within 62 days of referral 87.38% Jan-17 - YTD 87.37% 85.0% 87.6% Amber

Despite the CCG delivering the standard overall, pressures still relate to urology at CHS NHSFT and the 

trust have agreed an improvement trajectory with NHS England which will see performance improve 

from September 2017.  This is on the back of an agreed business case for additional theatre sessions 

and supporting staff which is in the mobilisation stage now.



One-year survival from all cancers New 2016/17 No new data 69.40% Amber
Nationally published annually, however communications underway to devise local proxy reporting on a 

quarterly basis.  Actual activity relates to 2013, National performance is 70.2%

Cancer patient experience New 2016/17 No new data 87.70% TBC Green Latest pulbished data relates to 2014, it is expected 2015 will be published Nov 2016.

Reliance on specialist inpatient care for people with a learning disability and/or autism New 2016/17 No new data  TBC Grey
Latest data available is based on a North East position of 90 per million population as at quarter two 

2016/17.  Glenda Laydon, Monday, February 06, 2017

Proportion of people with a learning disability on the GP register receiving an annual health check New 2016/17 No new data 37% TBC Red Latest data relates to 2015/16, published annually.  

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies recovery rate 50.82% Dec-16 - YTD 51.35% 50.0% 50.6% Green 
People with first episode of psychosis starting treatment with a NICE-recommended package of care 

treated within 2 weeks of referral
New 2016/17 Jul-16 96.90% 50.0% Green

Comfortably exceeding target and performing at the top end of the scale against other CCGs and 

national average (72.0%)

Childre  a d you g people’s e tal health services tra sfor atio New 2016/17
Quarter 1 - 

2016/17
50.00% Amber

Crisis care and liaison mental health services transformation New 2016/17
Quarter 1 - 

2016/17
100.00% Green

Out of area placements for acute mental health inpatient care - transformation New 2016/17
Quarter 1 - 

2016/17
100.00% Green

Learning disabilities

Mental Health

Clinical Priority - Dementia

Clinical Priority - Cancer

Better Care

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow: performance vs same 

period in 2015/16 (where 
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Latest 

Data

Actual 

To Date

Target 

To Date

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

Quality of CCG leadership
Quarter 2 - 

2016/17
GREEN GREEN Grey

Staff engagement index No new data 3.83 5.00 Grey

Progress against workforce race equality standard No new data 0.03 0.00 Grey

Effectiveness of working relationships in the local system No new data 73.40% Grey

Probity and corporate governance
Quarter 2 - 

2016/17

Fully 

Compliant
Grey

Sustainability No new data Grey

Latest 

Data

Actual 

To Date

Target 

To Date

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

Local strategic estates plan (SEP) in place No new data GREEN GREEN Green

Outcomes in areas with identified scope for improvement No new data Grey

Expenditure in areas with identified scope for improvement No new data Grey

Adoption of new models of care No new data GREEN GREEN Green

Financial plan 2016/17 GREEN GREEN Green This financial plan indicator is based on final published approved financial plans.  It will not change in year.

In-year financial performance
Quarter 3 - 

2016/17
GREEN GREEN Green

The i - ear fi a ial perfor a e i di ator ill e ased o  the deli er  of the CCG’s pla  for the ear. The ill e 
assessed on a quarterly basis using the forecast outturn financial position for the CCG. 

Local digital roadmap in place No new data Grey

Digital interactions between primary and secondary care No new data 74.00% Grey Performance as at the end of quarter three, 2016/17.

Paper-free at the point of care

Probity and corporate governance

Sustainability and transformation plan

Sustainability

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: performance vs 

same period in 2015/16 

New models of care

Financial sustainability

Estates strategy

Allocative efficiency

Quality of Leadership

CCGs' local relationships

Workforce engagement

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: performance vs 

same period in 2015/16 

Leadership
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2015/16 

Outturn

Latest 

Data

Actual To 

Date

Target To 

Date

Same 

Period 

Last Year

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

Potential Years of Life Lost from causes considered amenable to healthcare 2014 2,742 Red

Latest nationally published data 2014 shows an increase in the number of PYLL in 2014 which was not 

expected.  There has been a decreasing trend from 2009 and the CCG have an ambition for a year on year 

decrease and the latest 2014 figure is now at the same level as 2009.

Patient experience of primary care - GP Out of Hours services Jul-16 - YTD 72.06% 67.0% Green

The out-of-hours questions were redesigned for July-September 2015 fieldwork to reflect changes to service 

provision. As such, trends will not be comparable to previous publications.  Trajectory for 2016/17 is based 

on national results of 67% rated as good in July 2016 publication.  SCCG practice range is 42% - 88%.  Glenda 

Laydon, Tuesday, July 19, 2016

ggggggggggggggggggggg

Primary Care - Overall Experience of GP Surgery (positive answers) May-16 - YTD 86.0% 85.0% Green

The latest pu lished data – Jul  , re eals 8 % of patie ts des ri e their o erall e perie e of their GP 
surgery as good, this is slightly higher than the national result of 85% and compares favourably against local 

CCGs with a range from 85% - 89%. However, it is somewhat disappointing that SCCG score has deteriorated 

over the last four years from 90% in 2013. Trajectory for 2016/17 is based on national performance rate of 

85% good in July 2016 publication.  Glenda Laydon, Tuesday, July 19, 2016

ggggggggggggggggggggg

Number of MRSA infections for local CCG residents 0 Feb-17 - YTD 0 0 0 Green  

Number of MRSA infections in local Hospitals 3 Feb-17 - YTD 5 0 2 Red  

Number of Clostridium Difficile infections for local CCG residents 102 Feb-17 - YTD 76 76 91 Green  

Number of Clostridium Difficile infections in local NHS FT 61 Feb-17 - YTD 29 31 53 Green  

Proportion of people with depression and/or anxiety disorders with access to psychological therapies 14.7% Nov-16 - YTD 11.0% 10.7% 10.02% Green  

The number of people accessing IAPT who are moving to recovery 50.9% Dec-16 - YTD 51.4% 50.0% 50.55% Green  
Proportion of people that wait 6 weeks or less from referral to entering treatment 99.4% Dec-16 - YTD 100.0% 75.0% Green gggggggggggg
Proportion of people that wait 18 weeks or less to start treatment compared to those finishing treatment 99.2% Dec-16 - YTD 100.0% 95.0% Green gggggggggggg

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: 

performance vs same period 

in 2015/16 

CHS NHSFT have reported 2 cases so far this year, both of which are trust acquired.  The cases have been 

reviewed by the HCAI Improvement Group and the HCAI Improvement Plan has been updated to include the 

outcome of the review of each case.

2015-16 TrendOther National Requirements

Preventing people from dying prematurely

Ensuring people have a positive experience of care

Performance against the access trajectory continues to fail to the phased trajectory. In contrast, 

performance against the recovery target continues to achieve the 50% trajectory for the fifth month in a row 

and performance is improved against the same period last year.  Glenda Laydon, Monday, February 13, 2017

Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them from avoidable harm

Mental Health

C. difficile for the Sunderland community and CHS NHSFT finished above trajectory using published data for 

2015/16. Due to the number of cases being upheld by the HCAI Improvement Group, contractually, CHS 

NHSFT was on trajectory.
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2015/16 

Outturn
Latest Data

Actual To 

Date

Target To 

Date

Same 

Period Last 

Year

Risk to 

Year End
Comments

Number of Elective Inpatient Admissions 52,362 Jan-17 - YTD 37,164 38,739 43,504 Green  

Number of Non Elective Inpatient Admissions 31,958 Jan-17 - YTD 26,836 26,275 26,556 Red

Non elective inpatients remain above plan with increased short stay emergency 

admissions at CHS NHSFT linked to A E delivery of the four hour standard.  The 

increased admissions related to increased use of ambulatory care and observation 

wards and work is on going in the Vanguard to work closer with CHS as part of the 

out of hospital model.  THis is being reported back via the Sunderland Care Model 

Assurance Group and a pilot is already in place.  THe emergency readmissions audit 

at CHS NHSFT is now concluded but further work is needed to audit short stay 

admissions to feed into the ED interface work.

 

Number of First Outpatient Attendances 119,892 Jan-17 - YTD 116,718 114,452 98,190 Red

No signifcant pressures, increases in a number of specialties but no significant over 

performances of note other than radiology which is £zero tariff and we have a block 

with CHS NHSFT.  The plan moving forward is to reduce outpatients as part of the 

2017 19 Operational Plan.
 

RAG Rating : 2016-17 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: 

performance vs same period 

in 2015/16 

RAG Rating : 2015-16 

performance vs target

Arrow Direction: 

performance vs same period 

in 2014/15 

Activity Trajectories - Year to Date

Activity Trajectories
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Appendix 4 – 2016/17 estimated quality premium achievement 

 

Title of Measure
Percentage of Quality 

Premium
Value for CCG

Measure Achieved Eligible QP funding
Comments

Cancers diagnosed at early stage 20% £284,321 No £0 Rated as amber due to data avilability and historic actuals.  

Increase in the proportion of GP referrals made by e-referrals 20% £284,321 No £0 Rated as red due to current performance and historic performance

Overall experience of making a GP appointment 20% £284,321 No £0
Rated as amber due to historic performance and stretching target for 

2016/17

Antimicrobial resistance (AMR) Improving antibiotic prescribing in 

primary care
10% £142,161 No £0

Rated as amber due to current performance with one indicator 

achieving and one indicator not achieving

Reduce the number of injuries from falls for ages 65+ 10% £142,161 No £0
Rated as amber due to current performance, although achieving, the 

trajectory is more stretching for the latter part of the year

Reduce short stay emergency admissions for ages 75+ 10% £142,161 No £0
Rated as amber due to current performance, although achieving, the 

trajectory is more stretching for the latter part of the year

Maintain the number of smoking quitters at 2015/16 10% £142,161 No £0

Totals 100% £1,421,605 £0

NHS Constitution rights and pledges Adjustment to Quality Value of adjustment Measure Achieved Adjustment to QP 

Maximum 18 weeks from referral to treatment - incomplete 25% £0 Yes £0

Maximum four hour waits in A&E departments - standard 25% £0 Yes £0
Rated as amber due to current performance.  Achievement is based on 

Q4 2016/17 and aligned to the CHS STF Improvement Trajectory

Maximum two months (62 day) wait from urgent GP referral to first 

definitive treatment for cancer
25% £0 Yes £0

Rated as amber due to current performance.  Achievement is based on 

Q4 2016/17 and aligned to the STF Improvement Trajectories

Maximum 8 minute response for Category A (Red 1) ambulance calls 25% £0 No £0
Rated as red due to current performance.  Achievement is based on  

Q4 2016/17 and aligned to the NEAS STF Imrprovement Trajectory

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT 100% £0 £0

REVISED TOTAL £0 £0
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CATEGORY OF PAPER  

Proposes specific action  

Provides assurance   

 
GOVERNING BODY MEETING 

 
23 MAY 2017 

Report Title: 
 
2016/17 Annual Accounts 
 

Purpose of report 

 
The purpose of this report is to gain approval of the Annual Accounts for 2016/17 from the 
Governing Body of the CCG.  
 

Key points, risks and assurances 

 

 The key issue is to ensure the CCG has met all its financial duties for 2016/17. 
 

 The report provides assurance that the financial outturn for the year 2016/17 has achieved 
those duties.  

 

Recommendation/Action Required 

 

Members are asked to: 
 

 Approve the Annual Accounts for 2016/17 following scrutiny at Audit Committee.  
 

 Authorise the Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign the various certificates 
relating to the Annual Accounts.  

 

Sponsor/approving director   David Chandler, Chief Finance Officer 

Report author Tarryn Lake, Deputy Chief Finance Officer 

Governance and Assurance 

Link to CCG corporate objectives  (please tick all that apply) 

CO1: Ensure the CCG meets its public accountability duties 
 

CO2:  Maintain financial control and performance targets  

CO3: Maintain and improve the quality and safety of CCG commissioned services  
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CO4: Ensure the CCG involves patients and the public in commissioning and reforming services   

CO5: Identify and deliver the CCG’s strategic priorities  

CO6: Develop the CCG localities  

CO7: Integrating health and social care services, including the Better Care Fund  

CO8:  Develop and deliver primary medical care commissioning  

Any relevant legal/statutory issues 

 
Health and Social Care Act 2012 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 
Department of Health Group Accounting Manual 2016-17 (GAM) 
 

Are the identified risks on the risk register?  

 
Yes. 649, 1641, 1642, 1709, 1831, 1832 and 1841. 

 
If issue/report has been previously reviewed please specify meeting and date 

N/A 

Equality analysis completed 
(please tick)  

Yes  No  N/A  

Key implications 

Are additional resources 
required?   

None 

Has there been appropriate 
clinical engagement?  

N/A 

Any current or expected 
impact on patient 
outcomes/experience? 
 

N/A 

Has there been member 
practice and/or other 
stakeholder engagement if 
needed?   

N/A 

Version Date Comments  

ACV1.0 25/04/2017 TL Initial Draft 

ACV 2.0 25/04/2017 TL further amendments 

ACV 3.0  25/04/17 DC approved 

ACV 4.0 (final) 26/04/17 DL Q&A 



NHS OFFICIAL Item: 9.3 

3 

 

 
 

Governing Body 
Approval of Annual Accounts 2016/17 

 
1. Purpose of Report  

 
The purpose of this report is to provide an opportunity for members of the 
Governing Body to examine and approve the Annual Accounts for the year ended 
31st March 2017 for NHS Sunderland CCG.  

 
2. Background Information 
 

All NHS Bodies including Clinical Commissioning Groups have to submit their 
Annual Accounts to NHS England in accordance with a predetermined timetable. 
Annual Accounts attached to this report were completed in accordance with the 
timetable and were submitted in an unaudited form for verification ahead of the 
April 2017 deadline.  
 
The CCGs External Auditors have now concluded their formal audit of the Annual 
Accounts and have indicated that they will be issuing an unqualified audit opinion 
on the Accounts and associated information. Once the Accounts are adopted and 
approved by the Governing Body the Auditors will formally provide their opinion.   

 
3. Accounting Policies / Key Estimates  
 

The Accounts for the CCG are in a prescribed format determined by the 
Department of Health’s Group Accounting Manual (GAM).  
 
In producing the Accounts the CCG has adopted policies in line with guidance 
provided by NHS England.  
 
Key estimates contained within the Accounts relate to, partially completed spells 
of activity and prescribing liabilities yet to be billed. In preparing these estimates, 
advice provided by appropriate internal and external ‘experts’ have been taken 
into account as well as information provided centrally by NHS England. 
Assurance can be provided to the Governing Body that these policies and key 
accounting estimates are relevant to the CCGs local circumstances and that they 
have been appropriately and consistently applied.    
 
The main accounting statements are the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure (SoCNE) for the year ended 31st March 2017, a Statement of 
Financial Position (SoFP) as at 31st March 2017, a Statement of Changes in 
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Taxpayers Equity (SoCITE) for the year ended 31st March 2017 and a Statement 
of Cash Flows (SoCF) for the year ended 31st March 2017. 
 
In addition, and in accordance with the annual reporting guidance a number of 
notes illustrating further detailed information have to be shown as part of the 
annual accounts information. These notes are an integral part of the Annual 
Accounts and are subject to the same degree of audit scrutiny as the main 
accounting statements.  

 
4. Going Concern 

 
It is important to note that the Annual Accounts include a note regarding going 
concern as part of the Accounting Policies (Note 1). The note states:  
 
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis. Public sector 
bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision 
of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial 
provision for that service in published documents.  

 
5. Highlights from the Accounts 

 
Contained within the Annual Accounts is the following key information for 
members to note:  
 

 Note 21 contained within the supporting information details the CCGs 
performance against its financial performance targets. CCGs have a 
number of statutory financial duties, which form part of the overall 
performance management arrangements. The three financial performance 
targets applicable to the CCG are as follows:  

 
o Expenditure not to exceed income. Note 21 indicates that the CCG 

charged £497,459k against its final resource limit of £521,040k. 
This produces a cumulative surplus of £23,581k which clearly 
demonstrates achievement of this particular duty. It is important to 
note that in 2016/17 NHS England mandated that all CCGs had to 
hold 1% of their budget to support system wide pressures in the 
NHS. This was required to be released as additional surplus which 
was included in the reported figure of £23,581k. For Sunderland 
CCG the 1% equated to £4,866k. The cumulative surplus for 
2016/17 for the CCG prior to this mandated increase was £18,715k.  
 

o Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions. Note 21 identifies that the CCG charged £497,459k 
against its final resource limit of £521,040k.  
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o Revenue Administration Resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions. Note 21 identifies that the CCG charged 
£5,553k against its final resource limit for Administration Spend of 
£5,977k. This produces a £424k underspend, clearly demonstrating 
achievement of this particular duty. 

 

 Note 6 records the CCGs achievements regarding the Better Payment 
Practice Code. It can be identified from the note that the CCG was able to 
pay 99.01% of its Non-NHS trade creditors within 30 days of receipt of 
goods or agreed credit terms.  

 
 The main accounting statements and associated notes have been subject to 
detailed scrutiny at a ‘Final Accounts and Annual Report Review’ meeting to 
which members of Governing Body and Audit Committee were invited. In 
addition, personal briefings have been provided to the Chief Officer and Clinical 
Chair of the CCG.  

 
6. Recommendation  
 

Members are asked to:  
 

 Approve the Annual Accounts for 2016/17 following scrutiny at Audit 
Committee.  

 

 Authorise the Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer to sign the various 
certificates relating to the Annual Accounts.  

 
 Tarryn Lake  
 Deputy Chief Finance Officer 
 Sunderland CCG 
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NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2017

2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (59) (81)

Other operating revenue 2 (662) (542)

Total operating income (721) (623)

Staff costs 4 4,579 4,153

Purchase of goods and services 5 492,741 491,673

Depreciation charges 5 39 62

Provision expense 5 578 (5)

Other operating expenditure 5 243 199

Total operating expenditure 498,180 496,082

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 497,459 495,459
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NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2017
2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 8 0 39

Total non-current assets 0 39

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables 9 1,704 1,391

Cash and cash equivalents 10 249 91

Total current assets 1,953 1,482

Total assets 1,953 1,521

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 (30,575) (23,590)

Provisions 12 (578) 0

Total current liabilities (31,153) (23,590)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (29,200) (22,069)

Assets less liabilities (29,200) (22,069)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (29,200) (22,069)

Total taxpayers' equity: (29,200) (22,069)

The notes on pages 5 to 25 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 25 were approved by the Governing Body on 23rd May 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

David Gallagher 

Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)

23 May 2017
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NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended

31 March 2017

General fund

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

CCG balance at 1 April 2016 (22,069) (22,069)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (497,459) (497,459)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (497,459) (497,459)

Net Parliamentary funding 490,328 490,328

Balance at 31 March 2017 (29,200) (29,200)

General fund Total reserves

£'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

CCG balance at 01 April 2015 (20,040) (20,040)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Net operating costs for the financial year (495,459) (495,459)

Net recognised CCG expenditure for the financial  year (495,459) (495,459)

Net Parliamentary funding 493,430 493,430

Balance at 31 March 2016 (22,069) (22,069)
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NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2017
2016-17 2015-16

Note £'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (497,459) (495,459)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 39 62

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 9 (313) 123

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 11 6,985 1,906

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 12 578 (5)

Net cash outflow from operating activities (490,170) (493,373)

Net cash outflow before financing (490,170) (493,373)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net funding received 490,328 493,430

Net cash inflow from financing activities 490,328 493,430

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10 158 57

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the 

beginning of the financial year 91 34
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the 

End of the Financial Year 249 91
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NHS Sunderland Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2016-17

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the  Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the  Group Accounting Manual 2016-17 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting 

Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning 

groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting Manual 

permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical 

commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical 

commissioning group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 

accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 

evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same 

assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements.  If 

services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Pooled Budgets

Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 

the clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled 

budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.

These arrangements can be either joint operations or joint ventures. Joint operations are arrangements where contractual agreements are in 

place under which the clinical commissioning and one or more parties share control. Operations deemed to be joint ventures would give the 

clinical commissioning group rights to assets and obligations in relation to liabilities. 

1.4 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those 

estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods.

1.4.1  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of 

applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements:

·                None

1.4.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting 

policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

·                The assumptions applied in the estimation of activity not yet invoiced, including partially completed treatment spells  as at the 

Statement of Financial Position date. The full value of partially completed spells included in the financial statements for the clinical 

commissioning group as at the Statement of Financial Position date is £1,544,052 (for the period to 31st March 2016 the full value included in the 

financial statements totalled £2,007,284). The value is determined through assessment of the estimations made by service providers of the 

expected liability payable by the clinical commissioning group as at the Statement of Financial Position date. 

·                The assumptions applied in the estimation of prescribing liabilities not yet billed as at the Statement of Financial Position date. 

Nationally derived phasing profiles from the NHS Business Services Authority provided for forecasting the likely prescribing outturn has been 

utilised in deriving the estimated liability of costs not yet billed for the clinical commissioning group. This was estimated at £8,696,095 as at the 

Statement of Financial Position date (for the period 31st March 2016 the full value included in the financial statements totalled £8,506,254). 

1.5  Revenue

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration receivable.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.
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1.6 Employee Benefits

1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, including 

bonuses earned but not yet taken.

1.6.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme 

that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. 

The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and 

liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the 

liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless 

of the method of payment.

1.7 Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 

value of the consideration payable.

Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation, 

which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.8 Property, Plant & Equipment

1.8.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

·                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

·                it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;

·                it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

·                the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,

·                the item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,

·                collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under 

single managerial control; or,

·                items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective 

cost.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated 

as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

1.8.2 Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset 

and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are 

measured subsequently at valuation.

Land and buildings used for the clinical commissioning group’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial 

position at their re-valued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be 

determined at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:

·                land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and,

·                specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it 

would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes 

professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. 

Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in existing 

use.

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously 

recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation 

decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation 

reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear 

consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other 

comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.
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1.8.3 Subsequent Expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where 

subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item 

replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.9 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-

current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or 

service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the clinical commissioning group expects to obtain 

economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the clinical commissioning group and may be shorter than the physical 

life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 

prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-

current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 

determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the 

revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise 

from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount 

of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had 

there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously 

charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

1.10 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases 

are classified as operating leases.

1.10.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned 

between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the 

liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as 

a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 

operating or finance leases.

1.10.2 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the clinical commissioning group’s net investment 

in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the clinical 

commissioning group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 

and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term.

1.11 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 

are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 

insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 

integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:

·                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 2.70% (previously: minus 1.55%)

·                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.95% (previously: minus 1.%)

·                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Minus 0.80% (previously: minus 0.80%)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 

recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has 

raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features 

to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which 

are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.
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1.13 Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the 

NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS 

Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group.

1.14 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk 

pooling schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, 

receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular 

claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.15 Continuing healthcare risk pooling

In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was been introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  

Under the scheme clinical commissioning group contribute annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims. The contributions made 

by the clinical commissioning group are determined by NHS England and disclosed in Note 5.

The clinical commissioning group entered into risk share arrangements with local clinical commissioning groups for continuing healthcare in 

2014-15 for a period of three financial years. The contributions made by the clinical commissioning group to this arrangement are included within 

the reported accounts. 

1.16 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is 

not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 

of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.17 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 

asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

·                financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

·                held to maturity investments;

·                available for sale financial assets; and,

·                loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.17.1  Loans & Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After 

initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised using the 

effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the 

initial fair value of the financial asset.

At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 

through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of 

impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 

amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in 

expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after 

the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that the carrying 

amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the 

impairment not been recognised.

1.18 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are 

de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.18.1 Other Financial Liabilities

After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from 

Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest 

method.
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1.19 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 

purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of 

fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.20 Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 

legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with 

the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 

have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 

then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.21 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17, all of which 

are subject to consultation:

·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments ( application from 1 January 2018)

·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts ( not applicable to DH groups bodies)

·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers (application from 1 January 2018)

·                IFRS 16: Leases (application from 1 January 2019)

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2016-17, were they applied in that year.
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2. Other Operating Revenue
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-patient care services to other bodies 59 0 59 81 7 74

Other revenue 662 8 654 542 0 542

Total other operating revenue 721 8 713 623 7 616

3. Revenue
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

From rendering of services 721 8 713 623 7 616

Total 721 8 713 623 7 616

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the clinical 

commissioning group and credited to the General Fund.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1. Employee benefits 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Salaries and wages 3,738 3,516 222 2,618 2,509 109 1,120 1,007 113

Social security costs 399 399 0 310 310 0 89 89 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 442 442 0 340 340 0 102 102 0

Total employee benefits expenditure 4,579 4,357 222 3,268 3,159 109 1,311 1,198 113

2015-16

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Salaries and wages 3,436 3,174 262 2,484 2,378 106 952 796 156

Social security costs 297 297 0 238 238 0 59 59 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 420 420 0 331 331 0 89 89 0

Total employee benefits expenditure 4,153 3,891 262 3,053 2,947 106 1,100 944 156

4.2. Average number of people employed

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other
Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 78                 74                 4                   75                 70                 5                   

None of the above people were engaged on capital projects (2015-16: None).

4.3. Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2016-17 2015-16

Number Number

Total Days Lost 591 675

Total Staff Years 80 73

Average working Days Lost 7 9

The staff sickness numbers for 2016-17 are based on data for  the calendar year January 2016 to December 2016 (2015-16: based on data from January 2015 to December 2015).

No staff retired early on ill health grounds during the financial year (2015-16: None).

4.4. Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Number £ Number £ Number £

£10,001 to £25,000 1 19,342 0 0 1 19,342

Total 1 19,342 0 0 1 19,342

Redundancy costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the national Agenda for Change terms and conditions of service. 

There were no exit packages for the year ending 31 March 2016.

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

Admin ProgrammeTotal

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2016-17 2015-16

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Total Admin Programme

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total
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4.5. Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these 

provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.

The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 

direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 

to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.

Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of 

participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.

The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every year. 

An outline of these follows:

4.5.1. Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the Scheme (taking into account its 

recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such 

valuation, which determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2012 and covered the period from 1 April 2008 to 

that date. Details can be found on the pension scheme website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 

For 2016-17, employers’ contributions of £441,177.81 were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2015-16: £420,323.01) at the rate of

14.3% of pensionable pay. The scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually every four years and now based on HMT

Valuation Directions, following a full scheme valuation. The latest review used data from 31 March 2012 and was published on the

Government website on 9 June 2012. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 4.1. 
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5. Operating expenses

5.1. Analysis of Operating Expenses
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross employee benefits

Employee benefits excluding governing body members 3,891 2,580 1,311 3,588 2,488 1,100

Executive governing body members 688 688 0 565 565 0

Total gross employee benefits 4,579 3,268 1,311 4,153 3,053 1,100

Other costs

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 2,547 922 1,625 2,628 1,042 1,586

Services from foundation trusts 321,131 45 321,086 319,964 45 319,919

Services from other NHS trusts 378 0 378 526 0 526

Services from other WGA bodies 307 0 307 372 0 372

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 75,871 0 75,871 73,845 0 73,845

Chair and Non Executive Members 154 154 0 197 197 0

Supplies and services – general 551 246 305 243 240 3

Consultancy services 44 44 0 129 6 123

Establishment 486 336 150 428 264 164

Transport 35 13 22 56 21 35

Premises 2,145 263 1,882 1,126 252 874

Impairments and reversals of receivables 89 0 89 2 0 2

Depreciation 39 0 39 62 0 62

Audit fees 81 81 0 81 81 0

Prescribing costs 51,470 0 51,470 52,267 0 52,267

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 36,379 0 36,379 37,014 0 37,014

Other professional fees excl. audit 58 13 45 125 56 69

Education and training 217 177 40 267 148 119

Provisions 578 0 578 (5) 0 (5)

CHC Risk Pool contributions 1,041 0 1,041 2,602 0 2,602

Total other costs 493,601 2,294 491,307 491,929 2,352 489,577

Total operating expenses 498,180 5,562 492,618 496,082 5,405 490,677

Administration expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

5.2. Analysis of Non NHS Healthcare Operating Expenditure

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

Total

Independent/ 

Private Voluntary Local Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total Primary Healthcare Purchased 1,526 1,526 0 0 0

Purchase of Secondary Healthcare

Social Care 47 47 0 0 0

Mental Health 2,525 352 359 1,814 0

Maternity 90 90 0 0 0

General and Acute 4,896 4,815 0 0 81

Accident and Emergency 2,976 2,976 0 0 0

Community Health Services 30,624 13,683 2,060 14,880 1

Continuing Care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on 

continuous basis 33,187 1,180 0 32,007 0

Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 74,345 23,143 2,419 48,701 82

Total Non NHS Healthcare Operation Expenditure 75,871 24,669 2,419 48,701 82

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Total

Independent/ 

Private Voluntary Local Authorities

Devolved 

Administrations

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total Primary Healthcare Purchased 728 728 0 0 0

Purchase of Secondary Healthcare

Social Care 209 209 0 0 0

Mental Health 2,995 129 645 2,221 0

Maternity 44 44 0 0 0

General and Acute 4,802 4,622 0 0 180

Accident and Emergency 3,136 3,136 0 0 0

Community Health Services 33,708 13,698 2,477 17,533 0

Continuing Care incl different types of NHS funded care provided on 

continuous basis 28,223 1,021 0 27,202 0

Total Secondary Healthcare Purchased 73,117 22,859 3,122 46,956 180

Total Non NHS Healthcare Operation Expenditure 73,845 23,587 3,122 46,956 180

The categories for analysing non NHS healthcare expenditure in 2016-17 have been revised. The 2015-16 comparators have been restated to align to the revised format in order to 

allow comparison between financial years. 
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6. Better Payment Practice Code

6.1. Measure of compliance 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 6,682          112,699      5,926          75,712        

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 6,616          112,390      5,806          74,930        

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.01% 99.73% 97.98% 98.97%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,020          322,770      2,052          325,045      

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 2,019          322,769      2,041          324,888      

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 99.95% 100.00% 99.46% 99.95%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the clinical commissioning group to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days 

of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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7. Operating Leases

7.1. As lessee

7.1.1. Payments recognised as an Expense

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 1,899 40 1,939 864 51 915

Total 1,899 40 1,939 864 51 915

7.1.2. Future minimum lease payments
2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 88 16 104 84 14 98

Between one and five years 441 23 464 336 29 365

After five years 130 0 130 292 0 292

Total 659 39 698 712 43 755

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a small number of formal operating lease arrangements, relating to leased cars and 

photocopiers, none of which are individually significant.  Specific lease terms vary by individual arrangement but are based upon standard 

practice for the type of arrangement involved.

The clinical commissioning group also has arrangements in place with NHS Property Services in respect of the utilisation of various clinical 

and non-clinical properties.  These largely relate to payments made in respect of void and sessional space in clinical properties, as well as 

for the clinical commissioning group's accommodation costs. Funding in respect of void and sessional spaces was made available from 

NHS England in the clinical commissioning group's allocation. 

Although formal signed leases are not in place for void spaces in these properties, the transactions involved do convey the right of the 

clinical commissioning group to use property assets.  The clinical commissioning group has considered the substance of these 

arrangements under IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease' and determined that the arrangements are (or contain) 

leases.  

Accordingly the payments made in 2016-17 for void and sessional spaces are disclosed as minimum lease payments in the buildings 

category in note 7.1.1 below.  In the absence of formal contracts however, it is not possible to confirm minimum lease payments for future 

years hence no figures are included in note 7.1.2 below for these arrangements.  It is expected that the payments recognised in 2016-17 

would continue to be minimum lease payments in 2017-18.
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8. Property, plant and equipment

2016-17

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2016 252 3 255

Disposals 0 (3) (3)

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2017 252 0 252

Depreciation 01 April 2016 213 3 216

Disposals 0 (3) (3)

Charged during the year 39 0 39

Depreciation at 31 March 2017 252 0 252

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017 0 0 0

Asset financing:

Owned 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 0 0 0

2015-16

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment Total 

£000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2015 252 3 255

Cost/Valuation At 31 March 2016 252 3 255

Depreciation 01 April 2015 151 3 154

Charged during the year 62 0 62

Depreciation at 31 March 2016 213 3 216

Net Book Value at 31 March 2016 39 0 39

Purchased 39 0 39

Total at 31 March 2016 39 0 39

Asset financing:

Owned 39 0 39

Total at 31 March 2016 39 0 39

8.1. Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets still in use was as follows:

2016-17 2015-16
£'000 £'000

Plant & machinery 252 27

Transport equipment 0 3

252 30

Fully depreciated transport equipment has been disposed of in 2016-17. 
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9.  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 253 0 217 0

NHS prepayments 963 0 992 0

NHS accrued income 153 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 320 0 114 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 29 0 47 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 44 0 0 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables (89) 0 (2) 0

VAT 29 0 21 0

Other receivables and accruals 2 0 2 0

Total Trade & other receivables 1,704 0 1,391 0

Total current and non current 1,704 1,391

9.1. Receivables past their due date but not impaired 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

£'000 £'000

By up to three months 108 98

Total 108 98

£81k of the amount at 31 March 2017 has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

9.2. Provision for impairment of receivables 2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April (2) 0

Amounts written off during the year 0 0

Amounts recovered during the year 0 0

(Increase) decrease in receivables impaired (87) (2)

Transfer (to) from other public sector body 0 0

Balance at 31 March (89) (2)

The clinical commissioning group has included a provision for impairment of receivables in relation to the recharge of drug costs. 

10. Cash and cash equivalents

2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 91 34

Net change in year 158 57

Balance at 31 March 249 91

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 249 91

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 249 91

Balance at 31 March 249 91

The great majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to clinical commissioning 

groups to commission services, no credit scoring for NHS England is considered necessary.

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: £0).

The clinical commissioning group held no cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2017 on behalf of patients (31 March 2016: £0).
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Current Non-current Current Non-current

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS payables: revenue 3,748 0 291 0

NHS accruals 3,354 0 3,107 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 4,466 0 5,219 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 18,471 0 14,439 0

Social security costs 56 0 48 0

Tax 56 0 52 0

Other payables and accruals 424 0 434 0

Total Trade & Other Payables 30,575 0 23,590 0

Total payables (current and non-current) 30,575 23,590

12. Provisions
Current Non-current Current Non-current

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Other 578 0 0 0

Total 578 0 0 0

Total current and non-current 578 0

Other Total

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2016 0 0

Arising during the year 578 578

Balance at 31 March 2017 578 578

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 578 578
Balance at 31 March 2017 578 578

13. Contingencies

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, 24 February 2015, 22 February 2016 and 11 April 

2017, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods 

of care before establishment of the clinical commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the clinical 

commissioning group. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare contingent liabilities accounted for by NHS England 

on behalf of this clinical commissioning group at 31 March 2017 is £598k (31 March 2016: £0). 

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, 24 February 2015, 22 February 2016 and 11 April 

2017, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods 

of care before establishment of the clinical commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the clinical 

commissioning group. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf 

of this clinical commissioning group at 31 March 2017 is £540k (31 March 2016: £3,691k). 

The clinical commissioning group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016 None).

The clinical commissioning group had no contingent assets as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: None).

11. Trade and other payables

At 31 March 2017, the clinical commissioning group had no liabilities due in future years under arrangements to buy out the 

liability for early retirement over 5 years (31 March 2016: £0).

Other payables include £343k in respect of outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: £66k).

The clinical commissioning group has included a provision relating to an ongoing contractual dispute.
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14. Financial instruments

14.1. Financial risk management

14.1.1. Currency risk

14.1.2. Interest rate risk

14.1.3. Credit risk

14.1.4. Liquidity risk

The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. 

The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, 

fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the clinical commissioning group's revenue comes from parliamentary funding, the clinical commissioning group  has 

low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in 

the trade and other receivables note.

The clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament. The clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The clinical 

commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 

changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because the clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by 

business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the clinical 

commissioning group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.

The clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in 

the UK and sterling based. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas operations. The clinical commissioning group therefore 

has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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14. Financial instruments (continued)

14.2. Financial assets

Loans and 

Receivables Total

31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

Receivables:

·          NHS 406 406

·          Non-NHS 365 365

Cash at bank and in hand 249 249

Other financial assets 1 1

Total at 31 March 2017 1,021 1,021

Loans and 

Receivables Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£'000 £'000

Receivables:

·          NHS 217 217

·          Non-NHS 114 114

Cash at bank and in hand 91 91

Other financial assets 2 2

Total at 31 March 2016 424 424

14.3. Financial liabilities

Other Total

31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£'000 £'000

Payables:

·          NHS 7,102 7,102

·          Non-NHS 23,360 23,360

Total at 31 March 2017 30,462 30,462

Other Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£'000 £'000

Payables:

·          NHS 3,398 3,398

·          Non-NHS 20,092 20,092

Total at 31 March 2016 23,490 23,490

15. Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group has considered the definition of an operating segment contained within IFRS 8 in 

determining its operating segments, in particular considering the internal reporting to the clinical commissioning group's 

Governing Body, considered to be the 'chief operating decision maker' of the clinical commissioning group, which was 

used for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance.

All activity performed by the clinical commissioning group relates to its role as a commissioner of healthcare for its 

relevant population.  As a result, the clinical commissioning group considers that it has only one operating segment, 

being the commissioning of healthcare services.

An analysis of both the income and expenditure and net assets relating to the segment can be found in the statement of 

comprehensive net expenditure and statement of financial position respectively.
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16. Pooled budgets

2016-17 2015-16

£'000 £'000

Income 0 0

Expenditure (95,795) (103,779)

17. Intra-government and other balances
Current 

Receivables

Non-current 

Receivables

Current 

Payables

Non-current 

Payables

31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017 31 March 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balances with:

·          Other Central Government bodies 31 0 1,090 0

·          Local Authorities 150 0 3,985 0

Balances with NHS bodies:

·          NHS bodies within the NHS England Group 195 0 324 0

·          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 1,175 0 6,778 0

Total of balances with NHS bodies: 1,370 0 7,102 0

·          Bodies external to Government 153 0 18,398 0

Total balances at 31 March 2017 1,704 0 30,575 0

Current 

Receivables

Non-current 

Receivables

Current 

Payables

Non-current 

Payables

31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016 31 March 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balances with:

·          Other Central Government bodies 21 0 416 0

·          Local Authorities 27 0 3,545 0

Balances with NHS bodies:

·          NHS bodies within the NHS England Group 216 0 227 0

·          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 992 0 3,171 0

Total of balances with NHS bodies: 1,208 0 3,398 0

·          Bodies external to Government 135 0 16,231 0

Total balances at 31 March 2016 1,391 0 23,590 0

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget with Sunderland City Council. The pool is hosted by 

Sunderland City Council.

Under the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for the Better Care Fund and a Mental Capacity 

Act safeguarding practitioner. 

The clinical commissioning group’s shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:

The clinical commissioning group has reduced the number of services included within the Section 75 agreement with Sunderland City Council for the 

Better Care Fund in 2016-17. This has resulted in a decrease in the pooled budget disclosure note of £7,984k in 2016-17.

The pooled budget arrangement is jointly managed by the clinical commissioning group and Sunderland City Council. These arrangements 

incorporate joint decision making and are deemed to be a joint operation. 
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18. Related party transactions

Name Title Declaration Related Party 

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Ian Pattison Clinical Chair GP Partner, Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 645 0 36 0

Dr Ian Pattison Clinical Chair
Partner is employed by Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust
11,307 5 146 0

Dr Ian Pattison Clinical Chair Contracted by NHS England to perform GP appraisals NHS England 124 57 106 0

Pat Taylor Lay Vice Chair
Husband is employed by the North of England Commissioning 

Support Unit

North of England Commissioning 

Support Unit
2,692 33 49 0

Pat Taylor Lay Vice Chair
Governor at City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

until 31 March 2017.

City Hospitals Sunderland NHS 

Foundation Trust
180,355 22 3,698 985

Prof. Mike Bramble Secondary Care Clinician
Employed as a Consultant Gastroenterologist by South Tees 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

South Tees Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust
606 0 3 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer

Wife is employed by South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust as 

the Head of Costing, Income and Contracts until 12 January 

2017.

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust
31,506 82 789 37

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Sister is employed as a nurse in the ITU Unit by South Tyneside 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust
31,506 82 789 37

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Friend  of Assistant Finance Director Income and Contracts at 

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust
11,307 5 146 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Friend of Head of Finance and Budgeting  at Northumberland, 

Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust
51,861 0 1,318 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
HFMA Northern Branch Committee Vice Chair to 22 March 2017; 

Chair from 23 March 2017.
HFMA 4 0 4 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Wife is employed by Gateshead NHS Foundation Trust as the 

Head of Costing, Income and Contracts from 3 January 2017.

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust
21,093 0 368 0

Tarryn Lake Deputy Chief Finance Officer HFMA Northern Branch Treasurer HFMA 4 0 4 0

Scott Watson
Director of Informatics and 

Contracting
Father is leader of Sunderland City Council. Sunderland City Council 48,362 1,008 3,985 232

Dr Jackie Gillespie Executive GP GP Partner, Millfield Medical Group Millfield medical Group 1,654 0 99 0

Dr Jackie Gillespie Executive GP Husband is GP partner in The Old Forge Surgery, Sunderland. The Old Forge Surgery 1,055 0 69 0

Dr Fadi Khalil Executive GP GP Partner, The Broadway Medical Practice The Broadway Medical Practice 735 0 71 0

Dr Fadi Khalil Executive GP
Partner was a Clinical Business Manager at South Tyneside NHS 

Foundation Trust until 31 July 2016

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust
31,506 82 789 37

Dr Fadi Khalil Executive GP
Partner is a Lead Nurse for Career Start Scheme (commenced 1 

August 2016).
Sunderland GP Alliance 4,537 59 1,124 36

Dr Raj Bethapudi Executive GP GP Partner,  Dr Cloak and Partners Dr Cloak and Partners 1,178 0 119 0

Dr Raj Bethapudi Executive GP
Brother is consultant radiologist at County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust

County Durham and Darlington 

NHS Foundation Trust
7,269 0 0 151

Dr Karthik Gellia Executive GP GP Partner, Monkwearmouth Health Centre Monkwearmouth Health Centre 440 0 0 0

Dr Tracey Lucas Executive GP GP Partners, Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,825 0 252 0

Eric Harrison Executive Practice Manager Employed by Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,825 0 252 0

Clare Nesbit
Associate Director of OD and 

Workforce
Sister is employed by Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust
21,093 0 368 0

Clare Nesbit
Associate Director of OD and 

Workforce

Ex-daughter-in-law was employed by Newcastle Upon Tyne 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust until October 2016

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust
11,307 5 146 0

Clare Nesbit
Associate Director of OD and 

Workforce

Ex-daughter-in-law is employed by Gateshead Health NHS 

Foundation Trust, commencing October 2017

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation 

Trust
21,093 0 368 0

Chris Mackin
Lay Member, Primary Care 

Commissioning Committee

Member of Council of Governors, Northumberland, Tyne and 

Wear NHS Foundation Trust

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 

NHS Foundation Trust
51,861 0 1,318 0

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Nuse at Wearside Practice Nuse at Wearside Practice 1,182 0 0 0

Helen Steadman Head of Strategy and Planning
Brother is Estates Officer at Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation 

Trust

Newcastle Upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust
11,307 5 146 0

Name Title Declaration Related Party 

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Ian Pattison Clinical Chair GP Partner, Dr Pattison & Partner, Southlands Medical Group Southlands Medical Group 695 0 39 12

Dr Ian Pattison Clinical Chair Partner is a GP Appraiser, NHS England. NHS England 7 69 0 0

Pat Taylor Lay Vice Chair
Married to Commissioning Support Officer, North of England 

Commissioning Support

North of England Commissioning 

Support
2,702 0 58 35

Dr Tracey Lucas Executive GP
GP Partner, Encompass Healthcare Washington (until 

30/11/2015)
Encompass Healthcare 909 0 67 12

Dr Tracey Lucas Executive GP GP Partner, Deerness Park Medical Group (from 01/12/2015) Deerness Park Medical Group 1,912 0 226 0

Dr Gerry McBride Executive GP GP Partner, Ford & Partners, St Bede's Medical Practice
Ford & Partners, St Bede's Medical 

Practice
1,005 0 63 0

Dr Gerry McBride Executive GP Educational Role, Newcastle University Newcastle University 92 0 20 0

Dr Gerry McBride Executive GP
Married to Specialist Midwife at The Newcastle upon Tyne 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

The Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust
10,158 0 128 1

Dr Valerie Taylor Executive GP Salaried GP, Westbourne Medical Group Westbourne Medical Group 876 0 59 2

Dr Valerie Taylor Executive GP GP Appraiser , NHS England NHS England 7 69 0 0

Dr Henry Choi Executive GP GP Partner, Dr Cloak & Partners, Southwick Health Centre Dr Cloak & Partners 1,220 0 104 8

Dr Jackie Gillespie Executive GP GP Partner, Millfield Medical Centre Millfield Medical Centre 1,676 0 126 0

Dr Jackie Gillespie Executive GP Married to GP Partner at the Old Forge Surgery, Sunderland Old Forge Surgery, Sunderland 933 0 109 0

Prof. Mike Bramble Secondary Care Clinician Part Time Medical Consultant, South Tees NHS Foundation Trust South Tees NHS Foundation Trust 530 0 85 0

Dr Fadi Khalil Interim Executive GP GP Partner, Broadway Medical Practice
Broadway Medical Practice (Dr 

Mekkawy & Partners)*
733 0 62 5

Dr Fadi Khalil Interim Executive GP
Partner is Clinical Business Manager at South Tyneside NHS 

Foundation Trust.

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust.
30,684 0 780 0

Ann Fox
Director Of Nursing, Quality And 

Safety

Director of Nursing, Quality & Safety, South Tyneside Clinical 

Commissioning Group

South Tyneside Clinical 

Commissioning Group
175 65 0 0

Gloria Middleton Practice Manager Non Clinical Partner, Westbourne Medical Group Westbourne Medical Group 876 0 59 2

Gloria Middleton 
Practice Manager 

Representative
NEAS Community First Responder

North East Ambulance NHS 

Foundation Trust
12,292 0 169 0

Gloria Middleton 
Practice Manager 

Representative
Specialist Advisor, Sunderland People First Sunderland People First 5 0 0 0

Eric Harrison
Practice Manager 

Representative
Practice Manager, Deerness Park Medical Group Deerness Park Medical Group 1,912 0 226 0

Florence Gunn Strategic Practice Nurse Practice Nurse, Pallion Family Practice Pallion Family Practice 1,299 0 95 31

Dr Geoff Stephenson Medical Director
Managing GP Partner, Dr Stephenson & Partners, Victoria Road 

Health Centre
Dr Stephenson & Partners 1,471 0 109 22

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Married to Head of Costing, Income & Contracts, South Tyneside 

NHS Foundation Trust

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust
30,684 0 780 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Friends with Assistant Finance Director Income & Contracts, 

Newcastle Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

Newcastle Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust
10,158 0 128 1

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Brother of Nurse in ITU Unit, South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust

South Tyneside NHS Foundation 

Trust
30,684 0 780 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer Friends with Head of Finance and Budgeting
Northumberland Tyne & Wear NHS 

Foundation Trust
54,134 0 106 0

David Chandler Chief Finance Officer
Vice Chair, Northern Branch of Healthcare Financial Management 

Association (HFMA)

Healthcare Financial Management 

Association (HFMA)
8 0 0 0

Chris Macklin
Lay Member, Primary Care 

Committee

Member of the Council of Governers for Northumberland, Tyne & 

Wear NHS Foundation Trust

Northumberland Tyne & Wear NHS 

Foundation Trust
54,134 0 106 0

Tarryn Lake Head of Finance.
 Treasurer, Northern Branch of Healthcare Financial Management 

Association (HFMA)

Healthcare Financial Management 

Association (HFMA)
8 0 0 0

Scott Watson Head Of Contracting Son of Leader of the Council, Sunderland City Council Sunderland City Council 46,785 666 3,514 0

Scott Watson Head Of Contracting

Partnership arrangement with Actuate Ltd for the provision of 

advice and guidance in relation to data / intelligence 

developments in the public sector

Actuate Ltd 28 0 0 0

During the year 2016-17 the clinical commissioning group has undertaken transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or members of the key management staff, or parties 

related to any of them:

During the year 2015-16 the clinical commissioning group undertook transactions with the following clinical commissioning group Governing Body members or members of the key management staff, or parties related to 
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18. Related party transactions (continued)

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

1,825 0 252 0

469 0 72 0

595 0 51 0

1,622 0 115 0

772 0 37 0

1,019 0 95 0

1,182 0 0 0

666 0 47 0

80 0 55 0

1,448 2 93 0

594 0 44 0

498 0 26 0

659 0 44 0

260 0 24 0

499 0 91 0

974 0 50 0

1,654 0 99 0

667 0 33 0

1,178 0 119 0

1,055 0 69 0

1,011 0 63 0

663 0 62 0

899 0 54 0

735 0 71 0

282 0 298 0

380 0 68 0

710 0 60 0

936 0 48 0

297 0 28 0

71 0 54 0

577 0 34 0

415 0 27 0

645 0 36 0

253 0 13 0

342 0 110 0

440 0 0 0

654 0 48 0

845 0 39 0

313 0 16 0

521 0 40 0

418 0 20 0

27 0 16 0

456 0 20 0

628 0 37 0

242 0 27 0

292 0 19 0

179 0 24 0

280 0 0 44
366 0 20 0
324 0 32 0

639 0 0 0

4,537 59 1,124 36

0 0 0 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance

** Member Practice of Washington Community Health Care
1
 Eden Terrace  and Dr Spagnoli & Partners (Old Forge Surgery) merged on 1 October 2016 ; Dr Spagnoli & Partners (Old Forge Surgery) is now the contract holder for both practices. 

2
 Encompass Healthcare, Barmston Medical Centre, and Pennywell Medical Centre merged on 1 October 2016; the Sunderland GP Alliance is now the contract holder for these practices.

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

180,355 22 3,698 985

51,861 0 1,318 0

31,506 82 789 37

21,093 0 368 0

12,011 0 83 0

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

48,362 1,008 3,985 232

Other Government Bodies

Sunderland City Council 

City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies in 2016-17. Most of these 

transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.

Department of Health Entity

Harraton Surgery

The Health Centre, Victoria Road (Dr Thomas)*

Pennywell Medical Centre*2
Chester Surgery*
The Health Centre, Victoria Road, (Drs Bhatt and Benn)*

Wearside Medical Practice*

Sunderland GP Alliance (Collaboration of Local Practices) 

Washington Community Health Care (Collaboration of Local Practices) 

All of these transactions were undertaken under standard terms and conditions in the normal course of business. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year 2016-17 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the 

Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

Rickleton Medical Centre*

Castletown Medical Centre*

Barmston Medical Group**2

Monkwearmouth Health Centre*

Happy House Surgery

Church View Medical Centre*

Southwick Health Centre (Dr Obonna)*

Southwick Health Centre, (Dr Weatherhead and associates)*

Conishead Medical Group*

Eden Terrace Surgery*1

Riverview Health Centre, (Dr Nathan)*

South Hylton Surgery*

Southlands Medical Group*

Concord Medical Practice**

Houghton Medical Group*

The Broadway Medical Practice*

Encompass Health Care**2

The Health Centre, Victoria Road (Victoria Medical Practice)

Springwell Medical Group*

Grangewood Surgery*

Springwell House Surgery 

Westbourne Medical Group*

Colliery Medical Group*

Park Lane Practice*

Kepier Medical Practice*

The Health Centre, Victoria Road (Dr Stephenson and Partners)*

Village Surgery*

The Galleries Health Centre, (Dr Dixit and partner)**

The New City Medical Centre

Roker Family Practice

Fulwell Medical Centre*

St. Bede Medical Centre*

Millfield Medical Group*

Ashburn Medical Centre*

Southwick Health Centre (Dr Cloak and partners)*

The Old Forge Surgery*1

Herrington Medical Centre*

The clinical commissioning group is a membership organisation.  The GP Practices of Sunderland are all members of the clinical commissioning group. The table below lists the 2016-17 related 

party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland. In addition, the clinical commissioning group works with two GP alliance organisations who are part of a collobaration agreement with 

practices in Sunderland. The table below outlines the transactions with these two organisations and outlines the practices who are members of each GP alliance.  

Possible Related Party

Deerness Park Medical Group*

Riverview Health Centre (Drs Bhate & El-Shakankery)*

The Galleries Health Centre (Drs Vakharia and Hedge)**

Hetton Group Practice*

Vilette Surgery*

Hylton Medical Group*

Pallion Family Practice*

Redhouse Medical Centre*
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18. Related party transactions (continued)

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

1,912 0 226 0

525 0 28 0

613 0 42 11

1,732 0 123 0

791 0 58 0

985 0 149 20

1,299 0 95 31

698 0 59 0

957 0 91 0

1,471 0 109 22

658 0 42 12

509 0 31 10

704 0 48 0

265 0 24 0

1,114 0 69 0

1,005 0 63 0

1,676 0 126 0

745 0 44 0

1,220 0 104 8

933 0 109 0

1,167 0 94 0

681 0 42 6

919 0 74 8

733 0 62 5

909 0 67 12

441 0 20 4

755 0 56 6

953 0 82 0

326 0 35 0

876 0 59 2

588 0 43 10

439 0 31 11

695 0 39 12

254 0 23 0

790 0 59 14

388 0 39 6

693 0 51 0

828 0 53 0

333 0 16 3

582 0 48 3

483 0 29 9

332 0 19 0

521 0 34 47

584 0 52 0

302 0 35 0

337 0 19 0

320 0 22 4

602 0 38 4

344 0 24 0

353 0 25 4

14 0 0 0

807 0 94 18

1,565 0 491 5

33 0 0 0

* Member Practice of Sunderland GP Alliance

** Member Practice of Washington Community Health Care

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

183,964 0 1,277 984

54,134 0 106 0

30,684 0 780 0

21,626 0 110 0

12,292 0 169 0

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party
£000 £000 £000 £000

46,785 666 3,514 0

Other Government Bodies

Sunderland City Council 

City Hospitals Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust 

Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust 

South Tyneside NHS Foundation Trust

Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust 

North East Ambulance Services NHS Foundation Trust 

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies in 2015-

16. Most of these transactions have been with Sunderland City Council as outlined below.

Department of Health Entity

Harraton Surgery

Dr Thomas (Victoria Road Health Centre)*

Pennywell Medical Centre*

Chester Surgery (Dr El Safy)*

Dr Bhatt & Dr Benn*

Encompass GP Practice Two**

Pallion Health Centre*

Sunderland GP Alliance (Collaboration of Local Practices) 

Washington Community Health Care (Collaboration of Local Practices) 

All of these transactions were undertaken under standard terms and conditions in the normal course of business. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year 2015-16 the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of material transactions with 

entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

Rickleton Medical Centre (Dr Aiyegbayo)*

Castletown Medical Group*

Barmston Medical Centre**

Monkwearmouth Medical Centre*

Dr Weaver (Happy House Surgery)

Church View Medical Centre*

Dr Obonna*

Dr Weatherhead & Associates*

Conishead Medical Group (Dr Hipwell)*

Eden Terrace Surgery*

Dr Nathan (Riverview)*

South Hylton Surgery (Dr Widdrington & Partner)*

Southlands Medical Group (Dr Pattison & Partner)*

Dr Mazarelo & Partners (Concord Medical Practice)**

Houghton Medical Group*

Broadway Medical Practice (Dr Mekkawy & Partners)*

Encompass Health Care**

Victoria Medical Practice (Dr Ray)

Springwell Medical Group (Dr Sharma & Partners)*

Grangewood Surgery (Dr Wallace & Partners)*

Springwell House (Dr Singh Sunderland)

Westbourne Medical Group*

Colliery Medical Group (Dr K Stephenson)*

Park Lane Practice (Drs Mackrell & Joseph)*

Dr Mishreki & Partners (Kepier Medical Practice)*

Dr Stephenson & Partners*

Dr Joshi (Village Surgery)*

Dr Dixit Practice (The Galleries Health Centre)**

New City Medical Group

Roker Family Practice

Dr Rutherford & Partners (Fulwell Medical Group)*

Dr Ford & Partners (St. Bede's Medical Practice)*

Dr Wright & Partners (Millfield Medical Group)*

Ashburn Medical Centre (Dr Parry & Partners)*

Dr Cloak & Partners*

Dr Spagnoli & Partners (Old Forge Surgery)*

Dr Lilley & Partners (Herrington Medical Centre)*

The table below lists the related party transactions with the Member Practices of Sunderland in 2015-16

Possible Related Party

Deerness Park Medical Group*

Drs Bhate & El-Shakankery (Riverview Health Centre)*

Dr Vakharia & Hegde (The Galleries Health Centre)**

Dr H Pepper & Partners (Hetton Group Practice)*

Dr Brigham & Partners (Vilette Surgery)*

Dr Shetty & Partners*

Dr Lefley & Associates (Pallion Family Practice)*

Dr Reddy & Partners (Redhouse Medical Centre)*
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19. Events after the end of the reporting period

20. Losses and special payments

Total Number 

of Cases

Total Value of 

Cases

Total Number of 

Cases

Total Value of 

Cases

2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16

Number £'000 Number £'000

Administrative write-offs 1 89 1 2

Total 1 89 1 2

21. Financial performance targets

Clinical commissioning groups have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The clinical commissioning group performance against those duties was as follows:

NHS Act Section Duty Duty Duty 

Target Performance Achieved? Target Performance Achieved? 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

223H (1) Expenditure not to exceed income 521,040 497,459 Yes 514,113 495,459 Yes

223I (2)

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223I (3)

Total Revenue resource use does not exceed the 

amount specified in Directions 521,040 497,459 Yes 514,113 495,459 Yes

223J (1)

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not 

exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (2)

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not 

exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 Yes 0 0 Yes

223J (3)

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed 

the amount specified in Directions 5,977 5,553 Yes 6,228 5,398 Yes

Performance against the revenue expenditure duties is further analysed below:

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2015-16 2015-16 2015-16
Programme 

Resource

Administration 

Resource Total

Programme 

Resource

Administration 

Resource Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue resource 515,063 5,977 521,040            507,885            6,228                514,113            

Net operating cost for the financial year 491,906 5,553 497,459            490,061            5,398                495,459            

Underspend against revenue resource 23,157              424                   23,581              17,824              830                   18,654              

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17
Programme 

Resource

Administration 

Resource Total

£000 £000 £000

2016-17 revenue resource available to the clinical commissioning group 491,542 5,977 497,519            

Net operating cost for the financial year 491,906 5,553 497,460            

Underspend / (Overspend) against 2016-17 revenue resource available (364)                  424                   60                     

The 2016-17 revenue resources outlined in the table above incorporate £18,654k of brought forward surpluses from previous financial years. The table below outlines the financial 

performance for 2016-17 against in year resources available to the clinical commissioinng group.  This excludes brought forward surpluses and the £4,866,090 mandated by NHS England to 

be delivered as additional surplus to support national system wide pressures. 

The cumulative underspend against the revenue resource for 2016-17 included £4,866,090 mandated by NHS England to be delivered as an additional surplus in order to support national 

system wide pressures. This resource will be available to the clinical commissioning group in future financial years as drawdown of cumulative surpluses. 

The clinical commissioning group received no capital resource during the year ended 31 March 2017 and incurred no capital expenditure (year ended 31 March 2016: £0)

There are no post balance sheet events which would have a material effect on the financial statements of the clinical commissioning group (2015-16: None)

2015-162016-17

The total number of losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:

The liability provided for in 2015/16 in relation to a possible administrative write off has been released in 2016-17.

Although a bad debt provision has been provided for in 2016-17 for a possible administrative write off, the clinical commissioning group is continuing to 

pursue this liability. 
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